651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, CA 95678

A PUBLIC AGENEY
phone (916) 781-3636

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY fax (916) 783-7693

web www.ncpa.com

Minutes

Date: December 5, 2019

To: NCPA Commission §§m~ s

From: Cary A. Padgett, Assistant Secretary to the Commissien

Subject: NCPA Commission Meeting

1. Call Meeting to Order and Introductions

Chair Roger Frith called the meeting ’F@@wder at 9:54 am at NCPA, 651 Commerce Drive,
Roseville, California. A quorum was present. mtwductlons \m?e made. Those in
attendance are shown on the attached attendance fist; -

2. Approve Mmute@ @I the Mer 24, 2019 &Q&ﬂar Commission Meeting

Motion: A motion was m&@e by Kristen Schredea” -and seconded by Brad Wilke to approve the
Minutes of the. &eptember 27, 2019, Regular Corimission Meeting. The motion carried by a
majority on a1 We of those members present. San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-
S/erra,wﬂPis?T of Oak am@%nd Tr@wfse Donner weére absent.

\

PUBLIC FORUI

No comments fromithe public addressed the Commission.
‘,\\«; SN

REPORTS AND COMMITTEE UPDATES

3. General Manager’s Business Progress Report and Update

— Provided a brief overview of yesterday’s Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee
meeting agenda.

— NCPA hosted a meeting with the Rural Electric Cooperatives and the Community Choice
Aggregators (CCAs) that focused on discussions regarding their governance structures.

— An overview of the upcoming NCPA Strategic Issues Conference program was
discussed.

— Item #31 on today’s Agenda is being pulled off Consent Calendar and moved to
Discussion Action.



— Item #37 on today’s Agenda has been pulled and tabled to a future meeting.

— NCPA'’s geothermal unit is nonoperational due to the transmission outage as a result of
the Kincade fire. Staff is working on an alternate solution, but the line is likely off line
until March 2020.

4. Executive Committee
Committee Chair Frith reported the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard reports from the General Manager and General Counsel.

The Committee also met in closed session. No reportable action was taken.

5. Facilities Committee

Assistant General Manager Tony Zimmer reported the<Con n met once since the last
Commission meeting. The Committee met and discussed |ten'?§§§3-26 and 28-30 on
today’s agenda. A quorum of the Committee is defined for each item in item 5 on today’s
Agenda. The Committee did recommend Commission approval of aft Mms

6. Finance Committee

Chair Greg Scharff reported that Committee met once' %mm&e last Commlssi&ﬁmeetmg The
Committee received a report from PEM on the current conditions of the financial markets. PFM
also showed the Committee a potentra&rékm@l pportunity of the 2012 Hydroelectric bonds.
The two options included: 1) a taxable l‘é@un&fnvéngwgh an estimated NPV savings of $7.3m; and
2) a forward starting swap with an estimated NPV savings of $13.5m. While both options were
discussed at length, the{Co ner to gontinue m&ﬁ%brlng both options and
return in February w@ﬁ@n update. - f s B &\ ;

‘*@@@ * 8 r
NCPA staff provided a' neport to ré?ﬁgﬂest refunding the 2010A Capltal Facilities bonds, which is
item 36 on today’s Agenda.’ pmmittee did recommend Commission approval. NCPA staff
also provided a report on the: al review of the Investment Policy and delegation of investment
duties to the Treasurer-Controller, which is item 27 on today’s Agenda. The next Committee
meeting is scheduled forFebruary 11, 2020, at 10:30 am.

7. Legal Committee

General Counsel Janeé Luckhardfreported that the Committee met once since the last
Commission meeting and discussed the solar program 1, which is slightly different than the
previously approved sofar a@smments and item 34 on today’s agenda. The Committee
also met in closed session. Mo reportable action was taken.

8. Legislative & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Chair Mark Chandler reported that the Committee met once since the last Commission
meeting. The Committee heard from several state policy staffers regarding the potential
consumer-owned business models in the event that PG&E restructures. The Committee
discussed and approved the Legislative and Regulatory Affairs Committee 2020 Strategic
Plan. The Committee also discussed and recommended Commission approval of items 31
and 32 on today’s agenda. The Committee heard reports on the Bureau of Reclamation
proposal on Croffsets, and other key legislative and regulatory issues. In addition, the
Committee met in closed session. No reportable action was taken.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 2
December 5, 2019



9. Members’ Announcements & Meeting Reporting

Commissioner Kirsten Schreder, Redding, thanked NCPA staff Scott Tomashefsky for his
help with the SB 100 workshop that was held in Redding.

General Manager Randy Howard, on behalf of Palo Alto, took a moment to mention that
Palo Alto Utilities sadly lost a lineman while upgrading service for a customer. Silicon Valley
Power was able to send a crew to Palo Alto to finish the service.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners were polled to
determine if any member wished to pull an item or abstain %rgm one or more items on the
Consent Calendar. B

Staff pulled item 31 from the Consent Calendar fgr dlscussuon ) § .

%‘\\

Motion: A motion was made by Greg Scharff: econded by Kristen %hreder to approve the
Consent Calendar consisting of ltems 10-30, ang.32. The motion carned@by*a majority of those
members present on a voice vote with the abstenms noted below for each itém. San
Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Siesa, Port of O d, w Truckee Donnew‘%ere absent.

10. NCPA'’s Financials for the Mon

deg \Qctober'?s"g@ 2019 — approval by all
members. B

W

11. Treasurer’s Repo@Wchth Eﬁﬁéd Octoﬁer%ﬂ 201§§- accept by all members.

12. Disposal of the Whem Cét@rma Power‘@gency Su%?‘us Property — note and file by
all members dlspoéai of cubicle'walls, desks and chairs from the Lodi Energy Center facility.
Fiscal Impact: This repoﬁ; has n@ éu'ect flscal %mpact on the Agency.

13. Re@@ﬁutlon 19-86, B?own & Kysar, lnc - Five Year Multi-Task Professional Services
Agreement for Engineering Services; Applicable to the following projects: All
Northern €alifornia Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
Callforma\P&wlc Power Auithority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by
all members aithorizing the&neral Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
Professional Sefices Agre@ﬁ@nt with Brown & Kysar, Inc., for engineering services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, NCP% Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

14. Resolution 19-87, Hatton Crane and Rigging, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Crane and Rigging Support Services; Applicable to the
following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Hatton Crane and Rigging, Inc., for

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 3
December 5, 2019



15.

16.

17.

18.

crane and rigging support services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years,
for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by
SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 19-88, Contra Costa Electric, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for Electrical Maintenance; Applicable to the following projects: All
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by
a members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Contra Costa Electr‘wy ﬁ'ac for electrical maintenance
services, with any non-substantial changes recommended ‘and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500, Ooamer fl\l’& years, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Men , by SCPF’A,&%{ by SCPPA Members.
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total c&%% the agreemenfw% not to exceed $500,000
over five years. Purchase orders referen@@@ the terms and condltlm:ﬁs of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures

Resolution 19-89, CTi Controltech, Inc. — Five MMtl—Task General Services
Agreement for Boiler and Burner Maintenance; Wcable to the following projects:
All Northern California Power %ncy (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPP& Members — adopt resolution by
all members authorlzmg the General Manager of his. de&gﬁ&to enter into a Muiti-Task
General Services Agreement with CTi Cantrolte@%g Inc., for boiler and burner maintenance
services, with ar@nﬂn subsis&al changes ra@%@ﬁnend@& and approved by the NCPA
General Counse\\f‘ which shall nét exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPﬁ, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.
Flscal Impact Upon-execution, the total cos{mithe agreement is not to exceed $500,000
‘years.. Purchase orders réferencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
d folloWiﬂ@NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Reso#u@on 19-90, American Cooling Tower, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for. Cooling Tower Maintenance; Applicable to the following
projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members,
Southern Ca&ma Publl&&)wer Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members em@onzmg the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Generaf Services Agreement with American Cooling Tower, Inc. for cooling tower
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General CoCm?Sel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 19-91, Reliability Optimization, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting
Services Agreement for Predictive Maintenance Services; Applicable to the following
projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members,

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

December 5, 2019



19.

20.

21.

Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt
resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Reliability Optimization, Inc. for predictive
maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by
the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at
all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA
Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Resolution 19-92, RAM Mechanical, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General Services
Agreement for General Time and Material (T&M) Mechariical Maintenance; Applicable
to the following projects: All Northern California @@W'Agency (NCPA) Facilities,
NCPA Members, Southern California Public Powéf%fﬁmﬁarity (SCPPA), and SCPPA
Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the @gneral Manager or his
designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Serviges Agreem&@méith RAM Mechanical, Inc.,
for general time and material (T&M) mechanical maintenance services, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA Getie | Counsel, which
shall not exceed $2,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities ownet. and/or operated
by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Mémbers. N

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution total cost of the agréement is not to exceed $2,000,000
over five years. Purchase orders: rencing the terms-and conditions of the agreement will

be issued following NCPA procurement'policies and procedures.

Resolution 19-93, Custom Valve Swmions, Inc.»dba Cu 'om Valve Solutions - Five
Year Multi-Task Gene: Jervices Agreement fo sf{%chini\ ervices; Applicable to
the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Custom Valve Solutions, inc., dba
Custom Valvie-Solutions forvalve and agtuator maintenance and related services, with any
non-substantial changes recommended and appfoved by the NCPA General Counsel, which
shallinot exceed $1,500,000 overfive years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, NCPA Membefs, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact. Upon exeeution, thé-total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,500,000
over five years, Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued foﬁny%]g NCPA progurement policies and procedures.

A

£

Resolution 19-94,Fa est Insulation Contracting — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreementfor Insulation Services; Applicable to the following projects: All
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Member — adopt resolution by
all members authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task
General Services Agreement with Farwest Insulation Contracting for insulation services, with
any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 5
December 5, 2019



22. Resolution 19-95, Mesa Energy Systems, Inc. dba EMCOR Services Mesa Energy —
Five Year Multi-Task General Services Agreement for Chiller, HVAC, Boiler, and
Burner Maintenance; Applicable to the following projects: All Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public Power
Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members — adopt resolution by all members authorizing
the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Mesa Energy Systems, Inc., dba EMCOR Services Mesa Energy for chiller,
HVAC, boiler, and burner maintenance services, with any non-substantial changes
recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed
$1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA
Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members. The Scope of Work will be amended to now
include boiler and burner maintenance and inspection serviges.

Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total cost of the agreément is not to exceed $1,000,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

23. Resolution 19-96, American Industrial Scaffolding, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement for Scaffolding andiInsilation Services; licable to the
following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), W SCPPA Members
— adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or Fﬂs%e&gnee to enter
into a Multi-Task General Services:Agreement with ican Industrial Scaffolding, Inc., for
scaffolding and insulation services, with any non-s antial changes recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five
years, for use at all facilities owned’%@d/orwwated by l\?@% NCPA Members, by SCPPA,

\‘\* &

eme@s not to exceed $1,000,000
IC condltlons of the agreement will

, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting

£ ) ine Ser ices; Applicable to the following
All Noﬁh&m California Pow%hﬂgency (NCPA) Plant Facilities — adopt
reso;mlon by all members authofizing the General Manager or his desngnee to enter into a
Mu|tl-‘3§$$k Consulting Services Agte
wireline &mces with any non- substafmal changes recommended and approved by the
NCPA Ge‘h&raLCounsel whiech shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all
NCPA plant fagilities. ,

Fiscal Impact“i@on executwn the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000
over five years. P%ﬁréhase\n@ers referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NEPA procurement policies and procedures.

Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

25. Resolution 19-98, Gifford’s Backhoe Services, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement for miscellaneous maintenance labor and
equipment rental services,; Applicable to the following projects: Northern California
Power Agency (NCPA) Geothermal Plant Facility — adopt resolution by all members
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to the
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Gifford’s Backhoe Services, Inc., for
miscellaneous maintenance labor and equipment rental services, with any non-substantial
changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not
exceed amount from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000, for continued use at the NCPA Geothermal

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 6
December 5, 2019



26.

27.

28.

29.

Plant Facility.

Fiscal Impact. Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $2,000,000
over five years. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

Redding and Shasta Lake abstained.

Resolution 19-99, Geothermal Resource Group, Inc. - First Amendment to Five Year
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement for assisting in development of new or
production well workovers, interpretation of well analysis reports and supervision
during drilling operations. Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Geothermal
Plant Facility — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the General Manager or his
designee to enter into a First Amendment to the Multi-Task-Consulting Services Agreement
with Geothermal Resource Group, Inc., for assisting in development of new or production
well workovers, interpretation of well analysrs reports and §uperv13|on during drilling
operations, with any non-substantial changes recomng@ﬁ&%&and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, increasing the not exceed amount from $500,000 to $1,500,000, for use
at the NCPA Geothermal Plant Facility.
Fiscal Impact: Upon execution, the total ceﬁ&tgthe agreement 1% niet to exceed $1,500,000
over five years, to be used out of the NC%@pproved annual operm budgets as services
are rendered. Purchase orders referencing the terms and condltlons of B;e%\agreement will
be issued following NCPA procurement pohmesand pr

Redding and Shasta Lake abstaired.

Resolution 19-102, Review and" @pwme the Northein :California Power Agency
(NCPA) Investment Policy Guidelines and Delegate xstment Duties to the
Treasurer-Controller — adopt resolutmn by all members apmvmg an annual review of
NCPA'’s Investment Policy No. 200- 10024 recommendation ofio changes to the current
policy; and confirms delegatien-to the Trefaﬁsunerw()ontro%rthe authority to establish proper
safeguards, contﬁe&& and procedures to maifitain NCPA funds in a lawful, rational, and
prudent manner incliiding the investment of stich funds. The Treasurer-ControIIer assumes
full respon ibility for investment transactions uﬁi}l the authority is revoked or expires, and

1ake & report each monthr of those transactions to the Commission.

Flse@%ﬁpact There is no direct dollar impact to this proposed policy. The resolution
approves NCPA's Investment Policy and delégates authority to the Treasurer-Controller for
the m{ = \\ment activities of the AW

Wl
Resolutlomg%m4 FY 20%19 Anntral Billing Settlements — adopt resolution by all
members apbimﬂng the FY2018-19 Annual Billing Settlements.
Fiscal Impact: apprwal by the Commission, the amount of $5,336,452 will be
distributed to particig pants.-'NCPA member refund amounts will be deposited into their
respective General Opgtating Reserve accounts, and non-members will receive a credit
miscellaneous billing in early December.

Resolution 19-105, Scheduling Coordination Program Agreement Appendix B -
Approval of Revised Version 23 of Appendix B — adopt resolution by all members
approving the implementation of revised Version 23 of Appendix B to the Scheduling
Coordination Program Agreement (SCPA), which details the allocation of California
Independent System Operator (CAISO) charges and payments to NCPA Members.

Fiscal Impact: No significant costs will be incurred to implement the changes to the SCPA
Appendices and funds are available in the NCPA budget to support the work associated with
these contract updates.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes

December 5, 2019



30. Resolution 19-108, Approval of an Amendment to the Amended and Restated Market
Purchase Power Agreement to enable the Northern California Power Agency to
transact Low Carbon Fuel Standard Credits on behalf of the Participants — adopt
resolution by all members approving an amendment to the Amended and Restated Market
Purchase Program (MPP) Agreement, as further described in this Staff Report, to enable the
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) to transact Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS)
credits on behalf of the MPP Participants, including any non-substantive modifications to the
applicable MPP Agreement exhibits as may be approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.
Fiscal Impact. Work associated with developing the amendment to the MPP Agreement
was undertaken pursuant to approved Power Management budget categories, and costs
associated with this effort are allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation
methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget. - -

Santa Clara abstained.

31. /tem pulled from Consent to Discussion/Action.

N ¢ ;&é\;

32. Resolution 19-112, Approval of Amendment to the Funding %greement for Energy
Efficiency Services dated November 10,2018 — adopt resolutm@hy all members
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to execute an Amendment to the existing
Funding Agreement with the California Municipal Utilities Association (EMUA) and Southern
California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) to rﬁwease the total not-to- ex&ggd amount by
$275,500, of which NCPA will bgiresponsible for ps@mam of its 25.774% pi@ﬁ‘omonate
share of the augmented budget for the Agreement.” s ; |
Fiscal Impact. No fiscal impact to NCPA. The total eme for the additional upgrades will
be shared between participants based on the same “50/5@“’ split that was used in the original
cost allocation under Resolution 18-57 jwith 50%@‘ program costs divided equally among all
POUs and the remainitig 50% of costs split among: PQUs based on their respective

percentage of cumutafive Ioa@ it;om calelﬁ&r ys&ﬁom

w‘
DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEMS

‘SQ*& §«~

31. Resolution 1 9-111, Author&%on of Nf)PA ‘General Manager to enter into Task Order
ESGWCPA-SANTA%@&RAO'& d Santa Clara Confirmation Number 0144 under the
NCPA Shared Services Agreement — adopt resolution by all members authorizing the
General&@é\nager or his designee to enter into Task Order No. ESG-NCPA-SANTA
CLARAO1 and,Confirmation‘No. 0144 under the NCPA Support Services Program
Agreement, w%‘*any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
and issue a purchgse order% Efficiency Services Group, LLC (ESG) for the requested
services. .
Fiscal Impact: No fiscali 'act to NCPA. Services will be provided by ESG and will be
billed to and paid by the$§'|ty of Santa Clara per the terms of the Support Services Program
Agreement. NCPA’s administrative costs will be reimbursed by Silicon Valley Power.

Assistant General Manager Jane Cirrincione provided an overview of the task order with the
City of Santa Clara. A Golden Rod copy of an Amended Commission Staff Report was provided
that explained the language changes to the revised Resolution.

Motion: A motion was made by John Allard and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution
authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into Task Order No. ESG-NCPA-
SANTA CLARAO1 and Confirmation No. 0144 under the NCPA Support Services Program
Agreement, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, and

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 8
December 5, 2019



issue a purchase order to Efficiency Services Group, LLC (ESG) for the requested services.
The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Plumas-Sierra, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were
absent.

33. Resolution 19-100, NCPA 2020 Wildfire Mitigation Plan. Applicable to the following
projects: All NCPA Generation Facility locations — adopt resolution by all members
approving the 2020 Wildfire Mitigation Plan, to apply to all NCPA generation facilities,
effective immediately. This plan supersedes a previous version approved on August
23, 2018, and shall be reviewed and approved on an annual basis.

Fiscal Impact: Any expenses associated with the preventive maintenance procedures
and practices included in the plan are already covered ifi previously approved Plant
budgets. The plan also includes investigation of potential risk reduction measures that,
if implemented, may require additional budget dollars. Those amounts are not known
or established at this time.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma gave a presentation on the Wildfire Mitigation Plan.
The Commission discussed alternatives to veg on managementhuture budget costs.

Motion: A motion was made by Kristen Schreder and seconded by Mark I’Ngdler to adopt
resolution approving the 2020 Wildfire Mltlgatlonmn to ap&y to all NCRA generation

facilities, effective immediately. This plan supersedes a prévious version approved on
August 23, 2018, and shall be reviewe nd approved on an annual basis. The motion
carried by a majonty ona roll call vote of thase

‘%“ §

34. Resolution 19-101, Approval of the NWern CMa Power Agency Solar Project 1
Third Phase Agreemm — adopt resolution by all members granting authority to the General
Manager to execute the Third Phase Agreement, on behalf of the Agency, mcludmg any non-
substantive modlflcaims approved by the A@cy s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact. The Agenicy’s-cost for purchasing output from each plant will be based upon
each PPA’s pwm executéd under this Third Phase Agreement. The Agency will be
charged based on %e measured net electrical output of each site, and may incur fixed costs
if stated in any of the PPAs. Al nglect Costs; including direct PPA expenses, outside legal
fees, émk will be allocated to the Participating Members specifically for any plant or PPA-
specific expenses for plants located eir service territories and for non-plant or non-
specific PPA‘&xpenses in proportion to the number of project PPAs, as stated in the Third
Phase Agreement, and such costs will be included in applicable NCPA administrative
services costs. N will also assess Power Management and Administrative Services
(PM&AS) costs to ﬁm?aﬂw&a@{mg Members pursuant to the Power Management and
Administrative Services Agreément.

Assistant General Manager Joel Ledesma provided a one page overview of the project.

Motion: A motion was made by Mark Chandler and seconded by Mel Grandi to adopt resolution
granting authority to the General Manager to execute the Third Phase Agreement, on behalf of
the Agency, including any non-substantive modifications approved by the Agency’s General
Counsel. The motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

Santa Clara abstained.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

Commissioner Greg Scharff, Palo Alto, left the meeting at 11:08 am.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 9
December 5, 2019



35. Resolution 19-103, Approval of Northern California Power Agency’s (NCPA) Major
Insurance Renewals for Policy Year 2020 — adopt resolution all members delegating
authority to the General Manager to negotiate and bind property damage and liability
coverage amounts as presented (or better) and a not-to-exceed proposed premiums of
approximately $4,740,000.

Fiscal Impact: The total cost of the policy year 2020 insurance programs is estimated not
to exceed $4,740,000. This is approximately 60% higher than current year premiums and
approximately 30% higher than FY20 budget for the underlined programs. Depending on
final premiums, a budget augmentation may be required for FY20. Staff will return in
January with a final report of coverages and premiums.

Chief Financial Officer Monty Hanks gave a presentation o
policy year 2020. The Commission discussed renewal op and agreed to give the General
Manager the authority to negotiate and bind contracts b@@e& »not-to-exceed limits and to
report back to the Commission the final premiums. M

45 &
Motion: A motion was made by Brad Wilke an¢s§§bnded by John Allgird to adopt resolution
delegating authority to the General Manager to hegotlate and bind prom&@ damage and liability
coverage amounts as presented (or better) and a not-to- exceed propose&mmlums of
approximately $4,740,000. .
The motion carried by a majority on ajyoll call vote of those mmbers present
San Francisco BART, Gridley, Palo %RQn‘ of Qaklandg, and Truckee Donner were absent.

1ajor insurance renewals for

hp o
$

36. Resolution 19-106, Authorizing aNApMan the lssﬁance of up to $28 Million
Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A — adopt resolution by all
members authorizing warovmg thé issuance of up to $28‘§§Ihon of fixed rate Capital
Facilities Revenug ds, mﬁ@ Refunding Series A an&ﬁ;%@gates the General Manager
and other NCPA Is the authority to emcs&e related legal documents to issue these
bonds. Ve j
Fiscal Im ct Wlth %ﬁes}aa s@@@@%\SB%O Mfollowmg details of the refunding must be
dlsclosé@ prior yof thaMs The numbers reflect rates as of September 23,
2018 : 50y

<A
\\v‘

Esttmated Amount a&rocee\w\\ $23.511,305
= = \‘s 1 242%

; $460,455 (includes UW discount)
Estlmateé%m of Debt @erwce Payments: $24,224,890

Estimated NPV savings over t -eurrent debt service is approximately $2.1 million or 8.43% of
refunded bonds through\ turity in 2025. The estimated average annual debt service
savings for a full bond year-is-approximately $880k.

Assistant General Manager Monty Hanks provided a presentation on the issuance of up to $28
million of fixed rate Capital Facilities Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A.

Motion: A motion was made by Brad Wilke and seconded by Mark Chandler to adopt resolution
authorizing and approving the issuance of up to $28 million of fixed rate Capital Facilities
Revenue Bonds, 2019 Refunding Series A and delegates the General Manager and other
NCPA officials the authority to execute related legal documents to issue these bonds. The
motion carried by a majority on a roll call vote of those members present.

Redding, Shasta Lake and Ukiah abstained.

San Francisco BART, Gridley, Palo Alto, Port of Oakland, and Truckee Donner were absent.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 10
December 5, 2019



37. Resolution 19-107, Approval of the Services Agreement between Northern California
Power Agency and Nevada Irrigation District — adopt resolution by all members
approving the Services Agreement between NCPA and Nevada Irrigation District (NID) (the
Service Agreement), pursuant to which NCPA will supply scheduling, control center, and
reliability standards compliance services to NID, including any non-substantive modifications
to the Services Agreement as may be approved by NCPA’s General Counsel; and
authorizes the General Manager to execute the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of
NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to the Services Agreement as may be
approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

Fiscal Impact: In consideration for NCPA'’s provision of services, NID shall pay NCPA an
amount equal to Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000.00) for Services rendered during the first
one (1) year period. For each subsequent one (1) year period during the term of the
Agreement, the amount charged to NID will be escalate@ at a rate of two percent (2%) per
year.

LRI
e F%‘g\

ltem 37 was pulled from the Agenda and tabled to\Wuture @é@nmlssmn meeting.

A\\»

38. Resolution 19-109, Approval of Resolution Commending Km&eer adopt resolution
by all members commending Ken Speer. d N

L SR

Non-essential Members and NCPA staﬁ@ftt
CLOSED SESSION .. A

39. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing litigation pui*suant to Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Name-of case: Northern California Power Agency, City of
Redding;. Gity.of Rosevilf and Cf(zaf Santa Clara v. the United States, Court of Federal
Claimg No. T@%‘i?{: :

40. Comence with Lé@%Couﬁs& Existing litigation pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956. 9(d)(1): Name of case: /In Re PG&E Corporation and Pacific Gas and
Electric Company, Debtom Un/ted*S@tes Bankruptcy Court, Northern District of
California, G ‘Nos 19- MS (Lead Case) and 19-30089 DM.

N,
RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION

All meeting attendees rejoined the meeting.

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session Disclosure: General Counsel Jane Luckhardt stated there was no reportable
action taken in Closed Session.

NEW BUSINESS

No new business was discussed.

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 11
December 5, 2019



ADJOURNMENT

The December 5, 2019, Commission meeting was adjourned at 11:51 am.

Respectfully submitted, Prepared by,

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT

Commission Chair Assistant Secretary to the Commission
Attachments

NCPA Commission Meeting Minutes 12
December 5, 2019



Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting and Teleconference
December 5, 2019

COMMISSIONER
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners are requested to sign, but signature by members of the public is voluntary.

MEMBER NAME
1- ALAMEDA
. N’C_ar/fpﬂ)w}
2 - BIGGS ¥ ;
3 - GRIDLEY

4 - HEALDSBURG Q/

5 - LODI Tl Ch L0

6 - LOMPOC —Lrel /4/4,%}

7- PALO ALTO / /\/L/_\
{

8 - PORT OF OAKLAND

9 - PLUMAS-SIERRA REC

10 - REDDING %ﬁéﬁ%

11 - ROSEVILLE Y M ——
12 - SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID / e
TRANSIT DISTRICT |

“‘\ .,
13 - SANTA CLARA 7_’, P W

14 - SHASTA LAKE S i ///'M/

15 - TRUCKEE DONNER

4 B
16 - UKIAH /fé / M




Northern California Power Agency
Commission Meeting and Teleconference
December 5, 2019
Attendance List

NCPA Commissioners, Alternates & Staff are requested to sign, but signature by members of the
public is voluntary.

NAME . AFFILIATION

C/kQ/’)L//\ K. L\////”fw(/ /L/()-/U/?
Yeun Wedman NG

J eeny  (Mow Le/y HEAWSBU LG
BARAD WILK=E LOmPO

o Todd bk foseall

‘%// /z/,;:/ @DC/‘//CC/' }Qafé(/f//f’ —

Mol L e AP
A

Basi | \wowng VP

’|/0/17 2//14"14(4/:) /1/6//7"

e/ Clineaing) Nz
Toe| [ehsma /f/G/ -

Montyy Vg N CPA

Doa RQeans ﬂpv,c\,g\_ Taay
/_SeLQ G \Waoenal ‘ Lony )
Jawe_Luddad NCPA
Rara \é B & NcPa
Pegere Tz, Bryss

Do d Hagul u%ua,oh\)




5 PUBLIS pRENLY

PA CONSENT CALENDAR

# NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER ABENCY

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be approved without
discussion by a single-roll call vote. Any Commissioner or member of the public may remove
any item from the Consent Calendar. If anitem is removed, it will be discussed separately
following approval of the remainder of the Consent Calendar.

Prior to the roll call vote to approve the Consent Calendar, the Commissioners will be polled to
determine if any Member wishes to abstain from one or more items on the Consent Calendar.

CONSENT CALENDAR ROLL-CALL APPROVAL

Commission Meeting Date: December 5, 2019
Consent Items Listed on the Agenda: # IO to# 69‘

'Consent ltems Removed from the Agenda and Approved Separately:
#

2\
i

ROLL-CALL VOTE BY MEMBERS( @&\ QQK

Member Item Numbers Abstained Vote Absent

Alameda
>

Biggs

BART
Gridley ><

Healdsburg

Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto

Port of Oakland

Redding o= 225 72l

Roseville

Santa Clara 50

Shasta Lake A 35 26

A%}
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

| LA Lededd] L) ¢

Plumas-Sierra

ATTEST:

M ()
N
;\J
Cary A. Padgett
Assistant Secre*ary to the Commission



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: :ﬁ,% \

<
@]
3
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner jad

Ukiah

FlErr e | ek

Passed and adopted this 5" day of December 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic: 6%

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency

ROLL CALL VOTE

<
@]
3
m

£ Fer] | Feer v

ABSTAIN

ABSENT

X

had

Passed and adopted this 5" day of December 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

ROGER FRITH
Commission Chair

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

rope: A

<
(@]
"
m

ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda —
BART __>(
Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland

Redding

Roseville

g

Santa Clara

Shasta Lake

Truckee Donner

Ukiah

EL ML RRRE

Passed and adopted this 5t" day of December 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



Topic: %5

Alameda

BART

Biggs

Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Palo Alto
Plumas-Sierra
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville

Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner

Ukiah

Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

VOTE

aadiah

Flbby

ABSTAIN ABSENT

X

(e

X

Passed and adopted this 5™ day of December 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

ROGER FRITH

Commission Chair

ATTEST:

CARY A. PADGETT
Assistant Secretary



Northern California Power Agency
ROLL CALL VOTE

Topic: /bu?
VOTE ABSTAIN ABSENT
Alameda
BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi

Lompoc

Fr bl ] 1

Palo Alto S/ .
Plumas-Sierra Y
Port of Oakland PS
Redding _>( _

Roseville

Santa Clara

T

Shasta Lake

_ X

Truckee Donner
Ukiah 4

Passed and adopted this 5" day of December 2019, by the above vote on roll call.

Dﬁt%

ATTEST:

ROGER FRITH CARY A. PADGETT
Commission Chair Assistant Secretary



A FUBLIL ARENGY

/INC

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020

SUBJECT:

November 30, 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

I

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth C_\“-L_SL,Q\METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A

Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

Alameda Municipal Power

All Members City of Lodi [

City of Lompoc [

San Franci;::iga_lyr:r::iat City of Palo Alto [
City of Biggs City of Redding [

a

O

City of Healdsburg

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

City of Gridley City of Roseville

o o o 0O O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

City of Ukiah

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 101:20



November 30, 2019 Financial Report (Unaudited)
January 9, 2020

Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members

NOTICE:

The disbursements of the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) for the month reported
herein, will be approved at the January 16, 2020 meeting of the NCPA Commission. The
following page is a summary of those disbursements.

Prior to the Chairman’s call to order, the Assistant Secretary to the Commission will, upon
request, make available for review the detailed listing of those disbursements.

The report of budget vs. actual costs and the unaudited November 2019 financial reports are
also included.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This report has no direct budget impact to the Agency.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:
The financial report would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the

physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 of the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

LI

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments: (1)

SR: 101:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
and ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

Schedule of Disbursements

(Unaudited)

For the Month of November 2019

Operations:
Geothermal
Hydroelectric
CT#1 Combustion Turbines
CT#2 STIG
Lodi Energy Center
NCPA Operating

Total

$ 3,098,511
3,034,178
143,218
602,836
10,801,574
22,256,183

$ 39,936,500




NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019 42%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
GENERATION RESOURCES
NCPA Plants
Hydroelectric

Other Plant Cost $ 1,494,995 § 7,901,261 20,767,239 38%

Debt Service (Net) 2,775,572 13,877,859 33,306,862 42%
Annual Budget Cost 4,270,567 21,779,120 54,074,101 40%
Geothermal

Other Plant Cost 2,681,229 12,912,401 30,365,288 43%

Debt Service (Net) 412,144 2,060,718 4,945,723 42%
Annual Budget Cost 3,093,373 14,973,119 35,311,011 42%
Combustion Turbine No. 1 407,515 2,541,944 6,169,530 41%
Combustion Turbine No. 2 (Stig)

Fuel and Pipeline Transport Charges 132,567 503,557 1,089,118 46% (a)

Other Plant Cost 222,341 1,025,761 2,552,870 40%

Debt Service (Net) 483,035 2,415,175 5,796,421 42%
Annual Budget Cost 837,943 3,944,493 9,438,409 42%

Lodi Energy Center

Fuel 3,704,699 14,081,223 39,513,147 36%

Other Plant Cost 2,372,262 7,991,492 27,392,586 29%

Debt Service (Net) 2,171,202 10,856,012 26,054,428 42%
Annual Budget Cost 8,248,163 32,928,727 92,960,161 35%
Member Resources - Energy 4,351,863 28,008,205 56,228,967 50% (b)
Member Resources - Natural Gas 161,154 1,780,666 3,540,898 50% (©)
Western Resources 1,531,698 9,522,715 23,325,119 41%
Market Power Purchases 1,787,881 9,995,771 15,123,482 66% (d)
Load Aggregation Costs - CAISO 61,480,401 248,397,869 256,029,593 97% (e)
Net GHG Obligations 476,194 1,499,594 496,955 302% (6]

86,646,752 375,372,223 552,698,226 68%
TRANSMISSION
Independent System Operator
Grid Management Charge 584,779 3,092,197 2,813,086 110%  (9)
Wheeling Access Charge 6,904,673 50,885,325 110,581,940 46% (hy
Ancillary Services 170,195 3,352,447 2,372,540 141% (i)
Other ISO Charges/(Credits) 3,594,747 16,214,462 1,321,289 1227% ()
11,254,394 73,544,431 117,088,855 63%
MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Legislative & Regulatory
Legislative Representation 125,343 799,584 2,132,130 38%
Regulatory Representation 55,995 263,223 748,387 35%
Western Representation 45,212 234,803 745117 32%
Customer Programs 21,473 88,089 423,678 21%
Judicial Action 20,836 99,472 625,000 16%
Power Management
System Control & Load Dispatch 455,789 2,480,185 6,082,417 41%
Forecasting, Planning, Prescheduling & Trading 178,220 1,016,455 2,934,143 35%
Industry Restructuring & Regulatory Affairs 28,104 143,402 414,479 35%
Contract Admin, Interconnection Svcs & External Affairs 68,144 387,655 953,716 41%
Gas Purchase Program 4710 26,874 77,386 35%
Market Purchase Project 6,612 37,436 111,270 34%

Management Services continued on next page



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PERCENT OF
REPORT OF BUDGET VS. ACTUAL COST YEAR ELAPSED
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2019 42%
This Actual Year FY 2020
Month To-Date Budget % Used
Energy Risk Management 12,903 67,286 211,744 32%
Settlements 61,982 323,478 979,916 33%
Integrated Systems Support 1,354 16,027 243,161 7%
Participant Pass Through Costs 338,102 565,895 1,560,447 36%
Support Services 88,900 611,070 - N/A
1,513,679 7,160,934 18,242,991 39%
TOTAL ANNUAL BUDGET COST 99,414,825 456,077,588 688,030,072 66%
LESS: THIRD PARTY REVENUE
Plant ISO Energy Sales 8,968,894 42,683,952 127,623,712 33%
Member Resource ISO Energy Sales 2,829,423 12,697,275 29,156,411 44%
Member Owned Generation ISO Energy Sales 6,283,691 34,869,535 67,107,648 52% (k)
NCPA Contracts ISO Energy Sales 1,883,795 8,214,430 15,623,339 53% (k)
Western Resource Energy Sales 1,615,619 11,955,674 18,304,471 65% 0]
Load Aggregation Energy Sales 35,179,174 134,986,565 - N/A
Ancillary Services Sales 342,551 3,542,980 4,196,879 84%  (m)
Transmission Sales 9,198 45,990 110,376 42%
Western Credits, Interest and Other Income 9,688,978 42,870,668 19,227,470 223% (n)
66,801,323 291,867,069 281,350,306 104%
NET ANNUAL BUDGET COST TO PARTICIPANTS $ 32,613,502 $ 164,210,519 § 406,679,766 40%

(a) Increase in costs due to greater than projected MWhs of generation. CT2 is at 153% of budgeted MWhs at 11/30/19. Fuel costs and CA iSO
charges have increased as a result of increased generation.

(b) Variance caused by greater than anticipated member contracts for Palo Alto and Port of Oakland.
(c) Variance caused by greater than anticipated natural gas for Healdsburg, Lodi, Lompoc, and Ukiah.

(d) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchases and NCPA contracts. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget including certain
NextEra and Exelon deals.

(e) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(f) Increase primarily due to greater than anticipated GHG allowances purchased at auction for City of Lodi, BART, San Jose CE, East Bay CE, anc
(9) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(h) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(i) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.
(j) Increase due to unbudgeted costs related to East Bay Community Energy and San Jose Community Energy.

(k) Variance due to unbudgeted market purchase and NCPA contracts related revenues. Unbudgeted deals made after the FY20 budget including
certain NextEra and Exelon deals.

() Increase due to greater than anticipated MWhs due to the good hydro year. MWhs are 125% of budget at 11/30/19.
(m) Increase due to greater than projected MWhs of generation.

(n) Variance caused by unbudgeted revenue from customers and greater than anticipated member contract sales.



COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable

Participants

Other
Interest receivable
Inventory and supplies
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Interest receivable
TOTAL RESTRICTED ASSETS

ELECTRIC PLANT
Electric plant in service
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction work-in-progress
TOTAL ELECTRIC PLANT

OTHER ASSETS
Regulatory assets
Unused vendor credits
Preliminary survey and investigation costs
Investment in associated company

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Excess cost on refunding of debt
Pension deferrals
Deferred Outflows - ARO
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

November 30,

2019 2018

(in thousands)

33,124 § 25,275
64,419 45,228
2,823 )
235 129

571 416
8,891 9,746
1,142 197
111,205 80,991
44,421 53,438
177,680 166,674
794 732
222,895 220,844
1,507,204 1,505,094
(1,016,990) (986,131)
490,214 518,963
182 182
490,396 519,145
222,210 228,554
141 )

642 165

265 265
1,047,754 1,049,964
28,988 37,927
17,055 19,200
62,057 62,204
108,100 119,331

1,155,854 $ 1,169,295




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED
November 30,
2019 2018
LIABILITIES (in thousands)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 52,770 § 19,097
Accounts and retentions payable - restricted for construction 10 50
Member advances 1,634 1,138
Operating reserves 18,416 21,553
Current portion of long-term debt 42,545 41,950
Accrued interest payable 16,430 16,874
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 131,805 100,662
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Net pension and OPEB liability 66,126 76,002
Operating reserves and other deposits 132,335 128,946
Interest rate swap liability 16,513 11,818
Asset Retirement Obligations 65,769 63,713
Long-term debt, net 616,235 663,768
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 896,978 944,247
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,028,783 1,044,909
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Regulatory credits 83,176 85,992
Pension and OPEB deferrals 5,802 3,195
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 88,978 89,187
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets (41,947) (48,069)
Restricted 40,162 50,063
Unrestricted 39,878 33,205
TOTAL NET POSITION 38,093 35,199

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 1,155,854 § 1,169,295




COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
AND ASSOCIATED POWER CORPORATIONS

UNAUDITED

OPERATING REVENUES
Participants
Other Third-Party
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased power
Operations
Transmission
Depreciation
Maintenance
Administrative and general
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET OPERATING REVENUES

NON OPERATING (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Interest expense
Interest income
Other
TOTAL NON OPERATING EXPENSES

FUTURE RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS
REFUNDS TO PARTICIPANTS
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, Beginning of year

NET POSITION, Period ended

Five Months Ended November 30,

2019

(in thousands)

164,189 § 160,616
105,859 126,410
270,048 287,026
93,164 129,173
34,923 44,753
94,971 71,565
12,921 12,906
10,555 9,396
8,126 8,176
254,660 275,969
15,388 11,057
(16,727) (16,375)
1,311 5,341
2,633 2,785
(12,783) (8,249)
(1,487) (2,580)
(1,401) (3,097)
(283) (2,869)
38,376 38,068
38,093 $ 35,199




$$8°SST'L §  0£86S1 [ § 6vL0L S $ ¥68°ClYy 6EF Y S8BT £S8TEE §  096°€€l
001801 SSOLT - - - €L8°'1 - 168 YEEST LY6'T9
LS0T9 = g = - 181 - 8S1 - 81L19
SSO'LL $S0°L1 = 2 - E - - - -
886'8C - - - - T69°1 - €L YEE'ST 621
PSLLYO'L SLLTY1 vrS°6 6vL0L - 120'v1v [ 322 ¥69°LT 615°L0OE €10'IL
$97 $9T - - - = - - 5 -
w9 - 9 - - E - - - 2
1wl C 841 - a “ - g -
012'722 pILLS - J - 061°6T - ol6'L LLTEL (182'1)
96£ 06 609°T £vE - - 66L°1T¢€ 5881 £9€°€1 625611 898°0¢
81 = - . = 781 - - - -
p12°06% 609°C 343 - - L19°12€ 5881 £9€°€1 625611 898°0€
066°910°1) (0ss'e) (155) - [CIIAA] (zozTol) rsLve) (687°15) (819°522) (0£0°1YS)
vOT'LOS T 651°9 +68 - 9ELL 6L8°€TY 6£9°0€ 75879 LP1'S6E 868°1L$
$68°TTT €LELL - SH00E : SOv'Or - £79°€ SSi'ty YLTLT
v6L ¥6E - - * o€l = - ¥S1 911
089°LL1 LLY'SS = SII'LT - 098'0€ - 234 8TL'LE 910'9T
¥4 474 T05°1T . 0£6°T - SIv'6 - 651°¢ £L7°9 wl'l
SOT111 718°% 818 vOL 0 - L79°9C $5S°T 8LLT 8SI'TT [N
- (Le€%96) L8E'8 orE0Y - TEEDT T61¢ 0£ST 333 8668
Wil Lyy ¥ - - Ll z 1 43 6£9
168°8 - - = - £02'T 65€ 9T yL81 60S't
1L§ 1L€ - 00T - * - - - -
{24 TL * 8s1 - - - - = 3
€8T £78°C : - - - - - = -
61779 61¥'v9 = = - - - - - -
yelee $ 610°€E iz $ = - $ s 1 I o $ 1
vo:BF_OU %0:0...1_< SIVIALRS uoIssIwisuely, U ON i} >w‘_ucm U 'ON mvma_:ou 5 u_.._uoo_oo.ﬁsm —m-.:._ur_aovnr.v
pelivled JqUIBIN % lamod uoIssnusuel ], 1poT 1D —.n:ﬂ—nU
PAIRIDOSSY paseyoing srduny
SHOMNOSTY NOISSIASNV YL % ONILVIINTD
6107 ‘0€ 1aquaA0N

UOHRUIqUIO)) UT POTEUIMIT 4

SHOYNOSHY 40 SMOTLLNO ATNEIAAA ANV SLISSY TV.IOL

SHOUNOSTY 4O SMOTILN0 ATTYFIIA TVLIOL
SUONESIQQ TUGWIAINY 1SSy
S[ELIRJOP GHAJO PUR S[LIJOP UOISUIJ
192p JO BuIpUrYol UO 1500 SSIOXY
SHONNOSTY 40 SMOTILNO0 ATIHHIHA

SLASSY TVLOL

Auedwoo pIjRIDOSSE UL JUSWISIAUL

1500 uonESNSIAUL pue A3As AreuruiaId
STIPAID JOPUSA PISNU(

sjasse Aoje[ndoy

S1ESSV YIHILO

INV1d ORLOFTH TV.LOL
ssa.8o1d-ur-j1om uononnsuo)

uonepa1dap parejnwnooe $S9Y
2o1a19s Ul Jued oLI9Ig
INVId OIMLDFTH

SLISSY QALONMLSTE TV.LOL
3qRAIDIDI 183I33U]
SJUUIISIAUT
sjus[eAinba yseo pue ysey
S1ISSY A4LONMLS T

SLISSV INTMUND TVLIOL
Lswexsoud a0 pue A5usdy woy ang
sosuadxa predarg
sarjddns pue K10juaauy
S[(BAI30RI 1§319IUT

Eeite)

swedoieg
9[qRAIB0AI SJUNOOTY
SIUAWISIAUY
siuapeAmba yseo pue ysed

SLASSY LNTYNEND

SLASSY

(pantwo s,000)
SNOILVIOJY0D ¥AMOd AALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNIOV YAMOd VINHOII'TVD NUAHLION

NOILLISOd LAN A0 INFTWALVLS ONINIFINOD

NOLLVIAIOINI TVIONVNIA HHHLO



$S8°CSI $  0£8%6S1 $ trS6 § 6vLOL § pe8Siy § 6try 8587 €58°TEE '§ 096°€€l
£60'8€ €91t €119 (195°9) L5691 (9eeT) €08 66€'8 SSS°01
818°6¢ 091°¢ €119 (8eL'¢) 798°G1 (9€€'T) 161 89p°8 86£'6
910y € - (£287) 898°81 - 91T°€ 1py°LI LSH'E
(Ly61y) - - - (eLL'L1) ) (17 (o15°L1) (00£°7)
30688 988°8 £rE - 720°8€ LS0T T€8 T19°¢ 9TT'S¢E
708°S 708°S - - - - = - -
9L1'E8 #80°¢ 343 - 720°8€ LSOT [43] T19°c 9TT'sE
£8£°8701 18L°LY1 880°€ 01€LL S16°09€ 8ILE 0$6'9 Tv8°0TE 6L1°88
8L6'968 L6v'Ep] SYT'T 890°€€ 06€07€ - £8°1C 0L9°€67 $79'78
SETO19 - R - 050°61€ - STE'IT $5€09T S05°S1
69L°69 - - - 181 8s1 - 0£¥°59
€151 = - - - - - £15°91 s
SEETEL ILE'LL 3444 890°€E 651°1 - - 208°91 0691
921'99 9T1°99 - - - ‘ ? = -
S08°1€1 ¥8TY £v8 Wiy STSor 8ILE L9v'S TLILT $55°S
0EY91 - - # 6€1°01 - 8Ty eL's 1431
37%44 = - - 0v0°Tl = 06vy STL0T 06T'S
91t'81 E - : 691°S1 1z 6vS 0sT (g9)
PESL - £v8 = - - - - 16L

ol 2 - - = - - ol -
0LLTS $ 8Ty $ - $ vy LA $ L0S - 9Ly $ 8

paulquo) AJuany SRS ISSTH 1L OISSI 1L IR Anssuyg UQ ON sanifroey JLIIIAOIPAH TRWISYI03D)
Py Iaquisy % Jomod 1po] 12 fende)
PalBIOOSSY paseyoing apduny
SHOYNOSTE NOISSIASNVYL 2 ONLLYYANTD
6107 ‘0€ PquasoN

NOILISOd LAN ANV SAOUNO0STA A0
SMOTINI TNAIAA ‘SLLITEVIT TVLOL
NOILLISOd LAN TV.LOL
paIoLIsaIuy
poloLsay
519558 [e11ce0 UL JUSWISIATL JON
NOILISOd .LIN

SEHMNOSTY 40 SMOTINI IHddA9d TV .LOL
S[eLI2Jop gHJQ PUE UOISUS
supax AlownSay
SHOUNOSTY 40 SMOTINI ATIAIIIA

SHLLITIEYIT TYLOL

SHILITIEVIT INTIND-NON TV.LOL
19U ‘1q9p wua-Fuo]
suoyeSiqQ UAUWLINIY 19S5y
Anjiqey| dems a7e1 3152199u]
syusodap Jaylo pue s3A19s33 FuneiadQ
Aupgey g4 pue vowsuad 1N
SHLLITEVIT INTTINO-NON

SHILITIEVIT INTIND TYL0L

o[qeAed 151Ul PIATUDY
1qep wun-Fuof Jo voriod waLINy
saA19531 Buntesedo
SIOUBAPE JIGUIDIAT
UONINIISUOD IOJ PajoLlsal - d]qeAed SUONUIISI PUR SIUNOIDY
sesuadxs paruooe pue a[qeAed sjunodsoy
SHLLITIGVIT LNTHAND

SHILITIEVIT

(pag1wio s,000)
SNOLLVIOJHOD YAMOd QIALVIDOSSY ANV
ADNAOV YAMOd VINJIOAITVD NYIHLION

NOLLISOd LAN 4O INHHLVLS ONINIFNOD

NOILVINYOANI TVIONVNIA ¥IHLO



£60°8¢€ €91°¢ 3% § (19¢°9) $ - §  LS6%91 § (9£€'T) $ €08 66€°8 $  gss0r
9LE'SE 865°T €18y 8SI°1 - 10S°L (gsL'1) [344 789°€1 ¥56'6
(£82) $9§ 00€'t (61L°L) - 95%°6 L1y 08¢ (£82°5) 109
{1or1) (oes) (6L6) - - - 61 9S (8) ren)
(L8y'1) b - - - 60§ > (sL6) (L8) (ve6)
(€8L7T1) 997 (22 €0V - 000°y) 9 75T (€59°6) (66)
€€9C orT - = - 05T - 95L 8z1 [[§)
TET 0z 44 £0v - [§37 9 [34 981 091
(Lze'on) - - - (s56°c) - (Lvs) (L96'6) (852)
88£°C1 678 LETT (zz1's) - LY6°TL L1T LYO'T Sor'y 89L°1
099%ST (eze) ¥20°'8 9v9981L - 8€L'8T 0rsT 09%T 9sLT1 618%1
s - (s2) - - 991 [H % oSt (38¢)
9zI'8 (eLy) ¥S8°T = * £16°1 LEE 60€ 86C°1 888°1
$s5°01 F o€ - - SLS'T £0€°1 L1v Ive'e 688°€
126'T1 081 6 z 1609 ¥8 6 176°¢ $OL'T
1L6v6 - 4 S91'v6 - SIE 6 € 9ve L€l
£26'vE g YIS 18L°1 - p06°L1 909 00L TSl WTL
(183 = - 00L°06 2 yLL 1St 89 (4481 6vE
8¥0°0LT 905 19201 vTS8LL - S89°1Y LSLT LOS°E 12291 L8591
658501 - 0s1°T 6918 3 8EVT LS9 699 €8L°01 6bL'6
68191 20§ 1116 §  §50°0C1 $ - $ €0€LL § 001C $ 88T 8Eb'S § 889
pauiquioy Rouaiy [FERITSEN 1SS 1L 1S 1L 121ua)) Afleug auQ ‘ON sanyoe] OLI103[30IPAH Tewdy10an
pelitle] JOqUIBIN 7 1amog tpoy jfe] [ende)
PoIBIDOSSY peseyoing admmAl

SHOYNOSHY NOISSIASNV UL 2 ONILVIENIO

610Z ‘0€ 1qUIIAON PIPU SYIUOJA AL 343 10,

UONEUIGUIO) Ul PATEUIIITH 4

popua pousd ‘NOILISOd LAN
1294 o SuuiSag ‘NOLLISOd LAN

NOILISOd 13N NI (3SYH403Q) dSYTYONI
SINVJIOLLYVd OL SANNATI

SLNAOWY JTaVIIAO0DTYE TANLNA

SANNAATE (SASNAIXH) ONILVYIdO NON TV.LOL
19410
Jwodul 3SAUUL
asuadxs 1sa1a3u]
STNNAATY (SISNTLXH) ONILVIEJO NON

SHOANTATYE ODNILVIHdO LN

SASNAIXH ONILVYHdO TV.LOL
4Jou ‘saseyoind (sofes) Auedwosraiug
[e1ouaf pue dANRISIUTWPY
20UBURIUIE
uoneaidaq
UOISSTUISURL ]
suoneradQ
1amod paseyoing
SHSNAIXHT ONILVIEdO

SANNIATI ONILVIFJO TV.LOL
AuRd-puyL 19O
sjuedoiped

SHANFATY ONILVIAd0

(paywo s,000)
SNOILVIOJY0D YAMOd ALVIDOSSY ANY
ADNADY HIMOd VINYHOITTVD NYALLION

NOILLISOd LIN NI STONVHD ANV SESNAIXA ‘SAANTATI H0 INTWALVLS ONINIFWOD

NOILVIAMOANI TVIONVNIA YIHLO



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020

SUBJECT:

Treasurer's Report for Month Ended November 30, 2019

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM:

Division:

Department:

Sondra Ainsworth = 1> ()METHOD OF SELECTION:

Treasurer-Controller N/A
Administrative Services

Accounting & Finance

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

If other, please specify

All Members X City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San F’a""i;‘;‘l;igagr:r::; 0 City of PaloAlto [0  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [l City of Redding [] Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [ City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg [1  City of Santa Clara [] Other

o o o o o o

SR: 102:20



Treasurer's Report for Month Ended November 30, 2019
January 9, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval by all members.

BACKGROUND:

In compliance with Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) policy and State of California
Government Code Sections 53601 and 53646(b), the following monthly report is submitted for
your information and acceptance.

Cash — At month end cash totaled $6,885,045 of which approximately $1,682,961 was applicable
to Special and Reserve Fund Deposits, $1,609,290 to Debt Service and $3,592,794 to Operations
and other.

The cash balance held at U.S. Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This
cash balance is invested nightly in a fully collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase
agreement.

Investments — The carrying value of NCPA's investment portfolio totaled $312,861,739 at month
end. The current market value of the portfolio totaled $314,479,750.

The overall portfolio had a combined weighted average interest rate of 2.173% with a bond
equivalent yield (yield to maturity) of 2.203%. Investments with a maturity greater than one year
totaled $179,098,000. November maturities totaled $25 million and monthly receipts totaled
$46 million. During the month $37 million was invested.

Funds not required to meet annual cash flow are reinvested and separately reported as they
occur.

Interest Rates — During the month, rates on 90-day T-Bills increased 2 basis points (from 1.59%
to 1.61%) and rates on one year T-Bills increased 2 basis points (from 1.57% to 1.59%).

To the best of my knowledge and belief, all securities held by NCPA as of November 30, 2019 are
in compliance with NCPA'’s investment policy. There are adequate cash flow and investment
maturities to meet next month’s cash requirements.

FISCAL IMPACT:
This report has no direct budget impact to NCPA.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachment

SR: 102:20



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

TREASURER'S REPORT

NOVEMBER 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PAGE
CASH & INVESTMENT BALANCE 1
CASH ACTIVITY SUMMARY 2
INVESTMENT ACTIVITY SUMMARY 3
INTEREST RATE/YIELD ANALYSIS 4
INVESTMENT MATURITIES ANALYSIS S

DETAIL REPORT OF INVESTMENTS APPENDIX



NCPA FUNDS
Operating

Special Deposits

Construction
Debt Service

Special & Reserve

Portfolio Investments at Market Value

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

Northern California Power Agency

Treasurer's Report

Cash & Investment Balance

November 30, 2019
CASH INVESTMENTS TOTAL PERCENT
1,871,493 $ 124,409,699 126,281,192 39.49%
1,488,385 - 1,488,385 0.48%
232,916 4,868,121 5,101,037 1.60%
1,609,290 35,111,030 36,720,320 11.48%
1,682,961 148,472,889 150,155,850 46.96%
6,885,045 $ 312,861,739 319,746,784 100.00%
314,479,750




Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report

Cash Activity Summary
November 30, 2019
RECEIPTS EXPENDITURES CASH
INTEREST INVESTMENTS INVESTMENTS INTER-COMPANY/ INCREASE/
OPS/CONSTR _ (NOTE B) (NOTEA)  OPS/CONSTR __ (NOTEB)  FUND TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 45224651 $ 73,415 $ 14,296,913 $ (21,208,397) $ (19,886,859) $ (18,447,915) $ 51,808
Special Deposits 1,067,077 5 . (10,184,821) - 9,262,711 144,972
Construction - - 200,000 - - - 200,000
Debt Service - 412 1,019,000 - (8,287,369) 8,873,291 1,605,334
Special & Reserve - 264,858 9,819,026 (3,570,117)  (8,765,444) 311,913 (1,939,764)

$ 46,291,728 $ 338,690 $ 25,334,939 $ (34,963,335) $ (36,939,672) $ - $ 62,350

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.

NOTE B -Net of accrued interest purchased on investments.



Northern California Power Agency
Treasurer's Report
Investment Activity Summary

November 30, 2019
(NON-CASH) (NON-CASH) INVESTMENTS
SOLD OR DISC/(PREM) GAIN/(LOSS) INCREASE /
PURCHASED MATURED AMORT ON SALE TRANSFERS (DECREASE)
NCPA FUNDS
Operating $ 19,886,859 $ (14,296,913) $ 13,416 $ - $ - $ 5,603,362
Special Deposits - - - - - -
Construction - (200,000) 3,950 - - (196,050)
Debt Service 8,287,369 (1,019,000) 41,589 - - 7,309,958
Special & Reserve 8,765,444 (9,819,026) 1,829 11,962 - (1,039,791)
$ 36,939,672 $ (25,334,939) § 60,784 $ 11,962 $ - $ 11,677,479
Less Non- Cash Activity
Disc/(Prem) Amortization & Gain/(Loss) on Sale (72,746)
Net Change in Investment --Before Non-Cash Activity $ 11,604,733

NOTE A -Investment amounts shown at book carrying value.



Northern»Califdrnia‘ Power Agency
Interest Rate/Yield Analysis

November 30, 2019
WEIGHTED
. AVERAGE o BOND
* 'INTEREST - EQUIVALENT
RATE YIELD
OVERALL COMBINED 2.173% 2.203%
OPERATING FUNDS: 2:168% 2.273%
PROJECTS:
Geothermal 2.373% 2.472%
Capital Facilities 1.680% 1.706%
Hydroelectric 2.176% 2.240%
Lodi Energy Center 1.737% 1.613%
. INTEREST RATES
e
225 S
KEY INTEREST RATES 200 :‘% e
75 +—=
PRIOR 122 45
CURRENT _ YEAR 1.00
o
Fed Fds (Overnight) 1.55% 2.20% g:gg - =
T-Bills (90da.) 1.61% 2.39% i LA RV J '
Agency Disc (90da.) 1.52% 2.35% Jun ol A Sep Oet Nov
T-Bills (1yr.) 1.59% 2.70%
Agency Disc (1yr.) 1.45% 2.66% R — —
T-Notes (3yr.) 1.60% 2.84% —4— T-Bills (90 days) -~ FED FUNDS
-'—a-—_-ﬂs 1yr) ~—0— T-Notes (3 yr)




Northern California Power Agency

Total Portfolio
Investment Maturities Analysis
November 30,2019
0-7 8-90 91-180 181-270 271-365 15 610
Type Days Days Days Days Days Years Years Total Percent
US Government Agencies $ 11,146 $ 22,595 $0 $14,694 $ 3,895 $ 108,912 $ 2,000 $ 163,242 51.78%
Corporate Bonds (MTN) - - 1,000 - - 66,540 - 67,540 21.43%
US Bank Trust Money Market 5,611 - - - - - - 5,611 1.78%
Commercial Paper 17,654 - - - - - - 17,654 5.61%
Investment Trusts (LAIF) 48,587 - - - - - - 48,587 15.41%
Investment Trusts (CAMP) 5135 - - - - - - 5135 1.64%
U.S.Treasury Market Acct. * 4,129 - - - - - - 4,129 1.31%
U.S.Treasury Bill/Note - 1,494 - 66 118 146 - 1,824 0.58%
Certificates of Deposit - 10 - - - 1,500 - 1,510 0.48%
Total Dollars $ 92,262 $24,099 $1,000 $14,760 $4,013 $177,098 $2,000 $ 315,232 100.00%
Total Percents 29.26% 7.64% 0.32% 4.68% 1.27% 56.18% 0.63% 100.00%

Investments are shown at Face Value, in thousands.

* The cash balance held at US Bank includes outstanding checks that have not yet cleared. This cash balance is invested nightly in a fully
collateralized (U.S. Government Securities) repurchase agreement. Cash held by Union Bank of California is invested nightly in fully

collateralized U.S. Treasury Securities.



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

‘Detail Report Of Investments

APPENDIX

Note: This appendix has been prepared to comply with

Government Code section 53646.



we 6p:0L 6L0Z/0LIZL
091'208 8892 €HAZYLLES S80'0LS #oL'T yraAt €20Z/LLIPO  0/8°20S BLOZ/LEIL0  0SS'T 000005 o08n “0U] "Hew|epm
€.5'28v 22992 IMEZLELLE  OVE'20S 80¢€ 212 €20Z/LOMPO  OZL'EsY 8L0Z/LT/60  00S'T 000°'00§ o08n g jeosed paun
9£s'aay 00992 IMEZLELLE  OV2'L0S 8rZ'e LT £TOZ/LOMO  GeZ'esd 8LOZ/SLISO  00S'C 000'00% 208n JINBS [201Ed POUUN
S06'v6Y 5592 8480/9Y80 OLP'ELS 980°¢ 00zt €202/5L/E0  08Z'T6Y 8L0Z/1Z/E0  0SLT 000'00S o08n | AemeyieH eausyieq
810'e6Y £1992 YOLITTYYZ 0STYLS yoe'e 1614 €202/90/€0  §/8'68F 8L0Z/ZL90  008C 000'005 008N O [ended 2198 uyor
0£9'686 8992 €UVYOLETOE 00£'G20'L 890'¢ 98L'y €2T0T/LO/E0  0SV'S86 8L0Z/E0/80  92LT 000'000'L 208N 12100100 HAOW UoXX3
95126y 95592 GHEX68E89  ShL'60S ysi'e TLL'L €202/5L/20  0L0'88Y 8L0Z/LZIED  S29T 000°005 208N "diog speI0
6£9'68Y £099¢ SNDLO88C8 GEC0LS yor'e 851} €20T/L0/Z0  S85'v8y 8L0T/SLISO  0SLT 000°005 208n dnouo Auedold uowls
01£'286 S¥99z 61319€268 044220°L Sle'e €L €Z0T/ALILO 091716 810Z/€0/80  00.C 000'000'% oo8n HpaiJ Jojol ejoko L
012'96¢ 1¥99¢ 90v09Z8Z6  0Z9'0LY gelL'e 60L'L TT0TIVLITL  TSS'VeE 8L0Z/E0/80  008'C 000'00¢ o08n “oul BSIA
888°06Y 68592 98YY9.L99) 0£L'90G 800°¢ oLt 220e/50/ZL  092'G8Y 8L0C/VZ/E0  SSET 000'00S 208n 'di09 uasayd
0s€e'Z6Y 71992 LVOMG99Z0  5¥9'805 51 180°} 2Z0C/9L/LL 055’88V 8102/CL/90  009C 000'005 o08n UeulS BPUOH UedswY
y51 a8y 21992 YNEECOL60 S61'20S v.0€ ¥90'} TT02/08/0L  08L'Z8Y 8L0Z/CLI90  002T 000005 ooan ‘00 Buisog
£65'22L'L 62692 LDOLER/ED L18'GEL'L 62ET 268 2T0Z/LLISO 996'LTLL 8L0Z/LO/CO0  00E2 Le8'eTL'L o04an -ou( ajddy
15€'26Y 16592 Z1a8yyeELL  GB8'V0S ¥Z6'C £88 2Z02/20/50  S00°.8% 8L0Z/Le/ed  0STT 000°00§ o08n "ou] 0QlIsded
020'96% 10992 83VA9EZL8 OVEOLS slee zs8 ZT0Z/LOMO  GBEEBY 8L0Z/5LIS0 056 000'00$ oo08an epeJjuawy gL
€LY'Y86 12992 ¥QO09LBLY 0S2°0L0'L 2862 £z8 T202/€0/€0  OVL'9.6 8L02/02/60  0STT 000'000°'L ooan uosuyap g uosuyor
85€'786 €992 TAO8LITYL OZL'ELO'L 090'¢ 86L 2202/90/20  0L1'GL6 8L0Z/02/60  00EC 000'000'L oo8an sjquies g Jepoid
889'666 5992 8YEABLG88 00E'61L0'L 8L0'e £59 L20zivLIB0  08Y'666 8L0Z/Le/60  000°€ 000'000'L o08an AueduioD we
299'G/6 69992 SOEMSO920 016'986 6vL'e 879 1202/60/60  0TC'6S6 8L0Z/0Z/60  00L'L 000'000'L 008N Ueul BPUOH UedLBWY
000'005'€ GBE9Z PHAVOVELE G69'LBY'E 005'L L£9 1202/E2/80  000°00S'€ 9L0Z/€T/LL  00S'L 000°005°¢ 208N N UBOT SWOH [BJapad
7€1'909' Sov9T GYSHIEELE ¥S9'P09'T 0z9'L €09 1202/92/L0  v8L'LL9'T 2102/82/180  02TLL 000'208'2 Q08N JpaI) Ulied esspa4
187'€6y 21992 8XaLgosl. SOL'LOS 8682 085 LZ0ZIEO/O0  OEL'.8Y 8L0Z/ZLI0  0S6'L 000'00S oodn ou| Jezid
016286 04992 OMVOYL8Sy 09E'L66 616 6€5 120261150 096°896 8102/02/60 004} 000'000'L o08n dioD jaug
829'v6Y 85592 §18920/8F $¥6'00S ov8T 187 LZ0ZILOm0  008°L8% 8L0Z/L2/E0 000 000005 208N “ouf jodeq SWwoH
180'505 L¥89 6Y3HEY/EQ 089'G0S 9602 oLy LZ0Z/SLIE0  0LE'90S 6LOZ/LEILO0  006'C 000°005 208N LN TYHENY TYNOLLYN
9v8'066 19992 €Qays/2.L  0£0'500°L 696C asy 1202/82/20 020286 8102/0Z/60  002T 000'000°L 008N “ou] sweyshg 00st)
6v9'78L'C GGE9Z 08d8VOELE 8/9'8L.°C Ll Siy L20Z/6LL0  BO9'€8L'T 9102/8L/10  0OF'L 000'68.°2 ooan eg U0 SWOH [2Jepad
£G2'96Y 9,992 zzl3zzvve  665'20S £50'€ [0i4 L202/80/L0  S6L'Z6Y 8L0T/LZ/60  0SET 000°00§ o08n 0O [epded a1eeQ uyor
£15'066 2992 /VIzyLLEs 062'L00'L [:14:4 08¢ 020Z/5L/ZL  085'616 8L0Z/0Z/60  006'L 000°000°L oo8n U} ‘PeW(BM
69L'8LL 8069¢ £9£8Z8716  090'8LL 865 0se 0Z0zZ/SLLL  ¥BL'BLL BLOZ/LEIOL  OSL'} 000'8L1 o08n finseaul 's'n
pre'8L6'Y 99v9Z 9MLEVOELE 908'€L6'Y 08Y'L 622 0Z0Z/LLIL0  €1£°066'% £L0Z/82/80  009'L 000'526'% o0an eg UeoT sUOH [esopad
vTL'666 89992 GYE0SS69E  09C'¥00'L 1E6'C [ QZ0Z/LLISO  086'866 8L0Z/0Z/60  G.8'C 000'000'L o08n soluteuAq |essus
0000} 6L€0€ 6LEOESAS 000'0L 0500 18 020Z/20/40  000°0L 6L0Z/20/0 0500 000'0L asn jueg SN
v16'828'¢ 9500Z 9G00LSAS PL6'828'E 0580 3 716'828'€ 2102/7T/80 0580 716'828'e asn ued sn
€6v'128') 05002 0S00LSAS €6v'128') 1000 3 €60'148'L €L0Z/0€/90  100°C £6V'128'L asn Hueg SN
76285 #1002 ¥L00/SAS ¢62'8S 2000 L z62'85 €102/L0/0 2000 26285 08N ojifed Jo dueg uotun
16V 0002 0/00LSAS l6V'Y 09T L L6V 8L0z/BLIO0L  OV9T 16V dWO WBW Jossy eluloyfed
20¥°'L82'22 0000Z 0000LSAS 20v'/£2'/2 orb'T L TOv'LET L2 €L0T/LO/IL0  ovYT 2oy'LeT LT 4Iv1 unsaAu| Aausby feao
000'6Z8'€L LoLoL LOLOLSAS 000'6Za‘clL 058l L 000's28'cl vLoz/ioziLL folsi: 000'ge8'elL asn VN Mued Sn
anfep builue) # JudLuSaALY dISND  anjep el PIRIA Ayanjep ageq ?2Ud ajeq ajey anjep pajels ueipoisny / ddIsni) lanssj
Anb3 oysheq  Anmen paseyaing aselaind Jsauau|
Wpuog
Bunelado
6L02/0¢/LL

| ebed

yoday s einseas)

KouoBy Jomod eluiojijes UIsyLoN

B D e T rm.‘.-uu\
VdONI/
Wl B R

/



658'209'2

we gy:0L 610Z/0LITE

£5992 SAWSOVELE +02'619'T Lov'e z62'L €20Z/GL/90  006°€09°Z 8LOT/LLIBO  0SLT 000'009'C o08an WA Ueo" oK [Biopad

£86'88Y 1992 90Q.L08828 SPS'ZLS sev'e 8L2'L €202/L0/90  STL'veY 8L0Z/¥ZIIQ  06LT 000°005 o08n dno9 Apedoid vowis
€lg'o8y 16592 LOV90LYS9  062'80S soL'e et €202/L0/S0  0SE'08Y 8L02/60/S0  0STT 000'005 208N oup NN
s/¢e'68Y 12992 LMEZIELLE  O¥Z 20§ [ LT €20C/LO/V0  08L'v8Y 8L02/CZ/90  00S°C 000'00S o08n JlMIBS [a0ed payUNn
60v'coY 96592 84E0/9Y80 OLP'ELS sglL'e 00zt €202/5L/E0  08Z'06Y 8LOZ/B0O/S0  0SLZ 000'00$ 008n | kemeyieH aiysyieg
870'G6Y 66592 €HVOLEZOE 059°ZLS 550 98L'L €20Z/LO/E0  0.9'T6Y 8LOZ/60/S0  9ZLZ 000'00S 208n jetodioD |IqoW Uoxx3
SSv'Ley ¥299¢ 138¥6/2/L  00£'0LS olle g8l €202/82/20  §S9'/8Y 8l0Z/TT/90  009'C 000'00§ 008N ‘0] swelsAS 03s1y
9/8'0vS 8659Z 24/d€ET68  €1€'095 £02'e 9eL'L €202/0L/L0  VBT'9ES 8L02/60/S0  S29'T 000'0SS o0en Hpau Jojo ejoko )
82'v6Y 62992 ZWVOVLBSY SLS'LLS 0.0 oLL'L zeoTSLITL  00E'TeY 8L0Z/EZ/0  00LT 000'00§ o08n di10 18l
106'2¥2 2£992 90V0O9Z8Z6 8E9'95T 960°€ 60L'L z20emLZL  SLE'OVT 8LOZWZ/IL0  008'T 000'052 oo8n “ou] BSIA
182’68y €169 SEvQosyy. 0$6'G0S LoL'e 60"t TZOT/SLIB0  SOL'esy 81L0Z/v0Iv0 0.€7C 000'00S o08n abelo}s aland
£95'96Y 71592 9989/0/6y  S8Y'B0S 818z €16 TTOZIO/90  06Z'v6Y 8LOZWOMO  5Z9T 000'005 008N ‘au] jodaq sWwoH
Y986y 14692 83VAYEZL8 OVEDLS ool'e 258 ZTOZNOKD  00Z'L6Y 8LOZ/EOK0  0S6T 000'00S 208an apeluswyY gL
S61 26V 0£992 90AdB9YSC 016'£0S 98l'e ¥ze 2Z0ZIV0/E0  025'L8Y 8L0Z/¥eI/0  0SV'T 000°00§ 008n JAuedwog Aeusid YEm
609's6Y ¥2592 LvE8L6YES  080°20S 86.°C ¥o8 2202/2LIZ0  S6T'Teh 8LOTWOFO  SLET 000'00S ooan *dioD YosonIN
LBg'esy 0592 68V490v90 088'00S 000'€ 6LS 1202/€0/50  S0L'98% 8L0Z/COFO  0S0°C 000'005 ooan 0D UOJIaIN AN J0 Yueg
8E'6EL'L vEL9C LNMOOGELE 6LB'8YL'L 2.9 vee 0Z0zZ/0e/0L  69£'8TL°L 8L0z/0zZiZL  0EY'L 000°0GL°L o04dn By [UOEN [e13pad
020'0S. 11192 GSNOLEELE £86'05L 08T $8Z 0202/LLI60  S¥0'0SL 8L0Z/LT/LL  GL8T 000052 o08n e UB0T SWOH [esapad
G08'0L £200L €200/SAS G08'0L 2000 L 508°0L €L02/L0/0 2000 S08°0L oo8n ojlfeD J0 yueg uolun
orp'eT9’L 2200l TTOOLSAS 9orv'eza‘t ovv'e L orr'ez9'L €L0ZIVOIL0  oWbT oby'ETa'L Elval wysenu| Aouaby [eoo
uno2oy Bupuejeg vdos

vze'Lz $ vez'iz $ Wz I vee'Le $ oy 2T LT $ abesaAy pue [ejo) puny
vze'ie S¥00L SY00LSAS ¥2T'/C [ L yee'se €LOTILO/IL0  ovvT ¥2e' L2 unseAu AoueBy jeao
100y uoidNy HHO ddiNl
vev'eTr'le  $ avr'ore’'ss  $ T444 50§ 209'282°26  $ 0oLz §€6°202'26  $ abesaAy pue ejo) pung
000°005'L 6889C P4/HVOELE  G8G'BLP'L 666°1 29L°) ¥Z0Z/Z0/0L  000°'00S'L 6L02/70/0L 0002 000'00§‘L 008N g UBO SWOH Jesopad
000'000'L 18892 ZHOL9eZ68 0SE'€66 €2ET zoL'L ¥Z02/L2/60  000'000°t 6L0Z/22/60  0SLT 000°000°L 208n Wpa13 Jojoly ejofo L
000'00€'T 88892 0ZNXIEELE  2£9'982°2 068'L 2oL'L ¥202/L2/60  000°00€'T 610T//2/60  068'L 000'00€'2 208n paI) uned [esapad
000'000°c 98892 ZINGTTPLE 0SS'EB6'T 000C 09L'} ¥Z0Z/STI60  000°000°S 6L0Z/52/60  000°C 000°000°¢ ooan [einynouby jesepa
000°00L°L 2/892 95aM8Y090 /58'169°L 215T 652't ¥20ZIy2i60 000004} 6L02/72/60  00S°C 000'004'L 204n dioD eauswy Jo yueg
0zZT'ZL5 09292 81MHSCO9Y OLE'CES L95°€ £25'L ¥20Z/L0/20  0GS'VLS 6l02/5L/20  S.8'E 000°00S 208N uebio dr
000'6L2 50692 OAINDYELE ¥0O0'6LT 0002 62y'L €202/0e/0L  Q00'6LT 6L0z/0c/OL 0002 000'6LC o04n N UeaT aWioH [elapad
9ve'oLL'Y 02892 g19X68E89 SOE'BEL'Y 0€9C ¥8e'L €202/5L/I60  TSY'90L'Y 6lLOZ/LEISO  00V'T 000'SPL'Y 208n “diog epelO
852'096 Tl99z 90g8L6VES  08Y'S00°L Tile ope’L £202/80/80  0GE'LY6 8102/02/60 0002 000'000°L oo8n “dioQ yosoniy
000'000°L or99T LANHLEE06 02Z0'8¥0°L 66Ee LEE'L €202/72/L0  000°000°+ 8L0Z/E0/80 00V 000'000°L o0an jueg SN
€61 205 S1992 1Zve98/2y 0$9'€ZS Sl 192t €202/5LI50  STL'E0S 8LOT/CLIG0  GLEE 000'00S o08an Auedwo) AsysseH
1/8'00S 20992 ZOVHO0Y90 SL6'ECS Py jazAl} €20Z/88/Y0  §9T'L0S 8L0OZ/GLISO  00S°E 000'00S Q08N 00 UojlelN AN Jo ueg
anjep BuiAues # JUSWSIAU| dISnND  onjep 1dlen PISIA Aunyep ajeq 3sud ajeq ajey anjeA pajels ue|pojsny / avysni] Janss|
Ainb3 0) sheg Aunyepy paseyoind yaing 3salau|
«puog
Bunesado
6102/0¢/L)

7 obed

uoday stoinsead]

Kouaby Jamod eiuojijes ulaypoN

VK7



we gy:0L 6L0Z/0LIZL
9'TLS 15192 81MHGTO9Y OLE'ZES Ge5'e £26°L ve0e/L0/Z0  OZL'GLS 6L02/20/20  6/8°€ 000°00§ 208N ueBloN dr
162'90§ 95192 /8vdSzZeLL  0/8'825 6l€'e yLG'L ¥Z0Z/SZL0  06K'0S 6L02/20/20  0S9'€ 000°00$ 208N YN UEGHO
0z1's0S 8¢9z 6N3LROLLL 0ZL'LTS 8062 vae'L £Z0Z/SL/I60  0SZ'90S 6LOZ/OS/LO 00Z'S 000'005 208N U] J8zld
616'805 86192 SMIZYLIES 006'V2S v98'Z £0E'L £202/92/90  096'0LS 6L0Z/20720  00¥'E 000'005 208N RIRTEITVEY
$12'508 65192 SHYP9/99L 019'025 198 L0g'L £20ZYTI90  SZ0'L0S 610Z/20/20  16L'E 000'005 208n "di0Q uoiAeyD
008't8Y V9T LDHET0L60 G6E'96Y 626C z62') €20T/GL/I90  00G'LLY 6L0Z/0E/L0  S/8°L 000°006 20an ‘a0 Buteog
ove'orL 0.9z SYEYOLO9L  OVT'SeL 6567 9Tl £202/91/S0  0SL'8EL 6L0T/OE/L0  995T 000'052 008N “di0Q uoAsuD
86588 £8592 IEZIELLE  OVE'L0S svee Al €20ZLOMO  SEL'ES 8L0Z/92/0  00S'T 000°00§ 208N qnieg [82Jed PAIUN
Zvs'zeY 9592 SUH0/9V80 OLV'ELS £vT'e 00Z's €202/GL/E0 0TB'8SY 810Z/92/W0  062T 000°00§ 208N | Aemelge aaysieg
| AFardi4 18592 0494500V,  S0.'0LS gzze 8/L°L £202/12/20 ose'esy 8102/9¢2/v0 004L7C 000'00S 204N ou| Jiexeld
166'L6Y 6,592 SHEX68E89  GL'605 S6L°¢ [7AN} £20T/SLIT0 0SE'L8Y 8L0Z/9TW0  §29°T 000°00S 208N “dieQ speI0
oS vey 61592 /3VH90¥80  006'VLS szee §6L'L £20Z/62/L0  0BL'L6Y 8L0Z/92/V0  086'C 000°005 008N 00 UOJ[OIN AN J0 Jueg
Log'erL 18192 SINHLEE06 690°692 orl'e 611 £T0T/ET/LO  006'LYL 6L0Z/0€/L0 098'T 000°05L 208n “V'N ueg sn
LGL's6Y 8592 90V0928Z6 GLZ'ELS srL'e 601°L zz0zIYLITL  009'Z6Y 8L0Z/9Z/V0 008 000'00§ 208N U] esiA
oLL'L6Y 6€292 YMOdBIYSZ  0EL'Z0S 186 960'L 2Z0Z/L0ZL  0OV'6sY 6L0Z/0S/L0  0SET 000'00§ oo8n jAuedwod Aeusiq Hem
£61'005 ogsez pXOBPYELL 099'GLS £80'S 656 2202ILLIL0  OLE'00S 8L0Z/9Z/0  00L'S 000°005 208N "ouj oQsded
ory'e09'e 19v9Z BI0BLEELE  062'SLY'S 09L'L 226 7Z0Z/0L/I90  09S'PEY'E 1102/92/80  S2LT 0005258 208N eg UB0T WoH [eseped
vv9'ze0Y 59T LOOSEBLE0  SLL'OL0'Y 62€C 268 TT0Z/LLISO  BES'0ZO'Y 8L0Z/L0/Z0  00ET Zsv'seo'y 008N “oul 9|ddy
S18's6Y 2859 83IVAIEZL8 OVE'OLS geee z58 T20Z/LOM0  0S6'T6Y 810Z/9z/P0  0S6°C 000°00§ o08n spesjuswy QL
990'56¢€ 81597 LVE8LEYES ¥99'50Y 76T 08 2Z02/ZLZ0  08Y'LeS 810Z/9T/W0  SIET 000°00% 208N 100 YosoIN
000'621'6 SE€9T GHODJEELE Zv9'S80L'E 069’1 &5 LZ02/Z0/90  000'6ZL'6 9L02/20/90  089'L 000'6ZL'6 208N WpaIQ uue Je1apay
000°00€'} 89£9Z SMEEOYELE  699'€6T'L 0061 w5 1202/82/S0  000'00E’L 9102/0€/80 00§} 000°00€°L 208n BIw [euoneN eiapa4
000'Z9L's z8€92 GINEDIELE  LELTEL'S 529l £ 1202/5%/S0  00Q'T9L'S 910Z/52/50  ST9'L 000'29L'S 208N By JeuoneN [esapad
9/1'8L1'6 yse9Z 08dSVOELE 9£6'269'6 Ll Siy LZ0Z/6LILO  OPL'SLL'S 9L0Z/6VL0  00F'L 000'022'6 208N eg UBOT SWOH [eJapad
0Z6'c8T'Y 95£92 IdNDIEELE  ¥OB'SSTY £9t°L Siy LZ0Z/6L/L0  GLL'0STY 9L0z00Z/L0  ObY'L 000'682' 208N YpaID uue [eiapa4
0 15002 LG00ZSAS 0 0000 L 0 €L0Z/10/0 0000 0 asn Hueg sn
980'L€L'Z 61004 6L00ZSAS 980'LEL'T 2000 L 980'LEL'Z €LOZ/LO/L0 2000 980°LEL'Z 204n ojifeD Jo sjueg uoln
829°0¢£L'S 12002 LL00LSAS 829'0EL'S ov9Z L 829'08L'S 8LoZWLIZL  O¥9'Z 829'08L's dND WB 19SSV BIUIONED
299'0v2'yL 20002 0000LSAS 289°0VZ'¥L o'z L za9'0vz'yl €LOZILO/LO ST z8g'ove'L 4V wjsanul foueby [eoo
anlosay BupeladQ |eisuas
syv'svL'es  § 20L°v60'6  $ 126°Z szl 605°189'8Z  § 0997 L5Z'y98'sz  § abesaay pue [ejol pund
000°0SZ°L £/89¢C LANGTTVLE SIE'LYT'L 0007 09L't ¥20z/sT/60  000'0ST'L 6L0Z/52/60 0007 000'052"} o08n [esnnouBY fesspa4
000'005 16892 LaD196768 GIE'L6Y o'z 869'L ¥202/2//0  000'00S 6L02/52/20  OLbZ 000'00§ 208N ypaiD Jojo ejofoL
000'08L'Z 66292 yDOLOVELE 902'€8L'Z 0022 z19'L ¥ZOZ/OEPO  000'08L'Z 6L0Z/0E0 0042 000'08L'Z o08n JW UBOT BWoH [eJ8pad
000'000'C 86.9¢ CH.SOPELE 09L°v00'C €682 £86'L 20C/LOP0 000'000'2 6L0Z/L0/v0 0692 000'000°2 204N 3N UBOT SWOH [eiepad
000'000'C 16192 8r/SOVELE 08E'VD0'Z 0912 £85') pZ0ZILOKO  000'000°T 6L0Z/LOK0 091 000'000°2 208N YN UBOT SWOH [eloped
000'008'Z 66292 8OESOVELE  00V'V0S'Z 518 086’1 ¥Z0Z/8Z/Z0  000'00S'Z 6L02/82120  §/8°2 000'005°Z ooan N UBOT BWOH [esepad
000'000'2 98192 LAVOELE  026'220'C ool'e 8sy'L €202/82/CL  000'000'T 8L02/82/ZL  00b'E 000'000'Z o08n eg U0 SWoH [e1spa
G£6'005'Z 5992 9ZNSOVELE SLV'BIS'T 6£0°€ 99¢'L £202/82/80  0SZ'L0S'T 810z/82/80  0S0'E 000°005'2 008N N UBOT SWOH [elopa4
6v5°L6% 92992 €HALBOLL.  058'8LS ost'e T6T L £202/51/90  0S5'96Y 8L0Z/2Z/90  000°€ 000'00§ 208N ou} Jozld
anjep Bulkuey # JUSLU}SAAL] dISND  anjep 1axien PISIA Kunjepy ajeq aoud aeq ajey an[eA pajels ue|pojsny j dsnut Janss)|
Amnb3 oysheq  Aunjew p d y2nd Jsasa
«puog
1Un022y bupueieg vdos
610Z/0¢/L)

¢ abed

yoday sJainseal}
Kouaby Jomod ejuiojije uioyuoN

SN BENO R WY haiaan 3%,

VdON /



§90'98L°€0C $

09L'69€°v0Z  §

1202/22/1 1 Buipess Apspenb ajqe|ied
¥20Z/S0/} uo 8|qe|leD
0202/0¢/ Uo 8jqefied

0202/20/01 Buine)s swidue sjqe|ed

120¢//2/60 Buntels sumAue sjqe|ed
1.202/42/60 buness Alenuue-iwes ojqe|ed
0202/52/60 Buntels Ajlenuue-jwas sjqejied
020z/5z/60 Bunuels Ajlenuue-lwas s|qejed
1202/¥Z/60 Bue)s Ajlenuue-(was s|qe|led
0202/92/8 Bunels Aepenb sjqejed
£202/1 1/1.0 Uo 8jqejed

120Z/5¢/. Buiuess Ajlenuue-jwss s|qejed
1202/G2// Buels Alenuue-jwss ajqe|ied
€202/S1/1 uo 8|qe|ed

0202/0¢/ uo s|qejied

0202/0€/¥ U0 8jqe|ied

0202/L0/t uo 8jqe|ied

0202/1.0/t uo diqe|led

0202/0Z/ uo d|qe|ed

0202/82/Z uo ajgejed

0202/SL/9 uo ajge|ed

£202/€2/9 uo djqeed

Apspuenb gjgejien

- Aueuenb sigejen

awnAue sjqelien

mE_ch a|qgelied

wE_fA:m alge|led

Auauenb sigeljen

we 6p:01

ANdFf
MNVESN
OWTHA
g1H4
a044d
V1OACL
ONV4
OWvd
ove
OWv4d
LINM
Y1LOAOL
VLOAOL
1040
OWTH4
OWTHA
OWTHA
OWTHA
OdSH
g1Hd
OWTHA
asn
OWTHA
YIANNA
4044
g1Hd
g7THd
VNS

6L0zZ/0LITL

CLB9T #uswisanu|
9069¢ uUsWISaAU|
G069C #uswWisaAu|
6889¢ suUsWISOAU|
8889Z #jusulsaau|
/8892 fusunsaAu|
9889¢ #UsWsaAU|
£189¢ #uUswisaAuU|
¢/189¢ HusWiSaAu|
1 /89T #IUSWISaAU|
81789¢ #UBWISSAU]
L 789C# JUSUNSSAU|
L €89¢# Jusunsanu|
0289¢# Jusiisanu|
9189¢7# Juawisanu|
66.9Z# JusWisaAu|
86.9C# JUsWiSSAU|
£6/9¢# JusuSaAU|
YGL9T# JuswisaAu|
9€/9¢# JusunsaAu|
€G99¢# JUsLISaAU|
9Y99¢# JusWisaAU|
G8E9CH# JUBUIISOAUY
89COCH# JUBWISAAU|
9GEITH JUSUSaAU|
GGEQZ# JUBUNSOAU|
#GE9TH JUBIISBAU]
CEEICH JUBUSOAU|

6L0Z/OC/LL 3O SE [eLINOF 192.4S || 243 WoJj saoLid PIq 40 SJUaale)S UeIPo)SNY 09)SNI] WoJj saoud uo paseq si anjeA Ja3JeR Juaung

*poyzoW JoBXa Ue 3SN SIBLY0 [[e ‘poyjaw ajewixosdde ue asn Ajnjews 0} SYIUOW g UBL] SSI| Y3m SIUSWISIAU]
sadA} Jje usamyaq uospedwos Joj siseq e aplaosd o) Jeak Aep Gag e UO paseq umoys st Ajunje 0} plaiA Juajeainby puog,

€12 059 1eLv96°202 § 89L'C 852°c85°€0Z § :STVLOL ANVHD
p16'616'9L 88¢'L0z'2L § 1602 819 L6v'896°9L § 690°C 8v8'886'aL § abelaAy pue jejoL pund
000'005°} z169T 6YINOSZL8Y 090'v6L'L 98e2 £z8'L ¥20zZ/LT/lL  000°00S'L 6L02/.2/LL  00ET 000°008'} o04n uebiol dr
000'000'L 06892 P4/HVOELE  06E'086 666'L 1971 ¥20Z/20/0L  000'000'L 6L0Z/70/0L 0002 000°000'L oo4an g UBOT] SUIOH [2Japad
000'000'¢ 11892 YOMEZZYLE 050'896'2 0oL oeL'L ¥202/92/80  000°000'€ 6L02/92/80 0012 000°000'€ oo8an lesnynouby |esepad
000°052 Ly89Z 109195268 €£90°0F/ o'z 869'L v20z/sz/t0  000'0SL 6L02/52/L0  OLYZ 00005 008n WpauD Jojoly ejoko L
000'00S 91892 POOLOVELE  058°005 00 431 pZOZ/OSPO  000'00S 6L0Z/OE/G  00LT 000008 2008n W UBO) BWOH [esapa4
000002} 5292 ZOONSEVOy €92'269'L €05°¢ Tl ¥202/02/20  000'00L'L 6L02/02/20  000°€ 000'002°L 208N ONI VSN 28SH
SLY'Zor 90692 SAHHBSLL6 0EE'TOy €60'C 1T8'y ¥20T/S0/20  Z98'Tor 6L0Z/LE/0L  GIEE 000°0bY 208N VN Mued sn
anjep Buikued # jusunsoAu] diSND  onjeA Jotse PIRIA Aunjep ajeq 9oUd ?jeq ajey anjeA pajels UBlPO}SND / d9ISNIL Jenss|
Ainbg 0} sheq Aungep paseyaing aseyaing Jsasa3ut
+puog
aAlasay BunyesadQ [eisusn
6102/0¢/L)

p abed

Hodoy sJainseal]

Aouaby Jomod elulojijen uiayuon

AL IR

VdON



we 05:0L 610Z/0L1ZL

000'05Z LLeoe VO1LE9L6YE E£PL'6SZ 2% £00°L 2202/0£/80  000'0S2 210Z/0£/80  0SL'E 000'052 208N sueg obie siepm
0L9'098 66592 LOOEEBLED  622°0.8 6zeT 268 TT0ZILLISO  £11'098 L10Z/62/LL  00ET 112'198 oo8n "ou| 3jddy
6LL'ghL £5592 0AIUEGESY 598852 £0L'E 6€L LZ0Z/60/CL  OSY'SEL 8L0Z/SLIED  0SS'T 000'052 o08n VN ueg ONd
000'052 zLe0e VZDIOL00Z0  €52'S5C z00°€ 8¢€9 LZ0Z/08/80  000'0S2 8L0Z/0£/80  000°€ 000'052 208n ueg Ay
000'000'2 69€92 EMEEDYELE  09Z'066'L 005°L #¥5 LZ02/8T/IS0  000'000°C 9L0Z/0£/80  005'L 000'000'2 008n Bi feuoneN |esepas
908’6V 12,92 SN3L9ET68 022205 9.z 66v LZOZ/ELIPO  QOE'9BY 8L0Z/0E/LL  096'C 000°005 208N P10 JOJOIN BI0AG L.
£9%'96Y 9229z LODMS9920  SZE'¥0S $92'€ [5>4 L20z/eLZ0  00S'Esh 8L0Z/0S/LL 0692 000'005 208N UBUl4 BPUOH UEdUBWY
005'se €002 YE00LSAS 00S'GE 2000 3 005'GE €L0Z/LO/L0  Z00°0 005'GE 2o08n oyleD jo ueg uolun
z8y'soy 12002 1200/SAS Z8v'Gop orr'e L z8¥'59Y €L0Z/L0/0 oY z8b'gop 41 wysaAuj Kousby eoo
oAlosay Buluoissiwwosag 099

000'00S‘L $ 0go‘00s’t  § 1oLz sig 000°005°L  § 0oLz 000005t  § abeiany pue jejoL pund
000°005'} £6892 yS1OVOELE 0£0'005'L 0oL [e{%-] 120Z/6C/Y0  000°008°L 6L0Z/0E/IL0  00L'T 000'00°L 208n eq Ueo] SWoH [eJepa4
0 S100. SLOOLSAS 0 2000 L 0 €LO0ZM0/L0 2000 0 o08n opileD jojueg uon
aAI9SOY jeloeds [ewiayjoan)

opLost'E  $ 6c015'L  $ 6611 z€ 96l'sk'L  $ 99/°L o0o0‘esy’L  $ abesaAy pue jejo) pung
S¥5'062 85892 09¥96£€ELE  L09'06C g6L'L € 0Z02/Z0/L0  591'682 6L02/92/80  08L'L .000'162 1asn N uB0] BWOH [esepad
061'26C ££892 0DMIBEELE 666267 ¥002 ze 0202/20/L0  2E¥'062 6L02/52/L0  096'% 000'€62 1asn JN UBOT BWOH |esepady
085682 96892 VOOUVBEELE  €09'682 1591 e 0Z0ZROMO L1682 6L0Z/62/0L  0E9'L 000'062 18asn eg Uo7 oWoH fesspad
605682 14892 VOOUVBEELE £09'68C Lye'L ze 0Z0Z/0/L0 18%'88T 6L02/52/60  S06°L 000'06Z 1asn eg Ueo aUIoH [esspad
229'88¢ 71692 VIINYEEELE €£9'88C ves'L o sLoz/LElCL  1iS'882 6L02/L2ILL 0.5} 000'682 18sn eg Ueo aWoH [eJepad
90IAI9G 3090 VY9ILOT 09D

1£0'€29  § 8sl'ez9  $ 008'L 2 106029 $ 99} 000'vz9  § abelany pue [ejol pund
908's2L 16892 0DM96EELE  08'EZL S6L°L 4 0202/Z0/L0  8LZ'ezl 6L0Z/92/80  09L'L 000'v2L 18sn N UBOT] BWIOH [esopad
622'92L 7£892 0OMO6EELE  928'92L ¥00'2 z¢ 0Z0Z/20/L0  /88'6ZL 6L02/52//0  096'L 000221 14sn W U0 BWOH [elepaS
0z8'szL 56892 VOOUVBEELE 0£8'EZL 1691 ze 0202/20/L0  Se9'€TL 6L0Z/62/0L  0S9'L 000'v2L 1asn eg U0 8WOH [esopady
882'CL 9/89¢ VOOMPBEELE 628'F2L Ly6°L 4 020Z/20/L0  SPE'TL 6L0Z/52/60  VO6'L 000's2L Lasn eg Ue0] 9WOH |eJepad
8€8'8ZL £1607 VI3HpeEELE EVB'ETL 6571 V3 6L0Z/LEZL  9l8'tTL 6LOZ/LTLL OS5 000'v2L 14asn g UB0T WOH |esspad
9IAISS 302Q VT 102 09O

898°669 $ 8vS‘L0L $ 9661 6£T Lel‘s69 $ ove'L 000°60Z $ abeJaAy pue [ejo) pund
898669 05892 OXZPBEELE 8¥S'LOL 966'L 6€Z 020Z/22120  LEL'SE9 6L02/08/L0  OV6'L 000'60L asn g UBOT BUWOH |elepad
anjep bulAuesn # JUsWSaAU| dISND  enjep el PISIA Aanjey aeqa aold ajeq a1y anjep pajels uelpoisng / d9)snaL Janssj

Ainbg 0} sheq Aunyey paseyaind aseyaind JsaJaju]
puog
pung uononiisuo)d Z10Z 039
6102/0¢/LL

| offed

uoday s sinseas]
Aouaby lamod elulojifen ulayuon

A bl

SR




0202/z1/50 Bundels Ausuenb sige|ien
020Z/6¢/1 uo e|qe|led

0z02/20/01 Buipess swijhue sjqe|ied
0202/20/01 Buiels swihue sjqe|ied
0202/52/60 Buntels Ajjenuue-iwes sjqejied
0202/6¢/1.0 Buiptels Auispenb sjqejied

we g5:0L

OWTHA
q7THd
g7THd
g1H4
ONV4
g1H4

120Z/Ge/L bunuess Ajjenuue-iwss sjqele) VIOAOL

020¢/0¢/¥ Uo 8|gejied

020¢/1 0/t uo ajqejied

0c0¢/1L0/v uo sjqejied

L20z/cz/L Buels swnAue sjge|jed
Ausuenb sjgejen

Alssuenb sigejjen

6L0Z/0E/LL  JO SE Jeuinor Joa.S [leM 2Y3 Wodj saalid pig Jo 1S ueipolsny j23)

OWTHA
OWTIHA
OWTH4
9244
YIANS
YIANS

6L0Z/0L/Z)

0169¢2# JUswisaAu|
£069¢# Jusuisaau]
L 689¢# jusisaAU}
0689¢# JusWisanu|
¥289¢# JuBWlISaAu|
£G89¢# Juswiysaau|
CP89CH# Jusisany|
6189¢2# Juswisanu|
81.89¢C# Jjuswisanu|
L189¢# juswisanuj
PY99c# JusuIsaAu]
69E9C# Jusisanu|
£EEOTH# JUswsanu|

1 woJj sasud uo paseq si aNfeA J3JEW JuaLINg

‘pOYJaLL JOBXA UR ash SI3YJo e ‘poyjaw ajewrxosdde ue asn AjLinjew 03 SYHUCW 9 UeY} SSI| YIM SJUILUSAAU]
sadA} [le usamjaq uosueduwios 10} siseq e aplaoid o} Jeak Aep Go¢ & Uo paseq umoys s| AJnjey o3 pjaIA Juajeainby puog,

yve'sze'or  § ‘pes'seELLe  $ (4144 el 1£2'688'97  $ €18T £61'686'9 $ :$7TVLOL ONVHD

(74413 0L9'ss5°L  $ yzo'L 625 266185t  $ 229l 000's8s’t  § obesany pue [ejoL pund
000°2LS°L £€€9Z GINEDOELE  66E'805°L SZ9'L L¥S 1202/ST/S0  000°2LS'L 9L02/52/50 529k 000°218'L Lasn Iy feuonen [esepe
242’59 19892 10196/TL6 L/T'S9 085t 95z 0Z0Z/SL/80  966'%9 6L0T/92/80 LGSl 000'99 asn Ainses1] 's'n
JUN022Y YSA V10T 099

Lzo'sL0'be $ evi'ogZ’lic $ 9T sect Loy'syole $ €25C g6LoLLiz § abeiaAy pue [ejoL pund
qEv'666'L vv99Z ¥LNFIEELE 09L'YPO'E Ssve 190'2 §20Z/ET/L0  0OE'666'L 810Z/L2/L0  0SV'E 000'000'2 o08an WpaI) Wie [elapad
000'709'L 0169C LONNOVELE  1T6°265°L yrLT 808'L vZ0Z/ZUVL  000'P09'L 6L0Z/ZULL  000C 000'709'+ oo8n N UeoT SWOH [esepad
000°076 10692 9SOHVOELE ¥98'5E6 vzL'z vel'l ¥z0zZ/6Z/OL  000'0V6 6L02/0E/0L  STLZ 000°0v6 ooan g UE0T SWOH [eJopad
000°000°} 16892 y4/HVOELE  06€'986 666°'L 197 ¥202/20/0L  000'000°L 6L0Z/F0/0L 0002 000'000°L oo8n eg Uea] SWoH |esapa
000°052 ¥2892 L3NgTTrie  88e'svs 000 09L'L ¥202/5e/60  000'052 6102/52/60  000T 000'05.2 oo8an leimnouby esspe
000'005 zv89z 109196268 GLE'L6Y oLz 869'L ¥20z/ST/L0  000'00S 6102/62//0  0L¥'T 000005 008n Wpa1d Jojop BoA0L
000°096'L 61892 YDOLOVELE ZEE'S96'L 0042 [4X-Y ¥TOT/OE/YO  000'096'L 6LOCIOE/F0  00LT 000°096'% oo0an A UeoT] BWOH [eJepad
000'000'2 8189z ZH.SOVELE 09L'%00'T £68'Z £85'L ¥20Z/L0/Y0  000°000'T 6L0Z/L0/F0  0S9T 0000002 208an W\ UB0T BWoH |esspad
000'000't 11892 8rLSOVELE  061'200°1 092 €951 ¥20Z/LO/70  000'000'L 6L0Z/L0/Y0 Q9L 000°000°} o08n A UBOT SWOH [esepad
000052 vleoe VpESDZLELL  €85'€9C Log'e 9/€'L £202//0/60  000'0SZ 8L0Z//0/60  QOL'S 000052 208n YN Ueamd
000'052 60€0€ VedO18/26T 8v9'29C £0T'e 89¢'L £20Z/0E/80  000°0ST 8102/0€/80 00T 000°052 208N VSN ueqieul
2c6'L6Y 8v592 OHVHZEBYY SOV'ELS opLe £olL £202/90/20  0Z8'96Y 8L0Z/5L/0  0O0'E 000'005 oodan 71 HPeID !
806'cL 6v592 13VHO0r90  0SETLL 622°€ S61°L £202/62/L0  OL9'OVL 8LOZ/SLIE0  0S6'C 000'05.2 oodn 00 UOJIBINL AN JO Yueg
25e'erL 05592 8ly3zerre €/1'89L voL'e £51°L €202/.2/L0  svLl'eEl 8102/5L/€0 008 000052 o04an 0 fendeg aseaQ uyor
09€'98L 1669T YMOdBOrSE  $69°09.L y00°€ 960'} Teae/Lo/Zl  085°8CL 8L0Z/SLED  0SET 00005 208n Aueduiod Aeusiq Hem
000'05¢ £1€08 V8WLELOYGT 0SL'6ST zsLe oLo's TT02/90/60 000052 8L02/90/60  0SL'€E 000052 ooan Jueg JeAoasIq
000'052 0L£0¢ VE4VOEOL6E  8/F'8ST 150°¢ #00'} 2T0T/LE/80  000°052 810Z/LE/30  0S0°€ 000'052 oogn ueg YLoN el
anjep Bulhued #Juawysanu] dISND  °nfep el PIBIA Aunyey B 90ud ajeq ooy anjep pajels UR[pO3SND [ 22)SNIL Jenss|

Ainb3 oysheq  Aungen paseyoing aseyaind Jsasejuf
.buog
aAl9S9Yy Buluoissiwwosaq 099
6L02/0¢/LL

Z obed

yoday s ainseas
Kouaby 1omod ejulojjjes uiayloN

a8 Yoabe W haZnia it/

VdON./

Fv




we 0g:0b 610Z/042L

61L0Z/0S/LL 1O SE [eunor J9a.)S [leAA 2Y3 wody s3a1d Piq 4o SJUAWALEIS UBIPOISND /33)SNIL Wols saolid Uo paseq Si dnjeA Jo)ep Jualind

*poyjaw Jaexa ue asn sIayjo |je ‘poyiew ajetuixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o) SYIUOW 9 URY) SSI] UM SJUSLUISIAU]

sadAy e \Jaq uosued Joy siseq e apiaoisd o} seak Aep gog B uo paseq umoys si Ajunjely o} pJatA Jusjeainbl puog,
Lle'e8y  $ 0008y $ 90L°L l zeT'esy $ 089k 000°v8Y $ :$TVLOL ANVHD
Lig'ssy § 000v8y  § 9021 1 zeT'ssy $ 089'L 000'v8y  § sbeiany pue JejoL pung
1/6'e8y 00692 V9Zdv8eeLe 000'v8Y 90L°L L 6L0Z/20/L zez'esy 6102/62/101 089°L 000'v8Y 1asn eg UeoT elloH [elepad
anjep buiien # JUBUEISBAU| dISND  onjeA 1@dael PISIA Aunjepn ajeq adld ajeq B anjep pajels ue|poIsny / 9d)sniL 1anss|
Anb3 0} sheg Aunjep paseysing aseyaing 323U
«puog
a21AI9g JgaQ sanijioey dep
6L0zZ/0¢N L

sty sl kw s Y _lbivu‘:..
uoday sainseail VdON

Aouaby 1emod ejuiojien UISYUON
| obed



€50'8pL'L

we 0s:0L

6lLoz/oLizs

6/892 VOOUVBEELE  GTH'BYL’L 6L ze 0Z0Z/20/L0  GL6'EVL’L 6L0Z/ST/60  ¥06'L 000051 lasn 6 UBDT BUIOH [eJepad
Los'ryLL 91692 ViIdpeeele GrS'rrLL 65l o BLOZ/LECL  LOEPPL'L BLOZILT/LL  0L5°L 000'9L'L 1asn eg UEOT BUIOH [eJepad
921198 1990 V8L0Z 04PAH

z6£'985'9  $ col'ges'e  § £88°L ze 6887059 § SpgL 000°2¥8's  § abesaay pue [ejoL pung
§52'v6. 65892 0DMO6EELE  606'P6L S6.°L ze 0Z02/20/L0  086°06. 6L02/92/80  09L'L 000'96. 1asn N U0 BUIOH |elaped
S80°918'2 €892 09Y9BEELE  GEL'LLB'T ¥00Z e 0Z0Z/Z0/L0  TLT'96L'T 6L0Z/ST/ILO0  096'L 000128 1asn 1N UeoT sWoH [esepad
058'26. 16892 VIOUVBEELE  TL6'T6L 159'L e 0Z0Z/20/L0  €99'16L 8L0Z/6ZI0L  0EY'L 000'V6L lasn g UBO BWOH [eJapad
259'76L 81897 VOOMVBEELE  606'76L 6L ze 0Z0Z/Z0/L0  0E8'16L 6100/5T/60 Y06l 000'962 Lasn eg U207 SWOH [e13pad
880°9vS 29892 GIYIBEELE  GOE'OVS 5v0°Z 0 BLOZ/LEMTL  OZTE'THS 6LOZ/0E/L0 000 000'2vS 1asn VW UBOT SWOH [esapa4
796162 51697 VI3UPBEELE £66'L6L ¥65°L o€ 6LOZ/LEZL  vTR'L6L 6L0Z/TILL  0.5T) 000'€6. 18sn £g U20" BUIOH [e19pa
921A198 )goQ O4pAH

zsz'8oLy  § 608'ciLy  § 9267 s§ 688'95LY  § BLET 000°LLLY  § 9besany pue fejoL pund
260'Y9v'2 19292 edvMIEELE L/6'8OV'T 6152 €L 0Z0ZTLZ0  £6Y'YOr'T 610272120 0VST 000'79Y'Z asn upaiQ Wied jesepad
SSL'p0LL 15892 GIHOBEELE  ZEB'VOL'L sv0'T o€ BLOZ/VE/ZL  96E'269'L 6L02/0E//0  000Z 000'202°L asn JN UBO BWoH [e1apad
e Jeniu] 0ipAH

5Z0'908'9L  § oL2'zee'sl  § 5292 5i8 ges'eaL'ol  § 06t°'Z £ze'cla'ol  $ abesany pue jeo) pund
000'000'C 47174 OMMAVOELE 02L'200°T ool'e 0zs't ¥20Z/6Z/L0  000'000°T 6L02/62/L0  00L'E 000°000°Z oo08n BE UEOT SWOH [215pad
000'c1S'L 02892 ZODIIEELE SLOELS'L 06L'Z St €Z0Z/SLILL  000'ELS'L 6L0Z/EZ/80  06L'T 000°eLS't 208N 1pa1] Ulted [eIopaZ
000'005*+ 10292 GYAIVOELE 0S6'OLG'L 0sz'e 8iv'L €Z0Z/6L/0L  000'00S'L 8lLoz/ELI0L 05T 000°005'L 208n eg UB0 GWOH |elapad
815'veS 75992 00309LY6L  269'vSS S86C el €202/L0/50  099'8TS 8L0Z/60/80  00L'Z 000°05§ 208n 00 entjowled-ejebjod
ylg'e8y 02992 LMEZLELLE  OV2'20S z8Le 0z £ZOZ/LOKO  006'v8Y 8LOZ/ELIS0 005 000'005 208n s (a0ed Payun
12v' L6 59T PMEEZ0L60 OSZOLG 116 9Ll SZOZILO/EO  0L0°96Y 8L0ZMwLIE0  008C 000°00S 208n "00 Buieog
1y9'26Y Sv59Z GHEX68E89  GV.'605 1zLe zLL'L £202/5L20  SLr'ssy 8LOZWLIED 529 000°00§ 208N ‘dio) speI0
26526V 61992 §1319€268 $9E'LLG size 2811 €20Z/LL/ILO  00L'68Y 8LOZ/EL/Y0 00T 000005 208N Upeud Jojoly ejokoL
S9v'96Y 14592 90V09Z8e6  SLTELS L150°€ B804'L zzozivliel  0Lb'vey 8L0Z/VL/IED  008'T 000'005 208N “ou] esIA
000°00€"L L169T 0AdNOVELE BL'66'L 006} 620k zTozvLILL 000°C0E'L 6L0Z/VLLL  006'L 000°00€'L 208n N UEOT BWOH [e1opad
98LL6Y 9p59T sEvaosry. 0S6°G0S 150'€ 6L0't TT0TISLIB0  0L1'S8% 8LOZ/VIED  OLET 000°00S 208N ebelo}s oliand
LY8'2YS 15992 LOHHESLLE  080°€9S zel'e se8 T20ZISLIS0  209'0YS 8L0z/0L/80  000°€ 000'055 o08n Hueg SN
prL'yey 12992 LPVOLEZOE 00Z°905 6T oz8 T202/90/S0  0SE'06Y 8L0Z/EL0  LBET 000°005 o08n tetodiod) ligoj Loxx3
z5l'sey 81992 SOVNOEEL0  090'905 viee oL 2202510 OTY'ssy 8L0Z/ELI90 529 000005 o08n i1 g Bupjueg youeig
955'266'L 60692 S6MHIEELE  95F'966'L 909'L oee 0202/92/0L  £5L'266'} 6L02/90/LL  0SL'L 000'566'L 208N paIQ uue [esopas
00v'ZL L£00L LEODLSAS 00F'ZL 2000 L oov'zh €L0Z/L0/L0 2000 aov'zL 208N ofed Jo yueg uolun
£25'es'e 82002 8Z00LSAS €Z5'ESY'S o'z L £25'€5t'E €LOT/LOIL0  SvT £25'eSY'e Elval wisau| fousby [eaoT]
anjep buiued # uawsaauy dISND  anfeA Jxel PIRIA Aumen ajeq 22ud sjeq ey en[eA pajels [DLETGYESTOTY Jonss|

Ainb3 0} sheg Aunjey paseysing aseysing pLEYES T |
.puog
01pAH aAlasay "Aa(q [ended
6102/0€/LL

| abed

uoday s Jainseai]

Kouaby Iomod elulojijen UisyLoN

B e T T L]

VdON



Wwe 05:0L sloz/olich

000051 G/89¢ QOHMIEELE 6T8'6YL 0s8°'L €c8 <20T/e0/e0 000'0G 4 6102/€0/60 0s8’L 000'081 asn Upald uue |esopay
£29°'L26'€ 2985¢C 2aqv3LELE Z62'986'E 08eT viL TCOZIELINO  TEZ'9Z6'E zL0Z/60/20 ST 000'826'S asn N UBO] BWOH [e4apad
000'v6 65£92 16SEDYELE  TSO'EH 0€5'L 509 L202/82/20  000'v6 oL02/82/L0 08’} 000'#6 asn Bi feuonen lesepady
166°GL 6€59T OXEBZBTLE OVEOVL 1522 g4 L20eI5HZ0  Z66'SYL 8102/2/20  0STT 000'otL asn Ainsesiy 's'n
s70'001 yreoT 62533€ELE  990°00L 089'L 9T 0Z0T/v0/80  628°00) S10Z/82/80  0SL'L 000°00L asn 1p91D) Wiied feseped
VYSa z10Z 04pAH

0 $ 0 $ Pree—. e 0 $ R 4 $ abeiany pue fejoL pung
0 1906/ L906/SAS O 0r0'0 L i €L02/L0/0  0v0'0 0 asn Aueg sn
aauenssj Jo 1809 Z10Z 0IpAH

000°008't  $ 0c0‘005°L  § 10L'Z SLs 000°00s'L 0012 000'00S‘t abeJany pue ejo) pung
000°005°t 5892 YSIOVOELE 0S0°005'L 0oL Slg 1202/62/Y0  000'005'} 6L0Z/08/.0  00LT 000°005'} 008N eg Ueo" ailoH |esepad
0 91002 9100/SAS O 200°0 3 Q €L0Z/L0/0 20070 o 208N ofileD Jo dueg uoun
0 €000 0000LSAS O 11€70 3 0 SL0ZIL0IL0  LLE0 0 Elval ugsanu| Aouaby [eooT
oAl9saYy |e199dg oupAH

1z8'keL $ eozL $ 8071 €65 vzL'ezl  $ 1981 000z, $ abelaAy pue [ejof pung
£76'689 zevoe SVEBOVELE 820689 062t 119 1202/60/80  LBE'LE9 1102/88Y0 687} 000'689 asn WA UBOT SWOH [elepad
8.8'1¢ 89892 ¥9196/216 688'LE 2L 18 0202/02/Z0  gel'le 6L02/92/80  069'L 000'ze asn Ainseaul ‘SN
JUNO22Y 9jeqay VZ10Z OIPAH

SLLTYOY  § £ES'SVO'y  $ 66L°L e pe6'szo’y  § G9L°L 000'6¥0y  § 9BEIAAY pue [ejo) puny
1€2'608 19892 0DYOBEELE  688°608 S6L°L ze 0Z0Z/20/L0  §88'G08 6L02/92/80  09L'} 000118 1gsn N UB0T BWOH |eiapa4
785718 9£892 0DMOBEELE  $88°CL8 ¥00'Z 43 020Z/20/L0 §98'908 6L02/5Z/0 656} 000718 18sn WA UBOT BWOH [esapad
628'908 66892 VOONYBEELE £68'008 1890 43 020Z/20/L0 229508 6L0Z/62/0L  0E9'L 000808 1asn B UBOT BWOH [esopad
829'808 08892 VOOUPSEELE  068'808 176L 43 020Z/20/L0  L5L'508 6L0Z/52/60  G06'L 000018 18sn g UB07 BWOH jesepsy
SP6'v08 11692 VIIHPeEELE 9/6'%08 ¥65'L og 6L02Z/LE/ZL  S08'¥08 6L0ZILZILL 051 000'908 lgsn g UBOT] SWOH [Bs0pad
921198 199Q V6102 04pAH

90TvL's  § 9gZ'evl's  $ 66L°L [44 g05'zeL's  § 591 000°152's  $ abelaay pue |ejol pund
66L'6YL'L 09892 0DMO6EELE EZV'BYL L G6L'L [45 0T0Z/ZO/L0  MpL'evL'L 6102/92/80  BSLL 000°LGL'L 18sn A UBOT] SBWOH [e1epa4
986'€51°L SE89T 0DNH9BEELE  SLP'PSL'L ¥00'C 43 0T0Z/ZONLO  L98'SPL'L 6102/52/0 096} 000'951 ‘L lasn A UBOT SWOH [eI8peS
leg'opL’) 86892 VOOMPEEELE  JZhOpL'L 1591 43 0Z0Z/20/L0  L29'¥pl'L 6L0Z/62/0L  089'L 000'8YL'L 18sn g U807 SWIOH [esopad
anjep bwAue) # JuBySdBAL] diISND  aneA e PISIA Aunyepn ajeq 2ouUd ajeq ayey anjep pajeis uelpoISNY / 93ISN4 L onss|

Amnbgz o0} sheq Kungep paseyaing aseyaind JELYCHT |
-buog
991A198 1420 V810Z 04PAH
6L0Z/0¢/LL

¢ ofbieq

uoday s ainseal]

AouaBy 1oMOd BIUIOY[ED UIBUHON

S5 N N B e R

VdON



we 05:0L 6Loz/oLreL

020z/7L/20 Buiels Apspenb sjqelled  OWTHA | L69Z# UBWISaAU|
0202/€0/60 1oye swilAue pue uo 8|qe|ed 9044 G/89Z# JusLSaAy]
swpAue s|qeiled 9044 0/89Z# JUSWISOAU|

0202/6¢/1L0 Butels Apspenb sjqeied  glHd $5892# JUBWISOAU|
Apspenb s|qeed  g1H4 2v/9T# Juswisaau|

020Z/61/0L INun 8|qe(ed  gTH- L0L9Z# JuswseAul

Apspenb siqejed  VINNS BGE9Z# UBLIISSAU|

610Z/0€/LL  Jo SE [euInor J9a1S [JeM dU3 Wol) saaud plg 40 SJUSWRNE}S Uejpojsny feajsnu) wolj saopd uo paseq S| anjeA RN JuLND

- "poyjauli JOBXS U SN SI24J0 jje ‘poyjawr Ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjew o} SHUOW 9 UBYJ SSI| UM SJUIWISIAU]
sadf) Jle usamiaq uosueduiod Joj siseq e apjacad o) Jeak Aep G9¢ & UC paseq umoys st Ajnjely 0} pJaIA Judjeainb3 puog,

obe'vee'sy $ 'e8L6lL'vy  § oz vsv zeo'zeg'sy § 9l £26°080vy  $ 1$VLOL ANYYO
S99°LIY'Y  $ g8’y § j<4x4 [57] ess'oly'y  § Lze'z ooo‘sivy  $ abesaAy pue jejol pung
anjep buiAued # JUSWIISIAU| dISND  anjeA e PIBIA Aunep 3jeq ?aud sleq ey anjep pajeis UBIPOISNY  dd)SNI} 1nss|
b3z o0} sheg Aunzey paseyaing yosind JsaJapu|
“puog
V¥Sa 102 0ipAH
6L02/0¢/L L )
A b bl T s 9
Hodoy s,Jeinseas) VYdON

AouaBy Jomod eruiojijen uiayuoN
¢ obeyd



we 150} 610Z/0L/ZL
¥86°20¢ oveez V9Zdy8EELE  000'E0E 086'L L 6L0Z/20/ZL  278°008 8L02/SZ/L0  6E6'L 000'€0€ Lasn g UBOT BWOH [elepa
pund sa v.i0¢ L#enss| 031
evs'zes’s  § 9zL'iee’'s  § syl 1 60§°'k2E's ¢ szvlL ozi'iee's ¢ abesaAy pue [ejoL pung
£96°28. £069Z V9ZdV8EELE  000'€8. 9021 L 6L0Z/20/ZL  85.'L8L 6L0Z/62Z/0L  089') 000'€8Z 18sn &g UeoT 8o |esepe
856'8. #8892 V9ZdY8EELE  000'V8L eve’L L 6L0Z/e0/ZL  ZLM'L8L 6L0Z/52/60  OLEL 000'v82 1asn eg UeoT 3WoH [elepe
096'68. 59897 V9ZAPBEELE  000'982 lech! | 6L0Z/20/2L  LZV'Z8L 6L0Z/92/80  0L8) 000982 18sn g UBOT BWOH |eJeped
96°081') 6€89C VOZdY8EELE 000'18L'L 086'L L 6L0z/Z0/L  9TLTLL'L 6L02/52/0  Ov6') 000'L8L'L 18sn g UBOT] 9WOH [esopod
92.'¢08'} z106. ZLOBLSAS 9z.'€08't 009°0 L 92/'c08'} €L0Z/LOMO 0090 9z.'s08'L asn ISty jueg SN
pund s@ 90102Z 2# dnss| 931
el8'sey  § 6l8'sey  § 009°0 L 6l8'ssy  $ 009'0 eLg'sey  § ebeiaAy pue Jejol pung
6.8'SEY L106L LL06ZSAS 6/8'SEY 0090 L 6/8'GEV €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 6.8'EY gsn IsnuL yueg Sn
pund sa voLozZ 2# onsst 937
gee'lop's  § Zg'ov's ove’l L 6Ts'syr's  $ 0ze'L Leglov'e § abeIaAY pue |ejo) pund
996'€ZL 20692 VOZAYREELE 000'vZL 90L'L 3 610Z/20/2)  168'zeL 6L0Z/62/0L 0891 000'¥Z2 Lasn g UB0T aWoH [elepad
196'52L £8897 V9Zdy8eeLe 00092 £76°L 3 6L02/20/ZL  18E'€TL 6L02/52/60  OL6L 000'924 Lasn g UROT SWOH [elepad
£96'92L 79892 V9ZdYSEELE 000'L2L vy8°L 1 6L0T/COIZL  8LY'ETL 6L02/92/80  0L8'L 000°22L 1asn eg U0 BWOH [elapas
8L6'6L5") 8£89C V9ZdPBEELE 000025} 086'L ! 6L0Z/20/ZL  TSE'B0S'L 6L0T/52/L0  6E6°) 000'025'} 1asn g U0 BUWOH [esopad
128'9L'2 0062 YO06/SAS 2ZS'VOL'T 0090 L 125'v9.'e £LOZ/LO/LO 0090 128'99L'C asn IsnuL jueg SN
pund Sa 90102 L# onss| 937
sie'est's  $ oLs'esl'e 599°L 3 ees‘cll's  § 9e9'L ols'esl’s  § abeJoAy pue [ejo) pund
116'86% L0692 V9ZdY8SELE 000’66 902} L 6L02/20/2L  80Z'86Y 6L0Z/62/0L  089'L 000'661 18sn g UBOT SWOH [eIapad
£16'66% 78892 v9ZdY8SELE  000°00S £v6'L L 6L02/20/2L 961’86V 6102/52/60  0L6'L 000005 14asn Bg UB0T dWOH |esopad
626005 £9892 VOZdY8EELE  000'L0S e L 6L02/20/21  LES'86Y 6L02/92/80  0L8'L 000°105 1asn eg U0 alWOH [B1opad
ove'sli’L ££89Z V9ZdrBEELE  000'0ZL'L 086°L L 6L0Z/Z0/ZL  ¥SL'TLLL 6L02/52/20  Ov6L 000'0Z1'L Lasn eg UeoT SUoH [elapa
0L5'995 £006. €006/SAS 016995 009°0 L 015'996 €10Z/L0/20 0090 015'996 asn 1snuL ueg sn
pund Sad volL0z L#enssi 931
goL'sL  $ coL's.  $ bz 1 soL's.  § o'z goi's.  $ abeJaAy pue [ejoL puny
£0L°6L 9v00L 9Y00LSAS €0L'GL orr'e L £0L'SL €L0Z/L0/L0  9vbT £0L'62 wysenu) fousby [eoo
anjep buluey # JUBUIISaAU| dISND  anjep j@ep PISIA Kunep ajeq 2oud ajeq ajey anjep pajeis ue|pojsn [ 293snu 1anssy|
AlInbg oyskeq  Amen paseysing yaing 1sa403u)
puog
300V uoidny DHO 0371

| obed

6loz/oc/iL
Joday sJainseal)
Koueby Jemod elulojijes uiayLoN

ALY %A s Wi haamad 3

VdON



we pg:0L

6Loz/oLizy

1009y LL  § z89'0sPLL  $ 6zl siy Leo'ser’ll § el PSO'vEVLL  $ abesaAy pue [ejo puny
000'052'% £689C L8PNOYELE  0SS'OYT'L 000 Sip'L €20Z/OLIOL  000'0S2'L 6L0Z/9L/0L  000C 000'052'} 008N HAl UB0 BWOH |esepad
8€1'/6G TZ89C LOdHLES06  805'G09 [iard Y06 220Z/€TIS0  0BT'86S 6LOZ/LE/S0  069°T 000'665 o08n W'N Hiueg Sn
000'000°t 76892 PSTHICELE  02£'666 0z6'L zi8 220Z/L2P0  000'000°L 6L0z/LZIOL  0Z6'L 000°000'} 208n WPaID UL [eleps4
z6€'667 26892 E8AMIEELE GEL'BEY 065} 105 L20Z/SLIP0  See'esh 6L0Z/5L0L  005°L 000'00S 208n pauD uued [ejeped
000'000' [R75T4 2rNEDYELE  008'266'C 00e’L [4%4 0Z0Z/0E/90  000'000°€ 9L0Z/0£/90  00€'L 000'000'¢ 208N ByN [euoneN |esopad
/18'vL9'e o¥roT 0DravosLE §9Z'el9’e 05571 /8L 0202/50/90  ZS6'ELY'E 110Z/08/90  OVS'L 000'5L9'¢ o08n Bf] UBOT BWOH [elopad
8556 1002 LYOOLSAS 8956 2000 L 855'6 €L0Z/8L/L0 2000 8556 o08n ojileD Jo yueg uolun
960 Pav'L 1¥00L LV00LSAS 96V 7op'L ori'Z L 96y YOVl €L0Z/LO/LO  ovb'T 96V OVl wysaAuj Aoueby 200
OAISSdY N8 O 031

eLZTV'E $ Sp0'8ZLL  $ 9v0'C €5 z8l'elLL  $ 866°L Les‘0el’L $ sbeiaAy pue |ejoL puni
aL9'szL'L ov89Z €0196/216 8Y'9TL'L 80T €5 020Z/EZILO  §8SLLL'L 6L02/52/20  666°L 000'6ZL'L asn funsessl 'S
165'L €106/ €L06LSAS 16G'L 0090 L 166'L £L02/L0/L0 0090 165'1 asn IsnuL jued sn
SaVva HSAa 90102 ¢# onss| 937

osv'rie  $ we'le'z $ 895} 61 slz'sor'z  § 18z'¢ z66's62  § abesaAy pue [ejo) punyi
[4NR: 12 S¥892 9NZYBEELE EFPBYL 086'L 9ez 0Z0Z/ve/L0  080'LyL 6102/52/.0  0T6'L 000054 008n g UE0] SWOH |esepad
ore'soL'T G6v9Z 8€F0LEELE ZLY'POL'Z ovsL v6lL 0Z0Z/ZLI90  ovL'sST'T 2102/82/L0  GLE€ 000'G¥L'2 asn eg UeoT awoH [esopad]
266 90062 9006/SAS 266 0090 L 266 €L0Z/L0/L0 0090 266 asn Isnifueg SN
AS9Y sqng SaVEa 90102 L#ss| 031

gle'vio'e  § 2662006 $ oLl 169 lez'ero’s  $ €81 oLl'08s's $ abeleAy pue [ejo) pung
1G0'9€EL 'Y £9v9T B90BLEELE 20T'OVLY 09’1 24 Z20Z/01/90  Q0E'89L'Y L10T/8T/80  STLT 000°00L 'Y asn g UBOT dUIoH |eleped
L65'8YL PSroT 603VILELE Sh'8pl 669'L 029 L20Z/ZLI80  8v9'orl 1102/82/L0  SebL 000'05L asn W UEQT] BWOH [esspad
000°09€ ¥ 1£€92 /ZEDFEELE  €LL'8EEY 659'L L¥S 1202/52/50  000'09E'y 9L0Z/80/90  099'} 000'09€'Y asn }pa1) uued [esepay
0z0'zee ¥¥892 €0196/216 LbT'TEE 8v0C €5 0Z0zZ/ET/L0  £€9'6Z€ 6L02/52//0 000 000'eee asn Ainseas) 's'n
oL2'ze 5006. GODBLSAS OLL'LE 0090 L oLL'le €L0Z/L0/1L0 0090 olL'le asn SNt ueg sn
pund4 ¥sd 0102 L# @nss| 0371

8s6'0L8  $ 000118 $ 1881 3 191208 $ z58'L 000118 § abesany pue jejo) pund
266'891 0692 V9ZdP8EELE  000'69L 90L'L L 6L0z/e0/ZL  ZeL'BaL 610T/62/0L  089'L 000°691 Lasn g UB0"] SWOH [eJaped
166891 68897 V9ZdY8EELE  000'69L V6L I 6102/20/2L  06€'89L 6L02/52/60 606 000'691 1asn eg UBO SWOH [e1eped
166691 99892 VOZdPBEELE  000°0LL faca L 61L02/20/2h  291'69L 6L02/92/80  0L8'L 000'02L 18sn eg U0 8WOH [esepad
anjep Bujluen # JudllISaAu| dISND  anjep 1evien PISIA Aunyepy aeq aolld ajeq. ayey anjep pajeis uelpoIsna j avsniy 1anssj

Alnb3 oysheq  Aunmen paseyand yoing Isasspul
«puog
pund Sa v.i0¢ L#dnss| 931
6L02/0¢/LL

Z obed

podoy sJoinsead)

Kouaby Jomod elulojijen uioyuoN

B T R

VdON

e




g6Z'66L°0F §

‘Le'estor $

Lol

882

020¢/12/10 Joye swnue pue uo a|qe|ed  gOd4 Y689ZH UBWISAAU|
0Z02/91/ Jayje awnAue pue uo s|qelled  DWTHL £689Z# JususaAu|
2c0z/ze/y Ja)e swnAue pue uo sjqe|ied gSN CC8I9CH JUBWISBAU|
swnAue sjqe|led  g0dd4 LEEITH JUBUWISIAU|

6LOZ/OS/LL  JO SE [euinOf 192438 [lBM Y3 Woly sastad piq 10 SJUIWRJE}S UelpoIsnD (93)SN | wols saoud uo paseq st anjep JXIEW JuaLny

*pOYIaW JOBXA U ISN SIIYJ0 [je ‘poyjaw ajewixoidde ue asn Ajunjews 03 SYUOL g LR} SSI] Y}IM SJUSLUISIAU]
*sadA} |je usamjaq uosuediios Jojy siseq e apiaosd o) Jeak Aep go¢ e uo paseq umoys st Ajunjely o3 plalA JusjeAinb3 puog,

80L°25Z'0y $ LEL)V geo'svi'or ¢ :$IVLOL ANVHD




A PUBLIC AGENCY

CPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Process Innovations, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement
for OSlsoft Plant Information (P1) Software Support Services; Applicable to the following projects:
All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma /-/ METHOD OF SELECTION:

-

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Combustion Turbines

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [
Alameda Municipal Power [ City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah [
San F’a““i;‘;giﬁ?’r:n’:iat O  CityofPaloAlto [  Plumas-SierraREC [
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1 Port of Oakland []
City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [0 Truckee Donner PUD T[]
City of Healdsburg [0  City of Santa Clara [ Other [J

If other, please specify

SR: 103:20



Process Innovations, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-02 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Process Innovations, Inc. for OSlsoft Pl software
support services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

OSilsoft Pl software support services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by
SCPPA Members. NCPA had a previous agreement in place with Process Innovations, Inc.,
which is expiring. NCPA has utilized this vendor in the past, and has a good working relationship
with the vendor. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established terms and conditions
are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects. NCPA has an
enabling agreement in place for a similar scope of work with DST Controls.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the lowest cost provider. NCPA will issue purchase orders based
on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on December 9, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 103:20



Process Innovations, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

S 1
QRAm HOWARDC/)’\,7

General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
e Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Process Innovations, Inc.

SR: 103:20



RESOLUTION 20-02

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH PROCESS
INNOVATIONS, INC.

(reference Staff Report #103:20)

WHEREAS, OSlsoft Plant Information (PI) software support services are periodically required at the
facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, the
Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Process Innovations, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Process
Innovations, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
Process Innovations, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for OSlIsoft Pl software support services, for use at all
facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
PROCESS INNOVATIONS, INC.

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Process Innovations, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 63 Weber Creek Road, PO Box 82, Centennial, WY 82055
(“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 20
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consuiltant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) year from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 1 of 16



Section 2.

period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested
Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its
Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000.00) for the Services, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed,

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to: .

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117

Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 16



24 Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Services.

Section4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 3 of 16



4.3

4.4

mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain professional
liability insurance appropriate to Consultant's profession performing work in
connection with this Agreement in an amount not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) and two million dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate covering the
Consultant's errors and omissions. Any deductible or self-insured retention shall
not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars ($250,000) per claim. Such
insurance shall be on a “claims-made” basis, subject to the following conditions:
(1) the retroactive date of the policy shall be on or before the Effective Date of
this Agreement; (2) the policy shall be maintained for at least five (5) years after
completion of the Services and, if requested by Agency, evidence of coverage
shall be provided during this period; and (3) if, within five (5) years of completion
of the Services, coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with
another claims-made policy form with a retroactive date prior to the Effective
Date of this Agreement, Consultant shall purchase “extended reporting” coverage
for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of the Services and, if requested
by Agency, provide evidence of coverage during this period.

All Policies Reguirements.

4.4.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

4.4.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.4.3 Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

4.4.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides
services to Agency members, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant
to this Agreement, Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 16



4.5

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member.

4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmiess clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all claims to the
extent that the claims arise out of, pertain to or relate to the negligence,
recklessness or willful misconduct of the Consultant in its performance of
Services under this Agreement. Consultant shall bear all losses, costs,
damages, expense and liability of every kind, nature and description to the extent
that they arise out of, pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or
indirectly (“Liabilities”). Such obligations to defend, hold harmless and indemnify
the Agency shall not apply to the extent that such Liabilities are caused by the
negligence, active negligence, or willful misconduct of the Agency.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 16



Section 6.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

6.2

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 16



6.3

6.4

Section 7.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Cyber Security. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that Consultant
and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) will at its sole expense
follow applicable NERC CIP standards for cyber security for the applicable
Agency facility. Furthermore, Consultant shall notify Agency no less than 24-
hours after discovery of a potential compromise of Consultant’s network,
computers, applications, or electronic systems in any way that Consultant
determines could provide unauthorized access or negatively impact the
confidentiality, integrity, security, or availability of Agency systems.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 16



Section 8.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Section 9.

9.1

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consuitant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency's remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 16



unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

9.2 Consultant’'s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 9 of 16



permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Agreement.
Section 10. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.
10.1
10.2
10.3

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 16



Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

10.6 Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 ef seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

10.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Process Innovations, Inc.

Attention: Joe Devine

2519 South Shields Street, Suite 166
Fort Collins, CO 80526

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 11 of 16



Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 12 of 16



10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Consultant provide Services to an Agency member, SCCPA
and/or a SCPPA member (collectively for the purposes of this section only
"Member”) pursuant to section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may
be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested
Services relating to such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date

RANDY S. HOWARD,
General Manager

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

PROCESS INNOVATIONS, INC.

Date

JOE DEVINE,
President

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-117

Page 13 of 16



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Process Innovations, Inc. ("Consultant") shall provide OSlsoft Pl Software support services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency ("Agency") at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or
SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not be limited to the following:

Provide OSlsoft Software Support - Support OSI soft software on Agency supplied
server and interface hardware. This software will be prepared to accept the connections
from all Agency data sources.

Provide Onsite Client Tool Training - This task will involve providing Process Innovations
client tool training. Ideally each participant should have their own computer for training
as the class involves many hands-on exercises to leverage acquired data to perform real
time evaluations. Develop some base reports and graphics in the class to provide a
foundation for further development.

Provide Value Added Applications - This task will involve the development of value
added applications and features. This will include report building and calculated tag
development.

Design Diagrams - Design and provide detailed architectural network diagrams and
review with NCPA for approval (Diagrams shall include, but not limited to, detailed
specifications of all network connections, protocols, addresses, ports, etc.)

Provide Diagrams - Provide final ("As Built") architectural network diagrams and review
with NCPA for approval

Compliance - Ensure all network modifications and implementations meet North
American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) reliability standards

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 14 of 16



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount as set
forth in Section 2 of this Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an

estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Hourly Rates
Service Provider Onsite Offsite {Remote) Travel Time Onsite Tralining
Consulting Services
Services
Principal Engineer/Consuitant S 250 $ 200 S 170 $ 320
Sr. Application Consultant $ 235 $ 185 $ 155 $ 295
Application Engineer 5 170 $ 145 $ 95 $ 270

Notos:

¥

BHling is in hourly increments
Travel and living expenses are in addition to Onsite Rates

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the

time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

GS-VEN-2019-117

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 16



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of -

Process Innovations, Inc.
(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-117
Northern California Power Agency and Process Innovations, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 16 of 16



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Premium Inspection Company — Five Year Multi-Task General Services

Agreement for maintenance inspection services; Applicable to the following projects: All
Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA Members, Southern California Public
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

1%

Department: Geothermal

FROM: Joel Ledesma ‘74

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o o o

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o o

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o o o

SR: 104:20



Premium Inspection Company — 5 Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-03 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Premium Inspection Company for maintenance
inspection services, with any non-substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned
and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Maintenance inspection services are required from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by
SCPPA Members. NCPA utilized this vendor recently at its Geothermal facility when it was the
successful bidder for the P-Site and Q-Site Well Workover Project. During their work on those
projects, the vendor performed efficiently while focused on safety. NCPA now desires to enter
into this agreement so established terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the
successful bidder on future projects. NCPA has enabling agreements in place for similar scopes
of work with Team Industrial Services, Inc. and Quality Tong Services, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $500,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the overall best value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on December 9, 2019, and was approved.

SR: 104:20



Premium Inspection Company — 5 Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,
Lot 3 (¥~

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Premium Inspection Company

SR: 104:20



RESOLUTION 20-03

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
PREMIUM INSPECTION COMPANY

(reference Staff Report #104:20)

WHEREAS, maintenance inspection services are periodically required at the facilities owned and/or
operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA), NCPA Members, the Southern California Public
Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Premium Inspection Company is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Premium
Inspection Company to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA, and
SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $500,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Premium Inspection Company, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $500,000 over five years, for maintenance inspection services, for use at all facilities
owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roli call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NOKTHERNCNAHFIQP;)EﬁENCV
MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
PREMIUM INSPECTION COMPANY

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Premium Inspection Company, a
limited liability company with its office located at 6300 Seven Seas, Bakersfield, CA 93308
(“Contractor”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 20
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. ¥ SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND dollars ($500,000) for the Work, which shall include
all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule,
attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee
that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency
expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period,;

= Work performed;

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

= At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 26



2.5

Section 3.

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at

its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

the Work.

Section 4.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this

Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1

4.2

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Revd 7/9/2019

Page 3 of 26



4.3
4.4
4.5

4.6

Section 5.

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally Omitted

Pollution Insurance. Intentionally Omitted

All Policies Reguirements.

4.5.1 \Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. |f Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

4.5.5 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 26



5.1

5.2

5.3

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.
Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

Transfer of Title. Intentionally Omitted

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 26



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. Not Applicable

Maintenance Labor Agreement. Not Applicable

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 6 of 26



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall provide a certified copy of its payroll, on forms to be determined
by the Agency and consistent with the Labor Code, within ten (10) days of the
Contractor’s receipt of Agency’s written request therefor. Contractor’s failure to

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 26



Section 8.

timely comply with this provision may subject the Contractor to penalties
pursuant to state law.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $200.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 26



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 9 of 26



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.44

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 10. PROJECT SITE.

101 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 26



10.2

10.3

Section 11.

11.1

11.2

applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 11 of 26



1.3

Section 12.

Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

12.5

12.6

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. Itis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 12 of 26



conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the

12.7
12.8
subject to actions including removal from Work.
12.9
Contractor.
12.10
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.
Section 13. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.
13.1
13.2
13.3
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.
13.4

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 13 of 26



13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Joe Elliott Jr., President

Premium Inspection Company
6300 Seven Seas

Bakersfield, CA 93308

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:
Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 14 of 26



13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.111 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 15 of 26



13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY PREMIUM INSPECTION COMPANY

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager JOE ELLIOTT JR,, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 16 of 26



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Premium Inspection Company (“Contractor”) shall provide maintenance inspection services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or
operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA) or
SCPPA members.

Services to include, but not limited to the following:

* Visual Inspection

* Tubular 1. D. Camera with DVR Recording

* Dimensional Inspection and Verification

* Magnetic Particle, both color contrast and ultraviolet ( ferrous Material )
* Dye Penetrant, both color contrast and uitraviolet ( Non-Ferrous Material )
* Ultrasonic Thickness examination

* EMI Logging - Drill Pipe 2 3/8" up to 5 ¥z, DS-1 Category 1-5 Inspection

* RIG Site Bottom Hole Assembly Inspection

* Trip Check of BHA Components

* APl and Proprietary Rotary Shoulder Connection Inspection

* Field repair of API and Proprietary Rotary Shoulder Connections (RSC)

* Top Drive Iinspection

+ Rig Structural Inspection

+ Hardbanding of Drill Pipe, Hevi-Wate Drill Pipe and BHA Tools

+ Hardbanding of Non Magnetic BHA Tools

* 3rd Party Verification Services

* In-House Services

* Digital real time reporting and data base

+ Equipment

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 17 of 26



COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

EXHIBIT B

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated

amount of expenses is as follows:

DESCRIPTION

EMI of Tube Body
UT Wall Thickness Reading
Dimensional 2 of Connections

EMI of Tube Body

UT Wall Thickness Reading
Dimensional 2 of Connections
Magnetic Particle Inspection
Of External Upsets

EMI of Tube Body

UT Wall Thickness Reading
Dimensional 2 of Connection
Wet Magnetic Particle Inspection
Of Connection

Magnetic Particle Inspection

Of External upsets

Used Drill Pipe Services

Price List

SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH
31/2"t0 5" $38.00
31/2°to 5" $48.00
31/2t0 5 $68.00

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-124

Page 18 of 26




Optional Drill Pipe Services

Price List

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH
Clean and Visual Inspection
Of Threads and Shoulders ALL $10.00 per end
DS-1 Dimensional 2 of Connections
Wet Fluorescent Magnetic Particle ALL $ 25.00 per end
Inspection of Connections
Wet Fluorescent Particle Inspection of ALL $ 15.00 per end
Rotary Shoulder Connection
End Area Inspection of Internal
Upset run out Areas Optical Video ALL $ 45.75 per end
Scope with Magnetic Particle

FIELD REPAIR OF CONNECTIONS

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH
Tool Joint Refacing: Shoulder Repair | ALL | $ 25.00 per end
Field Repair of Threads to Remove Burrs, ALL $ 15.00 per end
Raised Metal, Galling
PIPE STRAIGHTENING SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH
Straightening of 31/2"to 5" Special Quote

Bent Pipe

DRILL PIPE HARDBANDING SERVICES

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER TOOL JOINT
Casing Friendly Wire
3 one inch bands per tool Joint 31/2°to 5" $60.00 per length
CUSTOMER REQUEST WIRE 31/2°7t0 5" SPECIAL QUOTE

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-124

Page 19 of 26




Hevi-Wate Drill Pipe Inspection Services
Price List
__TYPEINSPECTION SIZES PRICE PER LENGTH

Clean and Visual Inspection
Of Rotary Shoulder Connections ALL $85.00 per length
Dimensional 3 Inspection

Of Connections
Wet Fluorescent Magnetic Particle
Inspection of Connections

A T T TR

Magnetic Particle Inspection of Upsets ALL $ 10.00 per upset

FIELD REPAIR OF CONNECTIONS

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH

Tool Joint Refacing Shoulder Repair ALL $ 25.00 per end

Field Repair of Threads to remove
Raised Metal, Burrs, Galling ALL $ 15.00 per end

Hevi-Wate Drill Pipe Services
Price List

HARDBANDING SERVICES

HARDBANDING SERVICES SIZES PRICE PER BAND
Casing Friendly Wire
4 inch bands per tool joint

3%"to 5" $ 25.00 per inch
CUSTOMER WIRE
4 inch bands per tool joint 3% to 5" SPECIAL QUOTE
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 20 of 26



HARDBAND REMOVAL RE-APPLICATION

ALL
HEVI-WATE
STRAIGHTNEING
REMOVAL SERVICE SPECIAL QUOTE

HEAVI-WATE DRILL PIPE STRAIGHTNEING SERVICES
DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH

Straightening of Crooked or Bent Pipe ALL SPECIAL QUOTE

Bottom Hole Assembly Inspection Services

Price List
__TYPE INSPECTION SIZES PRICE
Clean and Visual Inspection
Of Rotary Shoulder Connection
Dimensional 3 Inspection ALL $ 85.00 per length

of Connection
Wet Fluorescent Magnetic Particle
Inspection of Connection

NON MAG Collars, Subs Stabilizers ALL $ 100.00 per length
Liquid Penetrant inspection

In conjunction with Cat 3-5 Inspection

OPTIONAL INSPECTION SERVICES

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE PER LENGTH
1. Dry Magnetic Particle Inspection
Of External Upsets ALL $ 20.00 per upset

In conjunction with Cat 3-5

2. Liquid Penetrant Inspection ALL $ 50.00 per foot
Of Tool Bodies
3. AC Yoke Magnetic Particle ALL $ 25.00 per foot

Inspection of Tool Bodies

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 21 of 26



FIELD REPAIR OF CONNECTIONS

DESCRIPTION SIZE PRICE
Tool Joint Refacing Shoulder Repair ALL $ 25.00 per end
Field Repair of Threads to Remove ALL $ 15.00 per end
Raised Metal, Burrs, Galling

BOTTOM HOLE ASSEMBLY HARDBANDING SERIVICE

DRILL COLLARS, SUBS
TYPE WIRE SIZE PER 1" BAND
Under 5 %" $25.00
Casing Friendly Wire Over 5 %%’ $29.00
Customer Wire SPECIAL QUOTE
MISCELLANEOUS SERIVICES
MAGNETIC PARTICLE

DESCRIPTION PRICE
Trip Check Inspection of BHA 1 Inspector $ 135.00 per hour
Rig Components and Load Bearing Areas 1 Helper $60.00 per hour
Blocks , Hooks , Bails , Slips
Top Drive
Welds
Flanges

ULTRASONIC THICKNESS

DESCRIPTION PRICE
UT Wall Thickness Measurement 1 Inspector $ 225.00 per hour
Flow Line Wall Thickness Measurement 1 Helper $ 151.00 per hour
Mud Line Wall Thickness Measurement
Tank Wall Thickness Measurement

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019
Page 22 of 26



Shop Rate PER HOUR $125.00

Part-Off Under 6” O.D. $19.50
TR R0 —————— i Over 6” O.D. ~ $25.50

Non-Mag ADD _20%
Spiral Collar or Left Hand Connection ADD 10%

Kellys, etc. ADD 20%
Mud Groove or Benchmark Groove ADD $2.50

Boreback/Stress Relief Groove ADD $85.00

Machine Identification Groove/Identification

Stencil, Pin Tool Joint ADD $55.00

For Additional Grooves Same Joint ADD $10.00

Band Saw Cut ADD (PER CUT) $37.00

Re-Cut Bevel Diameters/Re-Face ADD (PER EA) $26.67

Set Screw ADD $172.50

Float Bore ADD $255.00

Standard Wrench Flats 2”x1/2” ADD (Per Piece) $175.00

Set up Fee ADD $125.00

Rush Jobs ADD 25%

Overtime: After 4:00pm till 6:00am.

In Addition to Machine Work PER HOUR $170.00

Weekend/Holidays Call Out Rate 4hr Min. In

Addition to Machine Work PER HOUR $170.00

Transportation within a 20 Mile Radius ROUND TRIP $85.00

Prices are subject to change with 30 days’ advance written notice to Agency.

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the

time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

GS-VEN-2019-124

Page 23 of 26



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 24 of 26



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT D
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of ,20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 25 of 26



NOT APPLICABLE
EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

in consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-124
Northern California Power Agency and Premium Inspection Company.
Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 26 of 26



4

A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. — Five Year Multi-Task Consulting Services
Agreement for developing, reviewing and updating training and qualification manuals; Applicable
to the following projects: All Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities, NCPA
Members, Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma % METHOD OF SELECTION:
Assistant Genzl M;nager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department: Geothermal

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members City of Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake [

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [J City of Ukiah [J
San F'a“ci;‘;:i':a%’r:r::iat 0 Cityof PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC []
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [ Port of Oakland [

City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD [J

City of Healdsburg [ City of Santa Clara [ Other [

If other, please specify

SR: 105:20



Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-04 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into a
Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. for services
related to developing, reviewing and updating training and qualification manuals, with any non-
substantial changes recommended and approved by the NCPA General Counsel, which shall not
exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA,
NCPA Members, by SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Services related to developing, reviewing and updating of training and qualification manuals are
required from time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated
by NCPA, NCPA Members, by SCPPA, and by SCPPA Members. NCPA had a previous
agreement in place with Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. which has since expired. Fossil
Consulting Services, Inc. has previously assisted NCPA in the development of training and
qualification manuals for the Geothermal Facility as well as the Lodi Energy Center. Throughout
that project, Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. conducted themselves in a professional manner
while meeting NCPA's expectations. NCPA desires to enter into this agreement so established
terms and conditions are in place should this vendor be the successful bidder on future projects.
NCPA has an enabling agreement in place for a similar scope of work with Reliability
Management Group.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. Bids are awarded to the vendor providing the overall best value to NCPA. NCPA will
issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed at the time the
service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 105:20



Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. — 5 Year MTCSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on December 9, 2019, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

NDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (2):
¢ Resolution
o Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

SR: 105:20



RESOLUTION 20-04

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FOSSIL
CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

(reference Staff Report #105:20)

WHEREAS, services related to developing, reviewing, and updating training and qualification manuals
are periodically required at the facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency
(NCPA), NCPA Members, the Southern California Public Power Authority (SCPPA), and SCPPA Members;
and

WHEREAS, Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA seeks to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with Fossil
Consulting Services, Inc. to provide such services as needed at all NCPA facilities, NCPA Members, SCPPA,
and SCPPA Member facilities in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement with
Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel,
which shall not exceed $1,000,000 over five years, for developing, reviewing and updating training and
qualification manual services, for use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA, NCPA Members, by
SCPPA, or by SCPPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



NORTNERNCNALIFCEPgﬁEV
MULTI-TASK CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
FOSSIL CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

This Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc., a
corporation with its office located at 5457 Twin Knolls Road, Suite 304, Columbia, MD 21045
(“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of , 2019
(“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California.

Section1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement,
Consultant shall provide to Agency the services described in the Scope of Services attached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Services"), at the time and place and in the
manner specified therein.

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Consultant completes the Services, or no later than five
(5) year from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is
shorter.

1.2  Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform the Services in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Consultant is engaged and for which Consultant is providing
the Services. Consultant represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced
to provide the Services set forth herein.

1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel
to perform the Services. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any
time during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4  Services Provided. Services provided under this Agreement by Consultant may
include Services directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

1.6 Regquest for Services. At such time that Agency determines to use Consultant's
Services under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a Purchase Order. The
Purchase Order shall identify the specific services to be performed ("Requested
Services"), may include a not-to-exceed monetary cap on Requested Services
and expenditures authorized by that Purchase Order, and a time by which the
Requested Services shall be completed. Consultant shall have seven calendar
days from the date of the Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to
respond in writing that Consultant chooses not to perform the Requested
Services. If Consultant agrees to perform the Requested Services, begins to
perform the Requested Services, or does not respond within the seven day

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 1 of 16



Section 2.

period specified, then Consultant will have agreed to perform the Requested
Services on the terms set forth in the Purchase Order, this Agreement and its
Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount NOT

TO EXCEED ONE MILLION dollars ($1,000,000) for the Services, which shall include all fees,
costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Consultant’s fee schedule, attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency
will pay that full amount to the Consultant, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures
under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

= The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

= Services performed,

= The Purchase Order number authorizing the Services;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Consultant and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Consultant performing services hereunder; and

= At Agency’s option, when the Consultant’s Scope of Work identifies tasks,
for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time entries
showing the name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each
person, a brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense,
with supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive
Roseville, California 95678
Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Consultant.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Muiti-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109

Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 2 of 16



2.4  Authorization to Perform Services. The Consultant is not authorized to
perform any Services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this
Agreement until receipt of written authorization from the Contract Administrator.

25 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Consultant shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of its Services to submit its final invoice for the Requested
Services. In the event Consultant fails to submit an invoice to Agency for any
amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Consultant is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Services.

Section4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Consultant employs any person, Consultant shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21 Commercial General Insurance. Consultant shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Consultant. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence" basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Consultant shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Consultant, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $2,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 3 of 16



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.23

mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrelia policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Professional Liability Insurance.

All Policies Requirements.

4.41

4.4.2

4.4.3

44.4

4.4.5

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Consultant shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2, adding the Agency as an additional insured
and declaring such insurance primary in regard to work performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Consultant shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any
reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

Higher Limits. If Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Consultant.

Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Consultant provides
services to Agency members, SCPPA, and/or SCPPA members pursuant
to this Agreement, Consultant shall provide certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.4.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA or SCPPA member.

Waiver of Subrogation. Consultant agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Consultant may acquire from Consultant by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Consultant, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

Consultant's Obligation. Consultant shall be solely responsible for ensuring

that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of
Services are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensues
they are and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 4 of 16



Section 5.

Agreement. Consultant shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Services are properly classified as employees, agents or
independent contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers'
compensation insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONSULTANT’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

5.1

5.2

Section 6.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Consultant from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Consultant acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this Section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Consultant shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Consultant, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

6.1

Independent Contractor. Consultant is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Consultant only
insofar as the results of Consultant's Services and assignment of personnel
pursuant to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the
means by which Consultant accomplishes Services rendered pursuant to this
Agreement. Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule,
regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant and any of its
employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this Agreement
shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all
claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency,
including but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any
contribution to be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee
contributions for PERS benefits.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Consultant or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 5 of 16



payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Consultant and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Consultant under this
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the Services,
including salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of
Consultant.

Consultant shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Consultant’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Consultant agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Consultant.

6.2 Consultant Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Consultant
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3  Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Consultant and is based upon a determination of Consultant’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Consultant. Consultant
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Consultant shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Consultant in performing the services and
shall be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Consultant
itself had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to
subcontractors shall not relieve Consultant from any of its obligations under this
Agreement with respect to the services and Consultant is obligated to ensure that
any and all subcontractors performing any services shall be fully insured in all
respects and to the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s
satisfaction.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 6 of 16



6.4

Section 7.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Consultant shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute
Exhibit C.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

71

7.2

7.3

Section 8.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Consultant represents and warrants to Agency that
Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Consultant.

In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for
Services satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency,
however, may condition payment of such compensation upon Consultant
delivering to Agency any or all records or documents, as referenced in Section
9.1 hereof.

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by all the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Consultant
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 7 of 16



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

8.4.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the Services not finished by
Consultant; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the costs to complete the
Services that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that
Agency would have paid Consultant pursuant hereto if Consultant had
completed the Services.

EEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Consultant’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Consultant agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Consultant shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Consultant’'s Books and Records. Consultant shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Services or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under the Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 8 of 16



not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (¢) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as confidential Information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose ("The Disclosing Party") confidential
Information to the other party ("the Receiving Party"). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confident; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, consultants, contractors,
subcontractors or other representatives of Receiving Party that
have a need to know in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 9 of 16



Section 10.

subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

10.1

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

Conflict of Interest. Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of
location, would place Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Consultant shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Joel
Ledesma, Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the
Agency’s representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.

Rev'd 7/9/2019

Page 10 of 16



10.8 Notices. Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to:

Herman P. Stone I

President

5457 Twin Knolls Road, Suite 304
Columbia, MD 21045

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

10.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

10.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

10.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Consultant agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

10.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

10.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

10.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 11 of 16



the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

10.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

10.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

10.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative dispute
resolution process is not intended to nor shall be construed to
change the time periods for filing a claim or action specified by
Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

10.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Consultant's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Consultant's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Consultant’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

10.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

10.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Consultant provide Services to an Agency member, SCCPA
and/or a SCPPA member (collectively for the purposes of this section only
"Member”) pursuant to section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may
be a third party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested
Services relating to such Member.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 12 of 16



The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY FOSSIL CONSULTING SERVICES, INC.

Date Date
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager HERMAN P. STONE I, President
Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 13 of 16



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Fossil Consulting Services, Inc. (“Consultant”) shall provide services to review and update
training and qualification manuals, as requested by Northern California Power Agency
(“Agency”) at any facilities owned and/or operated by Agency, its Members, Southern California
Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”), or SCPPA Members.

Services to include, but not limited to the following:
e Update System Training Manuals (STM) to reflect changes and updates in plant

configuration.
¢ Develop a multi-level qualification program for several plant disciplines.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 14 of 16



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all tasks, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed amount as set

forth in Section 2 of the Agreement. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an
estimated amount of expenses is as follows:

Position Hourly Rate
Project Manager $110.00
Principal Specialist $104.00
Senior Specialist $96.00
Graphic Designer $51.00

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Consultant for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task Consulting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 15 of 16



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER. 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the
above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task Consuiting Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-109
Northern California Power Agency and Fossil Consulting Services, Inc.
Rev'd 7/9/2019 Page 16 of 16



A PUBLIC AGENTY

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging — First Amendment to Five Year

January 16, 2020

Muilti-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities and NCPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent
V|

|5

Division: Generation Services

Department. Generation Services

FROM: Joel Ledesma 7“%

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

o o o o o

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

O o o 0o 0O d

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o o o o 0O O

SR: 106:20



Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-05 authorizing the General Manager or his desighee to enter into
a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Kimberly Fields dba
K. Weatherman Logging, with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved
by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $235,000 to
$1,000,000, expanding the Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usage and road
easement maintenance, and amending the Compensation Schedule to include heavy
equipment rates, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and
NCPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances and
access roads from time to time for the operation and maintenance of facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA and NCPA Members. Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging is a
provider of these services. NCPA’s Hydroelectric Facility has worked with K. Weatherman
Logging for about 20 years, and has an excellent working relationship with this vendor. The
vendor’s familiarity with the remote terrain and project site locations allow this them to mobilize
quickly and dispatch jobs more efficiently.

NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Kimberly Fields dba
K. Weatherman Logging, effective March 21, 2019, for an amount not to exceed $235,000. As
wildfire mitigation has become an increasing priority for NCPA, this agreement has been used
extensively by the Hydroelectric Facility for vegetation management along power lines, resulting
in this agreement running low on funds. NCPA anticipates additional years of aggressive
vegetation management in an effort to mitigate wildfire fuel, and now desires to amend the
agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $235,000 to $1,000,000. NCPA also
desires to expand the Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usages and road easement
maintenance, and to provide for its use by NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by
SCPPA and SCPPA Members). In addition, NCPA desires to amend the Compensation
Schedule to include heavy equipment rental rates. This agreement is available for use at any
facility owned and/or operated by the NCPA or NCPA Members. NCPA currently has
agreements in place for similar services with Ronwright Logging and Tanner Logging.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

SR: 106:20



Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 6, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

(et (S
NDY S. HOWARD

General Manager

Attachments (3):
¢ Resolution
o Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Kimberly Fields
e First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and
Kimberly Fields

SR: 106:20



RESOLUTION 20-05

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
KIMBERLY FIELDS DBA K. WEATHERMAN LOGGING

(reference Staff Report #106:20)

WHEREAS, vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances and access roads
from time to time at facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and NCPA Members; and

WHEREAS, Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Kimberly Fields dba K.
Weatherman Logging on March 21, 2019; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s Hydroelectric Facility has used the contract extensively to remove vegetation from transmission
lines to help reduce wildfire fuels and remove hazard trees at risk of falling, which has nearly exhausted the funds on the
contract; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to increase the not-to-exceed amount from $235,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure sufficient
funds for the remaining contract term; and

WHEREAS, NCPA also desires to amend Exhibit A — Scope of Work to include the use of heavy machinery and road
easement maintenance, to better describe services available to meet project needs, and to provide for its use by NCPA and
NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA Members); and

WHEREAS, NCPA also desires to amend Exhibit B — Compensation Schedule and Hourly Fees to include the heavy
machinery rates as a result of the expanded Scope of Work; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No
environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency authorizes the
General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Kimberly
Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing
the not-to-exceed amount from $235,000 to $1,000,000, expanding the Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usage and
road easement maintenance, and amending the Compensation Schedule to include heavy equipment rates, for continued use at
all facilities owned and/or operated by NPCA and NCPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
KIMBERLY FIELDS

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Kimberly Fields, a sole
proprietorship with its office located at P.O. Box 912, Murphys, CA 95247 (“Contractor”)
(together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of Elm ych 21, 2019 (“Effective Date”) in
Roseville, California.

Section1. SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this
Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1 Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

1.2 Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged-and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

1.3  Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, imnmediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

1.4 Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA") or SCPPA members.

1.5 Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018



agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

Section2. COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT
TO EXCEED two hundred thirty five thousand dollars ($235,000) for the Work, which shall
include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee
schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a
guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of
potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21 Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed,; ,

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

» At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPayable@ncpa.com

2.2 Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

2.3 Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsibie for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this

Agreement.

24  Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between “GS-VEN-2018-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields,

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 2 of 21



2.5 Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform
the Work.

Section4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

4.1 Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.2.1 Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endeorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

4.2.2 Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

4.2.3 General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth

above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS~VEN-2018-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 3 of 21



4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally omitted.
4.5 All Policies Reguirements.

4.5.1

4.5.2

4.5.3

4.5.4

4.5.5

Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

Notice of Reduction In or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any

reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Contractor shall provide the certificates of insurance and
policy endorsements, as referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific
Agency member, SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to
be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which
any insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the
payment of any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that
may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. In addition, the
Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of
subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed by Contractor, its
employees, agents and subcontractors.

4.6 Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northemn California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 4 of 21



5.1

5.2

Section 6.
6.1

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless ciause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmiess the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page § of 21



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Section 7.

pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers' compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penality issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for ali work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute

Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at
the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields,

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 6 of 21



71

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the

work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 7 of 21



Section 8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. in addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause

upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. Ali obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materiaily breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, desigh documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/68/2018

Page 8 of 21



Section 9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
axceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2016-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 9 of 21



9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (¢)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party's employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Section 10. PROJECT SITE.

10.1 Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if

Multi-Task General Services Agresment between GS-VEN-2019-030

Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 10 of 21



10.2

10.3

Section 11.

141

11.2

applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of

any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 11 of 21



11.3

Section 12.

Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

12.1

12.2

12.3

124

12.5

12.6

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may resuit
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-20198-030
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/6/2018

Page 12 of 21



12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

131

13.2

13.3

134

conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitied. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer orin the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 13 of 21



13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardiess of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Kimberly Fields, Owner
P.O. Box 912
Murphys, CA 95247

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

Jane E. Luckhardt

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 14 of 21



13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shali control.” In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shali control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 15 of 21



legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the

drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to

such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Date K}/ﬂ/lti
Sty & 1

RANDY'HOWARD, General Manager

Approved as to Form:

// «_ / } y/
Ly Y {/{/ Tl

/J&ne E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

KIMBERLY FIELDS
Date 3“ ‘8» | c‘

X K’\m&mhajn;{’\ &S

KIMBERLY FIELBS, Owner

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

GS-VEN-2019-030

Page 16 of 21



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Kimberly Fields ("Contractor”) shall provide the following services as requested by the Northern
California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency, its
Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members, including:

Falling trees;
Climbing;
Chipping;
Hauling;

Brush removal;
Weed abatement.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 17 of 21



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES
Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set

forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

1 vehicle, 2 people and tools $300.00 per hour
) Chipper . ~ $400.00 perday
_Dump truck forbrushremoval |~ $400.00 perday
Pickup and trailer | $400.00 per day
_ Tree climber_ . $150.00 per hour
Extralabor [ $125.00 per hour

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

The rates set forth above are valid from March 2019 and may be subject to an annual escalation
of up to 5% per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice to NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 18 of 21



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of

(Company name)
for contract work at;

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the

above-named project. X wb /L)L & S
\ VAV \~

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this 4 dayof _ ™N\asc b ,20 \9

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northemn California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 19 of 21



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 .

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Flelds.

Rev'd 6/8/2018
Page 20 of 21



EXHIBIT E - NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its fuil and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

(Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields.
Rev'd 6/8/2018

Page 21 of 21



A PUBLIC ABENTY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND KIMBERLY FIELDS
DBA K. WEATHERMAN LOGGING

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Multi Task General Services Agreement is entered
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Kimberly Fields

dba K. Weatherman Logging (“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of

, 202_.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi Task General Services Agreement dated
effective March 21, 2019, (the “Agreement”) for contractor to provide vegetation management
services for NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $235,000 to a
“NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $1,000,000 to ensure sufficient funds for the remainder of the
contract term; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to provide for its use by
NCPA and NCPA Members only; and

WHEREAS, the Agency also desires to amend the Description of Work set forth in Exhibit A
to the Agreement to include road easement maintenance and use of heavy machinery, and to
provide for its use by NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA
Members); and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement to amend the compensation
schedule on Exhibit B to add newly acquired heavy equipment rates; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing
and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Section 2 — Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED one million dollars
($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging.
Template 6-8-18

Page 1 of4



2. Exhibit A — Scope of Work is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the
attached Exhibit A.

3. Exhibit B — Compensation Schedule is amended and restated to read in full as set forth
in the Attached Exhibit B.

4. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth herein.

Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY KIMBERLY FIELDS dba K WEATHERMAN
LOGGING

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager KIMBERLY FIELDS, Owner

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030

Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging.
Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 4



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging ("Contractor") shall provide the following services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated
by the Agency and its Members, including:

e Vegetation management including tree falling, climbing, brush removal, weed abatement,
chipping and hauling;

Clear rock slides and other debris resfricting project access;

Road and easement maintenance;

Rental and operation of heavy machinery; and

Other maintenance services, as needed.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2019-030
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging.
Template 6-8-18

Page 3 of 4



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated

amount of expenses is as follows:

1 vehicle, 2 people and tools $300.00 per hour

Chipper | $400.00 per day

Dum truck for brush removal $400.00 per day

Pickup and trailer i $400.00 per day

| Tree climber ‘ $150.00 per hour
Extra labor & Equipment Operator ‘ $125.00 perhour

% 2878 Caterpillar* $350.00 per day

*287B Caterpillar can also be rented by the week for $1400 or month for $4,200.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging.

Template 6-8-18

GS-VEN-2019-030

Page 4 of 4



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NCPA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020
COMMISSION MEETING DATE: January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. — First Amendment to Five Year
Multi-Task General Services Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All Northern
California Power Agency (NCPA) Facilities and NCPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma# 7{ METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A
Division: Generation Services If other, please describe:

Department. Generation Services

IMPACTED MEMBERS:

All Members X Cityof Lodi [ City of Shasta Lake

Alameda Municipal Power [] City of Lompoc [ City of Ukiah
San F'a"cia‘;:iza%’r:'::ﬁ 0 City of PaloAlto [  Plumas-Sierra REC
City of Biggs [ City of Redding [1 Port of Oakland

City of Gridley [J City of Roseville [1 Truckee Donner PUD

City of Healdsburg []1  City of Santa Clara [ Other

If other, please specify

o o o o o o

SR: 107:20

1o



Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction Inc. — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-06 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into
a First Amendment to the Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ronwright Logging
Lumber Construction, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as recommended and
approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from
$225,000 to $1,000,000 and expanding the Scope of Work to include road and easement
maintenance, for continued use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and
NCPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances, road
easements, and other access to project fixtures from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members. Ronwright
Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. is a provider of these services. NCPA’s Hydroelectric Facility
has worked with Ronwright Logging for about 2 years and has been pleased with their
responsiveness and competitive pricing. Ronwright was the successful bidder on a job to clear
vegetation from the banks of the Collierville Powerhouse’s tailrace. The job required creativity to
complete due to the steepness of the banks causing difficult access to the vegetation to be
cleared, and NCPA was pleased with the vendor’s performance in overcoming these challenges.

NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ronwright Logging
Lumber Construction, Inc., effective May 14, 2018, for an amount not to exceed $225,000. This
vendor has been the successful bidder on a number of projects, and the contract is now running
low on funds. NCPA now desires to amend the current agreement to increase the not to exceed
amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000. NCPA also desires to amend the Scope of Work to include
heavy machinery usage and road easement maintenance, and to provide for its use by NCPA
and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA Members). This agreement is
available for use at any facility owned and/or operated by NCPA or NCPA Members. NCPA has
agreements in place for similar services with Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging, and
Tanner Logging, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

SR: 107:20



Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction Inc. — First Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 6, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

e

DY S HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (3):
o Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Ronwright Logging Lumber
Construction, Inc.
e First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and
Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

SR: 107:20



RESOLUTION 20-06

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH RONWRIGHT LOGGING LUMBER CONSTRUCTION, INC.

(reference Staff Report #107:20)

WHEREAS, vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances and access
roads from time to time at facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and NCPA
Members; and

WHEREAS, Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Ronwright Logging
Lumber Construction, Inc. on May 14, 2018; and

WHEREAS, NCPA'’s Hydroelectric Facility has used the contract to remove vegetation from the Collierville
Tailrace and other projects, resulting in the current agreement running low on funds; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to increase the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure
sufficient funds are available for the remaining contract term; and

WHEREAS, NCPA also desires to amend Exhibit A — Scope of Work to include the use of heavy machinery and
road easement maintenance to better describe services available to meet project needs, and to provide for its use by
NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA Members); and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No
environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
authorizes the General Manager or his designee to enter into a First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services
Agreement with Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc, with any non-substantial changes as approved by the
NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000, and expanding the Scope of
Work to include heavy machinery usage and road easement maintenance, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or
operated by NCPA and NCPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



Aieea

/ NORTHEAN CAUIFORNIA mm ABENCY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
RONWRIGHT LOGGING LUMBER CONSTRUCTION, INC.

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Ronwright Logging Lumber
Construction, Inc., a corporation with its office located at 822 Sawmill Road, Camp Connell, CA
95223 (“Contractor") (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of M/ Y 14
2018 (“Effective Date”) in Roseville, California. -

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

1.1

1.2

13

14

1.5

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel., Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, inmediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (“SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
completed. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between G8-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED TWO HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($225,000) for the
Work, which shall inciude all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

« At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AcctsPavyable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Mult-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 22



2.5

Section 3.

the Work.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

4.21

4.22

4.23

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, including
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises, The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 22



4.3
4.4
4.5

4.6

4.7

Section 5.

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally omitted.

Pollution Insurance. Intentionally omitted.

All Policles Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with all applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement,

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any

reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor's Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 22



5.1

5.2

Section 6.

6.1

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and
endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmiess the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work renderad pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitiement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor's estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-063
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright L.ogging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 22



6.2

6.3

6.4

Section 7.

pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsibie for the provision of group healthcare
benefits to its fulltime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmiess Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor's
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shall
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in all respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency’s satisfaction.

Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute

Exhibit C.

Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at

the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

Maintenance Labor Agreement. if the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types
of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page € of 22



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevailing Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding
Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any time,

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 22



Section 8.
8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is empioyed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;

8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,
and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would

Muiti-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 22



have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

Section9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS,

9.1 Records Created as Part of Contractor's Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

9.2 Contractor's Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

9.4 Confidential Information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential Information", as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information ghall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality
agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential Information in accordance with this section.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 22



Section 10.

10.1

9.4.2

9.4.3

9.4.4

Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

Handling of Confidential information. Upon conclusion or termination

of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including ali copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary to comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

PROJECT SITE.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 22



10.2

10.3

Section 11.

1.1

11.2

applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unioading, and storage of
any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor's sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shail perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Deficiencles in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which result from Contractor’s failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 22



11.3

Section 12.

Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4,

12.1

12.2

12.3

124

12.5

12.6

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsible for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. ltis
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shail

Mult-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc,

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 12 of 22



12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

134

conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

If Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (collectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys'’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitled. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agresment not so adjudged shall remalin in full force and effect. The invalidity in
whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 22



13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 ef seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Ron Glass, President

Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
P.O. Box 4399

Camp Conneli, CA 95223

Any written notice to Agency shall be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 14 of 22



13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolived after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.114 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 ef seq.

Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor’s Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 15 of 22



legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficlaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY RONWRIGHT LOGGING LUMBER
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Date 6-/‘4/'& Date S/’Z /15
Qw/‘x A\ H’Lﬂ’l w’%& o »/67»«’«»“%

RANDY HOWARD, General Manager RON GLASS, President

Attest:

(bt

Assistant Secretary‘of'the Commission

Approved as to Form:

/{/*Mf /1(//// ﬂ%

Géneral’ Counsel

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between ~ GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 16 of 22



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. ("Contractor”) shall provide the following services as
requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or
operated by the Agency, its Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members, including:

Falling trees;

Chipping;

Brush removal,

Hauling;

Snow removal; and

Other vegetation management services as necessary.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northerm California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 22



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set
forth in Section 2 hereof. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an estimated
amount of expenses is as follows:

RUNWRIGHT LOGGING ~ LUMBER - CONSTRUCTION INC
PO BOX 4395, Camp Cormal] CA 35223
Rem T07-766-4410 Travis 415-908-B403 Stacle 208 795 6710
Contractors Lick 544854 / Timber Oparators lick A-1472

Wililand Firptruck 800Ga8 $261.83
[Entdprment Only Rates Per Hour: Totat Self foader fog truck | $258,83|
Sow Relatesi: Rate | Trucks and */ailers: ]
- Bodge Hatbed Pump
Biow trutk 5205.00 trisck/Teailer Tow ig $171.92
Trackless Snowblower | s Chaw 3500withlGae | | §20092
Sngw cal witiller & track setter $237.67 Goose nedk trailar $52.00
St Cat wi Backhao $400.032 Car Trailer S30AG
Walk Bebind Snow Blowsy £111.53 A Tapi ) .
\W1LIB toadusfivel carsier $211.27 Chvain sawé $ 10063
Romutsu 180 § smsa Weed whaeker § 1042
10 544 Loader =t $236. 27 Brush cutter 16 e
JD 644 Loader ZHe Mintmum i N $3183.27 Pobe chiafe saw e
e Gas post pasinder
Backhoe ih Eleﬂriaacthammer
580 Super & backhoo §237.02 [Powered Track Carrier
' o |Brasting:
~oagders Biasting- Min Per Hole $157.86
TR70 Bubat 1 | semar ¢ Per Number of Charges Per Mol $35.00
100 Crawler loader/skidder  saxr [Cobracombl Rock Onil | 518937,
ICB Loader with gannonbox | §213.34 |Bestoration Equipmant: | o
{118 Loader/ine? carrier | $211.27 {Ventiiation Fang o $24/Por Day
;@n_nm 180 1 523527 Derumidifier 455/Par Dav
(i 544 Loader $285.27 Generator 2K $52/Pec Day
JE ff*}“jﬁcj e Minwnum | §283.27 Pumps: Large Trash Pump - $10/Per Da!
i ___5mall Trash Pump | 340/Per Day
Doeers. targe Eiptaric Surp 2B/ Per Day
B2YA Grapple/Skidde Dozer I S2¥1.2v Gos High Frosswre Putnel | §70/Par Day
D 750 6-way blade doxes Shy Min $325.27 Wark tght with Stund | 542/Pec Day
Wat Varuam $19/Per fay
Borestey ] Space Meater L $84/par oy
Tiacked mulcher $a42.70 Prisssure Washer Traller -
vermear chipper wiwinch $278.33 Laborer Rates N
|Chig traschk }j_‘ig@s ) - 5393:63‘ General Labarer 5 a0
{S0mp grnder Traffic Flagier S §0.21
{Kpbalko ENT50with Fecon or
Siashbustor MHewd 544870 Tot Fallesflogger - Bi.51
{Ktbelco ED150 with Helac Buckst ]
andfor tit $370.70 Feavy Duty Repalrman and/or Weldes $ 105467
[ Xomatsy PC78 w/ Grapple ar thumb | ” -
;ﬁnj{ ‘liﬁudwt $310.79 [Limbeers/Bashioaders/Pilers $ 80.23
Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 18 of 22



Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

The rates set forth above are valid from March 2018 and may be subject to an annual escalation
of up to 5% per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice to NCPA,

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 19 of 22



EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

" Ren Clage [Przee ek

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment hlstory of all employees of

Jloviowdabd loyoe Caidpen Cusfiactbu The

(Company name)

for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the

above-named project. /
e .%’2”-?‘/.- {xg‘ it
(Signature of officer or agent)
to)
2 day of /’I)la»f , 20 Z& .
THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY

PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Dated this

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 20 of 22



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICABLE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the'same may be amended from time to
time,

(Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 .

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern Callifornia Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 21 of 22



EXHIBIT E

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1) It is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

2) In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

3) If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

4) it has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

5) It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

DATED: 5:/ 2/ (8 Name of Employer @MW@M Tine
/ZQ/L e [agf; p&"@?;:exd"
(Authorized Officer L&ﬂle)
{Address)

8'2?, Sexeo poill (Pl
Cotyp Ctnell Cee. 45223

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 22 of 22



/

/‘*{i’""c”:‘“ﬁA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND RONWRIGHT LOGGING LUMBER
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Multi Task General Services Agreement is entered
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency (‘“Agency”) and Ronwright Logging
Lumber Construction, Inc. (“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of

, 202_.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi Task General Services Agreement dated
effective May 14, 2018, (the “Agreement”) for contractor to provide vegetation management
services for NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $225,000 to a
“NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $1,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to provide for its use by
NCPA and NCPA Members only; and

WHEREAS, the Agency also desires to amend the Description of Work set forth in Exhibit A
to the Agreement to include road easement maintenance and use of heavy machinery, and to
provide for its use by NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA
Members); and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing
and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
1. Section 2 — Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED one million dollars
($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

2. Exhibit A — Scope of Work is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the
attached Exhibit A.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Template 6-8-18

Page 1 of 3



3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth herein.

Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY RONWRIGHT LOGGING LUMBER
CONSTRUCTION, INC.

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager RON GLASS, President

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-053
Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.

Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide the following services as

requested by the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated
by the Agency and its Members, including:

e Vegetation management including tree falling, climbing, brush removal, weed abatement,
chipping and hauling;

Clear rock slides and other debris restricting project access;

Road and easement maintenance;

Rental and operation of heavy machinery; and

Other maintenance services, as needed.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between

Northern California Power Agency and Ronwright Logging Lumber Construction, Inc.
Template 6-8-18

GS-VEN-2018-053

Page 3 of 3



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:  January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Tanner Logging, Inc. — Second Amendment to Five Year Multi-Task General
Services Agreement; Applicable to the following Projects: All Northern California Power Agency

(NCPA) Facilities and NCPA Members.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

FROM: Joel Ledesma c?/

Division: Generation Services

Department. Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

X

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs

City of Gridley

o 0O o O O

City of Healdsburg

City of Lodi
City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

o o o o o 0O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC
Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

o 0o o o o od

SR: 108:20

1T



Tanner Logging, Inc. — Second Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-07 authorizing the General Manager or his designee to enter into
a Second Amendment to the Multi Task General Services Agreement with Tanner Logging,
Inc., with any non-substantial changes as recommended and approved by the NCPA
General Counsel, increasing the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 and
expanding the Scope of Work to include road and easement maintenance, for continued
use at any facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members.

BACKGROUND:

Vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances, road
easements, and other access to project fixtures from time to time for the operation and
maintenance of facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members. Tanner Logging,
Inc. is a provider of these services. NCPA'’s Hydroelectric Facility has worked with Tanner
Logging for about 2 years. Tanner Logging was able to use masticating equipment to restore
access and transmission line clearance to a previously inaccessible portion due to dense
vegetation overgrowth. NCPA was pleased with the vendor’s performance on this challenging
project.

NCPA entered into a five-year Multi Task General Services Agreement with Tanner Logging,
Inc., effective February 16, 2018, for an amount not to exceed $225,000. The First Amendment
to the MTGSA, executed on April 23, 2018, updates the rate sheet in the contract to comply with
prevailing wage requirements. Due to NCPA’s Hydroelectric Facility’s use of this contract for a
number of projects, the agreement is running low on funds. NCPA now desires to amend the
current agreement to increase the not to exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000. NCPA
also desires to amend the Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usage and road easement
maintenance, and to provide for its use by NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by
SCPPA and SCPPA Members). This agreement is available for use at any facility owned and/or
operated by NCPA and NCPA Members. NCPA has agreements in place for similar services with
Kimberly Fields dba K. Weatherman Logging, and Ronwright Logging, Inc.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Upon execution, the total cost of the agreement is not to exceed $1,000,000 over five years.
Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of the agreement will be issued following
NCPA procurement policies and procedures.

SELECTION PROCESS:

This enabling agreement does not commit NCPA to any expenditure of funds. At the time
services are required, NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA
procurement policies and procedures. NCPA seeks bids from as many qualified providers as
possible. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services needed
at the time the service is required.

SR: 108:20



Tanner Logging, Inc. — Second Amendment to 5-Year MTGSA
January 16, 2020
Page 3

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Lodi Energy Center Project Participant
Committee on January 6, 2020, and was approved.

Respectfully submitted,

%Mﬁ Asm

RANDY S. HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (4):
e Resolution
e Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Tanner Logging, Inc.
¢ First Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and Tanner
Logging, Inc.
¢ Second Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement between NCPA and
Tanner Logging, Inc.

SR: 108:20



RESOLUTION 20-07

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE MULTI-TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH TANNER LOGGING, INC.

(reference Staff Report #108:20)

WHEREAS, vegetation management services are required to maintain transmission line clearances and access
roads from time to time at facilities owned and/or operated by the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) and NCPA
Members; and

WHEREAS, Tanner Logging, Inc. is a provider of these services; and

WHEREAS, NCPA entered into a five-year Multi-Task General Services Agreement with Tanner Logging, Inc. on
February 16, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the First Amendment, dated effective April 23, 2018, modified the compensation schedule on Exhibit B to
comply with prevailing wage requirements of the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR); and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Hydroelectric Facility has used the contract to remove vegetation from sections of
transmission lines which are difficult to access, resulting in the current agreement running low on funds; and

WHEREAS, NCPA now seeks to increase the not-to-exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 to ensure
sufficient funds are available for the remaining contract term; and

WHEREAS, NCPA also desires to amend Exhibit A — Scope of Work to include the use of heavy machinery and
road easement maintenance to better describe services available to meet project needs, and to provide for its use by NCPA
and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA Members); and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California Environmental Quality Act. No
environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency authorizes
the General Manager or his designee to enter into a Second Amendment to Multi-Task General Services Agreement with
Tanner Logging, Inc., with any non-substantial changes as approved by the NCPA General Counsel, increasing the not-to-
exceed amount from $225,000 to $1,000,000 and expanding the Scope of Work to include heavy machinery usage and
road easement maintenance, for continued use at all facilities owned and/or operated by NCPA and NCPA Members.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



CPA

" NORYHERN it F08% 5 UMY R BOINTY

MULTI-TASK
GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND
TANNER LOGGING, INC

This Multi-Task General Services Agreement (“"Agreement’) is made by and between the
Northern California Power Agency, a joint powers agency with its main office located at 651
Commerce Drive, Roseville, CA 95678-6420 (“Agency”) and Tanner Logging, Inc., a corporation
with its office located at 113 Main Street, Murphys, CA 95247 (“Contractor”) (together
sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of Emmag_,) L, 2018 (“Effective Date”) in
Roseville, California.

Section 1.

SCOPE OF WORK. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this

Agreement, Contractor is willing to provide to Agency the range of services and/or goods
described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein ("Work").

11

1.2

13

14

15

Term of Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective
Date and shall end when Contractor completes the Work, or no later than five (5)
years from the date this Agreement was signed by Agency, whichever is shorter.

Standard of Performance. Contractor shall perform the Work in the manner
and according to the standards observed by a competent practitioner of the
profession in which Contractor Is engaged and for which Contractor is providing
the Work. Contractor represents that it is licensed, qualified and experienced to
provide the Work set forth herein.

Assignment of Personnel. Contractor shall assign only competent personnel to
perform the Work. In the event that Agency, in its sole discretion, at any time
during the term of this Agreement, requests the reassignment of any such
personnel, Contractor shall, immediately upon receiving written notice from
Agency of such request, reassign such personnel.

Work Provided. Work provided under this Agreement by Contractor may
include Work directly to the Agency or, as requested by the Agency and
consistent with the terms of this Agreement, to Agency members, Southern
California Public Power Authority (‘SCPPA”) or SCPPA members.

Request for Work to be Performed. At such time that Agency determines to
have Contractor perform Work under this Agreement, Agency shall issue a
Purchase Order. The Purchase Order shall identify the specific Work to be
performed ("Requested Work"), may include a not-to-exceed cap on monetary
cap on Requested Work and all related expenditures authorized by that
Purchase Order, and shall include a time by which the Requested Work shall be
compieted. Contractor shall have seven calendar days from the date of the
Agency’s issuance of the Purchase Order in which to respond in writing that
Contractor chooses not to perform the Requested Work. If Contractor agrees to
perform the Requested Work, begins to perform the Requested Work, or does
not respond within the seven day period specified, then Contractor will have

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017



Section 2.

agreed to perform the Requested Work on the terms set forth in the Purchase
Order, this Agreement and its Exhibits.

COMPENSATION. Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT

TO EXCEED TWO HUNDRED TWENTY FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($225,000) for the
Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other reimbursables, as set forth in
Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B. This dollar
amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full amount to the Contractor, but is merely
a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this Agreement.

21

2.2

23

24

Invoices. Contractor shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month
during the term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and
reimbursable costs incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the
following information:

The beginning and ending dates of the billing period;

Work performed,;

The Purchase Order number authorizing the Requested Work;

At Agency's option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the
applicable time entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the
name of the person doing the work, the hours spent by each person, a
brief description of the work, and each reimbursable expense, with
supporting documentation, to Agency’s reasonable satisfaction;

= At Agency's option, the total number of hours of work performed under
the Agreement by Contractor and each employee, agent, and
subcontractor of Contractor performing work hereunder.

Invoices shall be sent to:

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, California 95678

Attn: Accounts Payable
AccisPayable@ncpa.com

Monthly Payment. Agency shall make monthly payments, based on invoices
received, for Work satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable
costs incurred. Agency shall have thirty (30) days from the receipt of an invoice
that complies with all of the requirements above to pay Contractor.

Payment of Taxes. Contractor is solely responsible for the payment of all
federal, state and local taxes, including employment taxes, incurred under this
Agreement.

Authorization to Perform Work. The Contractor is not authorized to perform
any Work or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agresment until
receipt of a Purchase Order from the Contract Administrator.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northemn California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 2 of 21



2.5

Section 3.
the Work.

Section 4.

4.1

4.2

Timing for Submittal of Final Invoice. Contractor shall have ninety (90) days
after completion of the Requested Work to submit its final invoice for the
Requested Work. In the event Contractor fails to submit an invoice to Agency for
any amounts due within the ninety (90) day period, Contractor is deemed to have
waived its right to collect its final payment for the Requested Work from Agency.

FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Contractor shall, at
its sole cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any Work under this
Agreement, Contractor, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of
insurance listed below and shall maintain the types and amounts of insurance listed below for
the period covered by this Agreement.

Workers’ Compensation. If Contractor employs any person, Contractor shall
maintain Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability
Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Contractor
with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident.

Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance.

4.21

4.2.2

423

Commercial General Insurance. Contractor shall maintain commercial
general liability insurance for the term of this Agreement, inciuding
products liability, covering any loss or liability, including the cost of
defense of any action, for bodily injury, death, personal injury and broad
form property damage which may arise out of the operations of
Contractor. The policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per
occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial general coverage shall
be at least as broad as ISO Commercial General Liability form CG 0001
(current edition) on "an occurrence” basis covering comprehensive
General Liability, with a self-insured retention or deductible of no more
than $100,000. No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage.

Automobile Liability. Contractor shall maintain automobile liability
insurance form CA 0001 (current edition) for the term of this Agreement
covering any loss or liability, including the cost of defense of any action,
arising from the operation, maintenance or use of any vehicle (symbol 1),
whether or not owned by the Contractor, on or off Agency premises. The
policy shall provide a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per each accident, with
a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than $100,000. This
insurance shall provide contractual liability covering all motor vehicles and
mobile equipment to the extent coverage may be excluded from general
liability insurance.

General Liability/Umbrella Insurance. The coverage amounts set forth
above may be met by a combination of underlying and umbrella policies
as long as in combination the limits equal or exceed those stated.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 3 of 21



4.3
44

4.5

4.6

4.7

Professional Liability Insurance. Intentionally omitted.

Pollution Insurance. Intentionally omitted.

All Policies Requirements.

4.5.1 Verification of coverage. Prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement, Contractor shall provide Agency with (1) a Certificate of
Insurance that demonstrates compliance with ail applicable insurance
provisions contained herein and (2) policy endorsements to the policies
referenced in Section 4.2 and in Section 4.4, if applicable, adding the
Agency as an additional insured and declaring such insurance primary in
regard to work performed pursuant to this Agreement.

4.5.2 Notice of Reduction in or Cancellation of Coverage. Contractor shall
provide at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Agency of any

reduction in scope or amount, cancellation, or modification adverse to
Agency of the policies referenced in Section 4.

4.5.3 Higher Limits. If Contractor maintains higher limits than the minimums
specified herein, the Agency shall be entitled to coverage for the higher
limits maintained by the Contractor.

4.5.4 Additional Certificates and Endorsements. If Contractor performs
Work for Agency members, SCPPA and/or SCPPA members pursuant to
this Agreement, Agency shall have the right to require Contractor to
provide the certificates of insurance and/or policy endorsements, as
referenced in Section 4.5.1, naming the specific Agency member,
SCPPA and/or SCPPA member for which the Work is to be performed.

Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor agrees to waive subrogation which any
insurer of Contractor may acquire from Contractor by virtue of the payment of
any loss. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary
to effect this waiver of subrogation. The Workers' Compensation policy shall be
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Agency for all work performed
by Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors.

Contractor’'s Obligation. Contractor shall be solely responsible for ensuring
that all equipment, vehicles and other items utilized in the performance of Work
are operated, provided or otherwise utilized in a manner that ensures they are
and remain covered by the policies referenced in Section 4 during this
Agreement. Contractor shall also ensure that all workers involved in the
provision of Work are properly classified as employees, agents or independent
contractors and are and remain covered by any and all workers' compensation
insurance required by applicable law during this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 4 of 21



Section 5.
5.1

5.2

Section 6.
6.1

INDEMNIFICATION AND CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Effect of Insurance. Agency's acceptance of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve Contractor from
liability under this indemnification and hold harmless clause. This indemnification
and hold harmless clause shall apply to any damages or claims for damages
whether or not such insurance policies shall have been determined to apply. By
execution of this Agreement, Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
provisions of this section and that it is a material element of consideration.

Scope. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel reasonably acceptable
to the Agency, and hold harmless the Agency, and its officials, commissioners,
officers, employees, agents and volunteers from and against all losses, liabilities,
claims, demands, suits, actions, damages, expenses, penalties, fines, costs
(including without limitation costs and fees of litigation), judgments and causes of
action of every nature arising out of or in connection with any acts or omissions
by Contractor, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, except as caused by
the sole or gross negligence of Agency. Notwithstanding, should this Agreement
be construed as a construction agreement under Civil Code section 2783, then
the exception referenced above shall also be for the active negligence of Agency.

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

Independent Contractor. Contractor is an independent contractor and not an
employee of Agency. Agency shall have the right to control Contractor only
insofar as the results of Contractor's Work and assignment of personnel pursuant
to Section 1; otherwise, Agency shall not have the right to control the means by
which Contractor accomplishes Work rendered pursuant to this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other Agency, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law,
or ordinance to the contrary, Contractor and any of its employees, agents, and
subcontractors providing services under this Agreement shall not qualify for or
become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and all claims to, any
compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by Agency, including but
not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) as an employee of Agency and entitlement to any contribution to
be paid by Agency for employer contributions and/or employee contributions for
PERS benefits.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency for the payment of
any employee and/or employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of
Contractor or its employees, agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the
payment of any penalties and interest on such contributions, which would
otherwise be the responsibility of Agency. Contractor and Agency acknowledge
and agree that compensation paid by Agency to Contractor under this Agreement
is based upon Contractor’s estimated costs of providing the Work, including
salaries and benefits of employees, agents and subcontractors of Contractor.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 5 of 21



Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Agency from any lawsuit,
administrative action, or other claim for penalties, losses, costs, damages,
expense and liability of every kind, nature and description that arise out of,
pertain to, or relate to such claims, whether directly or indirectly, due to
Contractor’s failure to secure workers’ compensation insurance for its
employees, agents, or subcontractors.

Contractor agrees that it is responsible for the provision of group heaithcare
benefits to its fulitime employees under 26 U.S.C. § 4980H of the Affordable
Care Act. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Agency from any penalty issued to Agency under the Affordable
Care Act resulting from the performance of the Services by any employee, agent,
or subcontractor of Contractor.

6.2 Contractor Not Agent. Except as Agency may specify in writing, Contractor
shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of Agency in any
capacity whatsoever as an agent. Contractor shall have no authority, express or
implied, pursuant to this Agreement to bind Agency to any obligation whatsoever.

6.3 Assignment and Subcontracting. This Agreement contemplates personal
performance by Contractor and is based upon a determination of Contractor’s
unique professional competence, experience, and specialized professional
knowledge. A substantial inducement to Agency for entering into this Agreement
was and is the personal reputation and competence of Contractor. Contractor
may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the prior written
approval of the Agency. Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the
subcontractors identified in Exhibit A, without prior written approval of the
Agency. Where written approval is granted by the Agency, Contractor shall
supervise all work subcontracted by Contractor in performing the Work and shali
be responsible for all work performed by a subcontractor as if Contractor itself
had performed such work. The subcontracting of any work to subcontractors
shall not relieve Contractor from any of its obligations under this Agreement with
respect to the Work and Contractor is obligated to ensure that any and all
subcontractors performing any Work shall be fully insured in ali respects and to
the same extent as set forth under Section 4, to Agency's satisfaction.

6.4 Certification as to California Energy Commission. If requested by the
Agency, Contractor shall, at the same time it executes this Agreement, execute

Exhibit C.

6.5 Certification as to California Energy Commission Regarding Hazardous
Materials Transport Vendors. If requested by the Agency, Contractor shall, at

the same time it executes this Agreement, execute Exhibit D.

6.6 Maintenance Labor Agreement. If the Work is subject to the terms of one or
more Maintenance Labor Agreements, which are applicable only to certain types

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 6 of 21



Section 7.
7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

of construction, repair and/or maintenance projects, then Contractor shall
execute Exhibit E and/or similar documentation as to compliance.

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

Governing Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern this
Agreement.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor and its subcontractors and
agents, if any, shall comply with all laws applicable to the performance of the
work hereunder.

Licenses and Permits. Contractor represents and warrants to Agency that
Contractor and its employees, agents, and subcontractors (if any) have and will
maintain at their sole expense during the term of this Agreement all licenses,
permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required
to practice their respective professions.

Monitoring by DIR. The Work is subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of industrial Relations.

Registration with DIR. During the term of this Agreement, Contractor warrants
that it is registered with the Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform Work consistent with Labor Code section 1725.5.

Prevalling Wage Rates. In accordance with California Labor Code Section
1771, not less than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for work of a
similar character in the locality in which the Work is to be performed, and not less
than the general prevailing rate of per diem wages for holiday and overtime work
as provided in the California Labor Code must be paid to all workers engaged in
performing the Work. In accordance with California Labor Code Section 1770
and following, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general
prevailing wage per diem rates for the locality in which the Work is to be
performed; the Agency has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which
the Work is to be performed for each craft, classification or type of worker
needed to perform the project; and copies of the prevailing rate of per diem
wages are on file at the Agency and will be made available on request.
Throughout the performance of the Work, Contractor must comply with all
applicable laws and regulations that apply to wages earned in performance of the
Work. Contractor assumes all responsibility for such payments and shall defend,
indemnify and hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims made by the
State of California, the Department of Industrial Relations, any subcontractor, any
worker or any other third party with regard thereto.

Additionally, in accordance with the California Administrative Code, Title 8, Group
3, Article 2, Section 16000, Publication of Prevailing Wage Rates by Awarding

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 7 of 21



Section 8.

8.1

8'2

8.3

8.4

Bodies, copies of the applicable determination of the Director can be found on
the web at: http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/ and may be reviewed at any.time.

Contractor shall be required to submit to the Agency during the contract period,
copies of Public Works payroll reporting information per California Department of
Industrial Relations, Form A- 1-131 (New 2-80) concerning work performed under
this Agreement.

Contractor shall comply with applicable law, including Labor Code Sections 1774
and 1775. In accordance with Section 1775, Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty
to Agency $50.00 for each calendar day or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the prevailing rates as determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations for such work or craft in which such worker is employed for any Work
done under the Agreement by Contractor or by any subcontractor under
Contractor in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code and in particular,
Labor Code Sections 1770 et seq. In addition to the penalty and pursuant to
Section 1775, the difference between such prevailing wage rates and the amount
paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each
worker was paid less than the prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker
by the Contractor.

TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

Termination. Agency may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause
upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Contractor.

In the event of termination, Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for Work
satisfactorily completed as of the effective date of termination; Agency, however,
may condition payment of such compensation upon Contractor delivering to
Agency any or all records or documents (as referenced in Section 9.1 hereof).

Amendments. The Parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed
by both of the Parties.

Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all
provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between Agency and Contractor
shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Options upon Breach by Contractor. If Contractor materially breaches any of
the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to those set forth in Section
4, Agency’s remedies shall include, but not be limited to, the following:

8.4.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement;
8.4.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents,

and any other work product prepared by Contractor pursuant to this
Agreement;

Multi-Task General Services Agreement betwaen GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 8 of 21



Section 9.
9.1

9.2

2.3

9.4

8.4.3 Retain a different Contractor to complete the Work not finished by
Contractor; and/or

8.4.4 Charge Contractor the difference between the costs to complete the Work
that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that Agency would
have paid Contractor pursuant hereto if Contractor had completed the
Work.

KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

Records Created as Part of Contractor’s Performance. All reports, data,
maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, pians,
studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in
electronic or any other form, that Contractor prepares or obtains pursuant to this
Agreement and that relate to the matters covered hereunder shall be the property
of the Agency. Contractor hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the
Agency upon termination of the Agreement. Agency and Contractor agree that,
unless approved by Agency in writing, Contractor shall not release to any non-
parties to this Agreement any data, plans, specifications, reports and other
documents.

Contractor’'s Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain any and all
records or other documents evidencing or relating to charges for Work or
expenditures and disbursements charged to the Agency under this Agreement
for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period required by law, from
the date of final payment to the Contractor under this Agreement.

Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that this
Agreement requires Contractor to maintain shall be made available for
inspection, audit, and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon
oral or written request of the Agency. Under California Government Code
Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds expended under this Agreement
exceeds ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), the Agreement shall be subject to
the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of Agency or as
part of any audit of the Agency, for a period of three (3) years after final payment
under this Agreement.

Confidential information and Disclosure.

9.4.1 Confidential Information. The term "Confidential information”, as used
herein, shall mean any and all confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information, whether written, recorded, electronic, oral or otherwise,
where the Confidential Information is made available in a tangible
medium of expression and marked in a prominent location as confidential,
proprietary and/or trade secret information. Confidential Information shall
not include information that: (a) was already known to the Receiving Party
or is otherwise a matter of public knowledge, (b) was disclosed to
Receiving Party by a third party without violating any confidentiality

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 9 of 21



agreement, (c) was independently developed by Receiving Party without
reverse engineering, as evidenced by written records thereof, or (d) was
not marked as Confidential information in accordance with this section.

9.4.2 Non-Disclosure of Confidential Information. During the term of this
Agreement, either party may disclose (the “Disclosing Party”) Confidential
Information to the other party (the “Receiving Party”). The Receiving
Party: (a) shall hold the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information in
confidence; and (b) shall take all reasonable steps to prevent any
unauthorized possession, use, copying, transfer or disclosure of such
Confidential Information.

9.4.3 Permitted Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following
disclosures of Confidential Information are allowed. Receiving Party shall
endeavor to provide prior written notice to Disclosing Party of any
permitted disclosure made pursuant to Section 9.4.3.2 or 9.4.3.3.
Disclosing Party may seek a protective order, including without limitation,
a temporary restraining order to prevent or contest such permitted
disclosure; provided, however, that Disclosing Party shall seek such
remedies at its sole expense. Neither party shall have any liability for
such permitted disclosures:

9.4.3.1 Disclosure to employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors or
other representatives of Receiving Party that have a need to know
in connection with this Agreement.

9.4.3.2 Disclosure in response to a valid order of a court, government or
regulatory agency or as may otherwise be required by law; and

9.4.3.3 Disclosure by Agency in response to a request pursuant to the
California Public Records Act.

9.4.4 Handling of Confidential Information. Upon conclusion or termination
of the Agreement, Receiving Party shall return to Disclosing Party or
destroy Confidential Information (including all copies thereof), if requested
by Disclosing Party in writing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Receiving Party may retain copies of such Confidential Information,
subject to the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement: (a) for archival
purposes in its computer system; (b) in its legal department files; and (c)
in files of Receiving Party's representatives where such copies are
necessary {o comply with applicable law. Party shall not disclose the
Disclosing Party’s Information to any person other than those of the
Receiving Party’s employees, agents, consultants, contractors and
subcontractors who have a need to know in connection with this
Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 10 of 21



Section 10.

1041

10.2

10.3

Section 11.
11.1

PROJECT SITE.

Operations at the Project Site. Each Project site may include the power plant
areas, all buildings, offices, and other locations where Work is to be performed,
including any access roads. Contractor shall perform the Work in such a manner
as to cause a minimum of interference with the operations of the Agency; if
applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced
in Section 1.4; and other contractors at the Project site and to protect all persons
and property thereon from damage or injury. Upon completion of the Work at a
Project site, Contractor shall leave such Project site clean and free of all tools,
equipment, waste materials and rubbish, stemming from or relating to
Contractor's Work.

Contractor's Equipment, Tools, Supplies and Materials. Contractor shall be
solely responsible for the transportation, loading and unloading, and storage of

any equipment, tools, supplies or materials required for performing the Work,
whether owned, leased or rented. Neither Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4, will be
responsible for any such equipment, supplies or materials which may be lost,
stolen or damaged or for any additional rental charges for such. Equipment,
tools, supplies and materials left or stored at a Project site, with or without
permission, is at Contractor’s sole risk. Anything left on the Project site an
unreasonable length of time after the Work is completed shall be presumed to
have been abandoned by the Contractor. Any transportation furnished by
Agency or, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall be solely as an accommodation and neither
Agency nor, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work,
as referenced in Section 1.4, shall have liability therefor. Contractor shall
assume the risk and is solely responsible for its owned, non-owned and hired
automobiles, trucks or other motorized vehicles as well as any equipment, tools,
supplies, materials or other property which is utilized by Contractor on the Project
site. All materials and supplies used by Contractor in the Work shall be new and
in good condition.

Use of Agency Equipment. Contractor shall assume the risk and is solely
responsible for its use of any equipment owned and property provided by Agency
and, if applicable, the entity for which Contractor is performing the Work, as
referenced in Section 1.4, for the performance of Work.

WARRANTY.

Nature of Work. In addition to any and all warranties provided or implied by law
or public policy, Contractor warrants that all Work shall be free from defects in
design and workmanship, and that Contractor shall perform all Work in
accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules and regulations
including engineering, construction and other codes and standards and prudent
electrical utility standards, and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 11 of 21



1.2

1.3

Section 12.

Deficiencies in Work. In addition to all other rights and remedies which Agency
may have, Agency shall have the right to require, and Contractor shall be
obligated at its own expense to perform, all further Work which may be required
to correct any deficiencies which resuilt from Contractor's failure to perform any
Work in accordance with the standards required by this Agreement. If during the
term of this Agreement or the one (1) year period following completion of the
Work, any equipment, supplies or other materials or Work used or provided by
Contractor under this Agreement fails due to defects in material and/or
workmanship or other breach of this Agreement, Contractor shall, upon any
reasonable written notice from Agency, replace or repair the same to Agency's
satisfaction.

Assignment of Warranties. Contractor hereby assigns to Agency all additional
warranties, extended warranties, or benefits like warranties, such as insurance,
provided by or reasonably obtainable from suppliers of equipment and material
used in the Work.

HEALTH AND SAFETY PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall establish, maintain,

and enforce safe work practices, and implement an accident/incident prevention program
intended to ensure safe and healthful operations under their direction. The program shall
include all requisite components of such a program under Federal, State and local regulations
and shall comply with all site programs established by Agency and, if applicable, the entity for
which Contractor is performing the Work, as referenced in Section 1.4.

121

12.2

12.3

124

Contractor is responsible for acquiring job hazard assessments as necessary to
safely perform the Work and provide a copy to Agency upon request.

Contractor is responsible for providing all employee health and safety training
and personal protective equipment in accordance with potential hazards that may
be encountered in performance of the Work and provide copies of the certified
training records upon request by Agency. Contractor shall be responsibie for
proper maintenance and/or disposal of their personal protective equipment and
material handling equipment.

Contractor is responsible for ensuring that its lower-tier subcontractors are aware
of and will comply with the requirements set forth herein.

Agency, or its representatives, may periodically monitor the safety performance
of the Contractor performing the Work. Contractors and its subcontractors shall
be required to comply with the safety and health obligations as established in the
Agreement. Non-compliance with safety, health, or fire requirements may result
in cessation of work activities, until items in non-compliance are corrected. It is
also expressly acknowledged, understood and agreed that no payment shall be
due from Agency to Contractor under this Agreement at any time when, or for
any Work performed when, Contractor is not in full compliance with this Section
12.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 12 of 21



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

12.9

12.10

Section 13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

Contractor shall immediately report any injuries to the Agency site safety
representative. Additionally, the Contractor shall investigate and submit to the
Agency site safety representative copies of all written accident reports, and
coordinate with Agency if further investigation is requested.

Contractor shall take all reasonable steps and precautions to protect the health of
its employees and other site personnel with regard to the Work. Contractor shall
conduct occupational health monitoring and/or sampling to determine levels of
exposure of its employees to hazardous or toxic substances or environmental
conditions. Copies of any sampling results will be forwarded to the Agency site
safety representative upon request.

Contractor shall develop a plan to properly handle and dispose of any hazardous
wastes, if any, Contractor generates in performing the Work.

Contractor shall advise its employees and subcontractors that any employee who
jeopardizes his/her safety and health, or the safety and health of others, may be
subject to actions including removal from Work.

Contractor shall, at the sole option of the Agency, develop and provide to the
Agency a Hazardous Material Spill Response Plan that includes provisions for
spill containment and clean-up, emergency contact information including
regulatory agencies and spill sampling and analysis procedures. Hazardous
Materials shall include diesel fuel used for trucks owned or leased by the
Contractor.

if Contractor is providing Work to an Agency Member, SCPPA or SCPPA
member (coilectively “Member” solely for the purpose of this section) pursuant to
Section 1.4 hereof, then that Member shall have the same rights as the Agency
under Sections 12.1, 12.2, 12.4, 12.5, and 12.6 hereof.

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

Attorneys’ Fees. If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an
action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this
Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in
addition to any other relief to which that party may be entitied. The court may set
such fees in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose.

Venue. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under
this Agreement, the Parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested
exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Placer or in the
United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this
Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect. The invalidity in

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 13 of 21



whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the
validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

13.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision
of this Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or
any other term of this Agreement.

13.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the Parties.

13.6 Conflict of Interest. Contractor may serve other clients, but none whose
activities within the corporate limits of Agency or whose business, regardless of
location, would place Contractor in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined
in the Political Reform Act, codified at California Government Code Section
81000 et seq.

Contractor shall not employ any Agency official in the work performed pursuant
to this Agreement. No officer or employee of Agency shall have any financial
interest in this Agreement that would violate California Government Code
Sections 1090 et seq.

13.7 Contract Administrator. This Agreement shall be administered by Ken Speer,
Assistant General Manager, or his/her designee, who shall act as the Agency’s
representative. All correspondence shall be directed to or through the
representative.

13.8 Notices. Any written notice to Contractor shall be sent to:

Ron Tanner, Treasurer
Tanner Logging, Inc.
P.O. Box 1603
Murphys, CA 95247
209-768-8013

Any written notice to Agency shalil be sent to:

Randy S. Howard

General Manager

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

With a copy to:

General Counsel

Northern California Power Agency
651 Commerce Drive

Roseville, CA 95678

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 14 of 21



13.9 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the Agency, the
first page of a technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page
of construction drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed
professional responsible for the report/design preparation.

13.10 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached
hereto, represents the entire and integrated agreement between Agency and
Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
agreements, either written or oral. All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated
by reference herein.

13.11 Alternative Dispute Resolution. If any dispute arises between the Parties that
cannot be settled after engaging in good faith negotiations, Agency and
Contractor agree to resolve the dispute in accordance with the following:

13.11.1 Each party shall designate a senior management or executive
level representative to negotiate any dispute;

13.11.2 The representatives shall attempt, through good faith negotiations,
to resolve the dispute by any means within their authority.

13.11.3 If the issue remains unresolved after fifteen (15) days of good faith
negotiations, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the disagreement
by negotiation between legal counsel. If the above process fails,
the Parties shall resolve any remaining disputes through
mediation to expedite the resolution of the dispute.

13.11.4 The mediation process shall provide for the selection within fifteen
(15) days by both Parties of a disinterested third person as
mediator, shall be commenced within thirty (30) days and shall be
concluded within fifteen (15) days from the commencement of the
mediation.

13.11.5 The Parties shall equally bear the costs of any third party in any
alternative dispute resolution process.

13.11.6 The alternative dispute resolution process is a material condition
to this Agreement and must be exhausted as an administrative
remedy prior to either Party initiating legal action. This alternative
dispute resolution process is not intended to nor shall be
construed to change the time periods for filing a claim or action
specified by Government Code §§ 900 et seq.

13.12 Controlling Provisions. In the case of any conflict between the terms of this
Agreement and the Exhibits hereto, a Purchase Order, or Contractor's Proposal
(if any), the Agreement shall control. In the case of any conflict between the
Exhibits hereto and a Purchase Order or the Contractor's Proposal, the Exhibits
shall control. In the case of any conflict between the terms of a Purchase Order
and the Contractor's Proposal, the Purchase Order shall control.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 15 of 21



13.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each
of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement.

13.14 Construction of Agreement. Each party hereto has had an equivalent
opportunity to participate in the drafting of the Agreement and/or to consult with
legal counsel. Therefore, the usual construction of an agreement against the
drafting party shall not apply hereto.

13.15 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of
the parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any non-signator third parties.
However, should Contractor provide Work to an Agency member, SCPPA or
SCPPA member (collectively for the purpose of this section only “Member”)
pursuant to Section 1.4, the parties recognize that such Member may be a third
party beneficiary solely as to the Purchase Order and Requested Work relating to
such Member.

The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date signed by the Agency.
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TANNER LOGGING, INC.

Date ) z—/’é /,& Date 'Z_[/{_q}/{%'
£, § VN 30
RANDY HOWARD, General Manager RON TANNER, Treasurer

Approved as to Form:

Geg/heral Counse

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-010
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 16 of 21



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Tanner Logging, Inc. ("Contractor") as requested by Northern California Power Agency
("Agency”"), Agency Members, SCPPA, or SCPPA Members, shall perform the following
services including, without limitation:

Falling trees;

Chipping;

Brush removal;

Hauling; and

Other vegetation management services as necessary.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 17 of 21



EXHIBIT B
COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA, NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be
quoted at the time services are requested. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an
estimated amount of expenses is as follows;

Tanner Logging
PO Box 1603
Murphys, CA 95247
2018 Rate Sheet

3-27-18 Rates Superseded. After receiving advice from the DIR, Tanner had to adjust rates to
compensate for increased prevailing wages. See current rate sheet on next page.

Equipment Hourly Rate

Tigercat / Masticator $232
527 cat Track Skidder $178
525 Wheel Skidder $158
12 Grader $158
Wheel Tractor / Box Scraper $94
Faller $93
Tree Trimmer $26
Tree Climber $103
Transport 3 Axel Truck 16 Wheel trailer $135
Pilot Car $45

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested.

The rates set forth above are valid from January 2018 and may be subject to an annual
escalation of up to 5% per year, effective upon 30 days’ prior written notice to NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the Internal Revenue Service.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 18 of 21



Tanner Logging
PO Box 1603, Murphys, CA 95247

2018 Rate Sheet
Hourly
Equipment Rate
Tigercat Masticator S 344.00
527 Dozer/Push CAT or *Grader
Power Blade or Skidder 525 $ 258.00
Tractor Drawn Box Scraper
Tree Climber, Faller, chain saw $ 123.00
operator
Laborer - general, brushing or $ 130.00
cleanup
Transport 3 Aer-Truck, 16 Wheel $ 266.00
Trailer
Pilot Car and driver S 138.00

*overtime when needed by
NCPA for snow removal - road
maintenance




EXHIBIT C
CERTIFICATION
Affidavit of Compliance for Contractors

" Ronald Tanner, Treasurer

(Name of person signing affidavit)(Title)

do hereby certify that background investigations to ascertain the accuracy of the identity
and employment history of all employees of ‘
Tanner Loﬁ gin Ll

(Company name)
for contract work at:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI, CA 95242

(Project name and location)

have been conducted as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the

above-named PTOJGM

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this 1 4 day of <7 20 |8

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.

Rev'd 6/27/2017
Page 19 of 21



EXHIBIT D - NOT APPLICAELE
CERTIFICATION

Affidavit of Compliance for Hazardous Materials Transport Vendors

(Name of person signing affidavit)Title)

do hereby certify that the below-named company has prepared and implemented security plans
in conformity with 49 CFR 172, subpart | and has conducted employee background
investigations in conformity with 49 CFR 172.802(a), as the same may be amended from time to
time,

{Company name)
for hazardous materials delivery to:

LODI ENERGY CENTER, 12745 N. THORNTON ROAD, LODI. CA 95242

(Project name and location)

as required by the California Energy Commission Decision for the above-named project.

(Signature of officer or agent)

Dated this day of , 20 __

THIS AFFIDAVIT OF COMPLIANCE SHALL BE APPENDED TO THE PROJECT SECURITY
PLAN AND SHALL BE RETAINED AT ALL TIMES AT THE PROJECT SITE FOR REVIEW BY
THE CALIFORNIA ENERGY COMMISSION COMPLIANCE PROJECT MANAGER.

Multi-Task General Services Agresment bstween GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 20 of 21



EXHIBIT E - NOT APPLICABLE

ATTACHMENT A [from MLA]
AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND

MAINTENANCE LABOR AGREEMENT ATTACHMENT
LODI ENERGY CENTER PROJECT

The undersigned hereby certifies and agrees that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

DATED: Name of Employer

it is an Employer as that term is defined in Section 1.4 of the Lodi Energy Center Project
Maintenance Labor Agreement (“Agreement” solely for the purposes of this Exhibit E)
because it has been, or will be, awarded a contract or subcontract to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work on the Project (as defined in Section 1.2 and 2.1 of the
Agreement), or to authorize another party to assign, award or subcontract Covered
Work, or to perform Covered Work.

In consideration of the award of such contract or subcontract, and in further
consideration of the promises made in the Agreement and all attachments thereto (a
copy of which was received and is hereby acknowledged), it accepts and agrees to be
bound by the terms and condition of the Agreement, together with any and all
amendments and supplements now existing or which are later made thereto.

If it performs Covered Work, it will be bound by the legally established trust agreements
designated in local master collective bargaining agreements, and hereby authorizes the
parties to such local trust agreements to appoint trustees and successor trustee to
administer the trust funds, and hereby ratifies and accepts the trustees so appointed as
if made by the undersigned.

It has no commitments or agreements that would preclude its full and complete
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

It will secure a duly executed Agreement to be Bound, in form identical to this
documents, from any Employer(s) at any tier or tiers with which it contracts to assign,
award, or subcontract Covered Work, or to authorize another party to assign, award or
subcontract Covered Work, or to perform Covered Work.

(Authorized Officer & Title)

{Address)

Multi-Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northem California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Rev'd 6/27/2017

Page 21 of 21



NCPA

HOETHERN SAUSDINIA POVER ATENLY

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MULTI TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND TANNER LOGGING, INC.

This First Amendment ("Amendment”) to Multi Task General Services Agreement is entered into by and
between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Tanner Logging, Inc. (“Contractor”) (collectively
referred to as “the Parties’) asof __ Ho il 23, 201@

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi Task General Services Agreement effective February 16,
2018, (the “Agreement”) for Tanner Logging, Inc. to provide vegetation management services for the NCPA
Hydroelectric Project, and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement to amend the compensation schedule
on Exhibit B provided with the contract due to Department of industrial Relations (DIR) prevailing wage
requirements; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing and
signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
1. Exhibit B - COMPENSATION SCHEDULE is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the

Attached Exhibit B.
2. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as specifically set
forth herein.
Date: ‘4/7*31' k=g Date:_% 29 - 2013
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TANNER LOGGING, INC.
oy S| il

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 2-17-15
Page 10f 3



Attest:

Lo~ (c,u 0 ax g
Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:
e

/AsSistant encfal Counsel

/

¥

First Amendment to Multi Task Generat Services Agreement between
Northern Califomia Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 2-17-15 Page 20f 3



EXHIBITE
COMPENSATIOIf SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES

Compensation for all work, including hourly fees and expenses, shall not exceed the amount set forth in
Section 2 hereof. Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA, NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be
quoted at the time services are requested. The hourly rates and or compensation break down and an
estimated amount of expenses is a8 follows:

Tanmer Lopgn
PO Box 1603, Murphys, CA 95247

2018 Rate Sheet
Hourly
Equipment __Rate
Tigercat tasticator S 334.00

$27 Dozet/Push (AT o5 *Grader
Power Blade or Skdder 525 WAt K1A]
Tractor Dravwn Box Sraper

Trew Chimber, Faller, (hagin saw

operator > 100
horer 2 {, brvshn
Laborer  peneral, biusiing or $ 130.00
cleanup
Transport 3 Axel Truck, 16 Wheel
L Xf‘ Y S 266,00
Trailer .
pilot Lar and driver S 138.00

*overtine when needed by
NCPA Tur snow removal rod
L. maintepance ]

Pricing for services to be performed at NCPA Member or SCPPA locations will be quoted at the
time services are requested. |

The rates set forth above are valid from January 2018 and may be subject to an annual
escalation of up to 5% per year, effective upon 30 days' prior written notice to NCPA.

NOTE: As a public agency, NCPA shall not reimburse Contractor for travel, food and related
costs in excess of those permitted by the intemal Revenue Service.

First Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between
Northern Califonia Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 2-17-15 Page 3of 3



A PUBLIC AGINTY

PA

/ NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

SECOND AMENDMENT TO MULTI TASK GENERAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND TANNER LOGGING, INC.

This Second Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Multi Task General Services Agreement is entered
into by and between the Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) and Tanner Logging, Inc.
(“Contractor”) (collectively referred to as “the Parties”) as of ,202__.

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Multi Task General Services Agreement dated
effective February 16, 2018, (the “Agreement”) for contractor to provide vegetation management
services for NCPA, NCPA Members, SCPPA and SCPPA Members; and

WHEREAS, the First Amendment modified the compensation schedule on Exhibit B to comply
with prevailing wage requirements of the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) dated effective April
23, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to increase the total
compensation authorized by the Agreement from a “NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $225,000 to a
“NOT TO EXCEED” amount of $1,000,000; and

WHEREAS, the Agency now desires to amend the Agreement to provide for its use by
NCPA and NCPA Members only; and

WHEREAS, the Agency also desires to amend the Description of Work set forth in Exhibit A
to the Agreement to include road easement maintenance and use of heavy machinery, and to
provide for its use by NCPA and NCPA Members only (eliminating use by SCPPA and SCPPA
Members); and

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement as set forth above; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 8.2 all changes to the Agreement must be in writing
and signed by all the Parties; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:
1. Section 2 — Compensation of the Agreement is amended and restated to read as follows:

Agency hereby agrees to pay Contractor an amount NOT TO EXCEED one million dollars
($1,000,000) for the Work, which shall include all fees, costs, expenses and other
reimbursables, as set forth in Contractor’s fee schedule, attached hereto and incorporated
herein as Exhibit B. This dollar amount is not a guarantee that Agency will pay that full
amount to the Contractor, but is merely a limit of potential Agency expenditures under this
Agreement.

The remainder of Section 2 of the Agreement is unchanged.

Second Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 6-8-18

Page 1 of 3



2. Exhibit A — Scope of Work is amended and restated to read in full as set forth in the
attached Exhibit A.

3. This Amendment in no way alters the terms and conditions of the Agreement except as
specifically set forth herein.

Date: Date:

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY TANNER LOGGING, INC.

RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager RONALD TANNER, Treasurer

Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form:

Jane E. Luckhardt, General Counsel

Second Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between GS-VEN-2018-019
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 6-8-18 Page 2 of 3



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK

Tanner Logging, Inc. ("Contractor") shall provide the following services as requested by the

Northern California Power Agency (“Agency”) at any facilities owned or operated by the Agency
and its Members, including:

e Vegetation management including tree falling, climbing, brush removal, weed abatement,
chipping and hauling;

Clear rock slides and other debiris restricting project access;

Road and easement maintenance;

Rental and operation of heavy machinery; and

Other maintenance services, as needed.

No project under this Agreement shall include Work that would qualify as a Public Works Project
under the California Public Contract Code.

Second Amendment to Multi Task General Services Agreement between
Northern California Power Agency and Tanner Logging, Inc.
Template 6-8-18

GS-VEN-2019-019

Page 3 of 3



A PUBLIC AGENCY

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT: NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project; Applicable to the following
projects: NCPA Geothermal Facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

January 16, 2020

FROM: Joel Ledesma (/

Department: Geothermal

-

Assistant General Manager

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

If other, please describe:

Competitive Pricing Process

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X O O X @O

X

Cityof Lodi X

City of Lompoc X
City of Palo AIfo O
City of Redding [
City of Roseville

City of Santa Clara X

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

(|

X

X

o o o

SR: 109:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-08 authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project
and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute
agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with NCPA Purchasing
Policies and Procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a total not to exceed
amount of $893,817.

BACKGROUND:

The HVAC system at NCPA’s Geothermal Plant 1 was originally installed in 1982. This system is
no longer performing adequately. Numerous repairs have been made over the past 10 years.
Temporary rental equipment is currently be used, therefore, a determination has been made that
a new system is required. An HVAC engineering firm was hired to design a system incorporating
usable components from the existing system while replacing components that are no longer
functional.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The Plant 1 HVAC System Project will cost $893,817. This project was deferred from FY19
budget to FY20 budget. Purchase orders referencing the terms and conditions of any
agreements executed for work related to this project will be issued following NCPA procurement
policies and procedures

SELECTION PROCESS:

NCPA is currently soliciting bids from multiple vendors to perform the work required for this
project. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA procurement policies and
procedures. NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 109:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project
January 16, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

g

General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 109:20



RESOLUTION 20-08

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE NCPA GEOTHERMAL PLANT 1 HVAC SYSTEM PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #109:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the
project owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System is no longer performing efficiently. Numerous
repairs have been made over the past 10 years and efforts to keep the system functional have been met with
poor success; and

WHEREAS, after multiple attempts to fix the existing system, NCPA staff has determined that a new
system is required; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the NCPA Geothermal Plant 1 HVAC System Project, and delegates authority to the General
Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in
accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a
total not to exceed amount of $893,817.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC AGENCY

PA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 9, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: ° NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project;
Applicable to the following projects: NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Facility.

AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent

9

Department. Geothermal

FROM: Joel Ledesma -

7.4

Assistant General Manager N/A

Division: Generation Services

METHOD OF SELECTION:

If other, please describe:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

O

X

X

X

City of Lodi

X

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto

City of Redding

City of Roseville

X X O 0O K

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake

X O

City of Ukiah

X

Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland

o O

Truckee Donner PUD

Other

X

Turlock

SR: 110:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Approval of Resolution 20-09 authorizing the NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam
Ejector Replacement Project, and delegating authority to the General Manager or his designee to
award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase orders for the project in accordance with
NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval by the Commission, for a
total not to exceed amount of $300,000.

BACKGROUND:

The NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project will include
upgrading the existing steam ejectors at NCPA’s Geothermal Plant 2. This work is a part of
NCPA'’s asset management program to ensure the plant continues to operate at an optimal level.
This upgrade will increase steam production and lessen auxiliary steam usage. NCPA staff
estimates that these upgrades will result in a gain of approximately 0.25 MW in generation for the
Geothermal facility.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project was included as
a part of NCPA’s Geothermal facility FY20 budget, approved in the May 28, 2019 Commission
meeting (Resolution 19-43). This project was originally budgeted to cost $200,000. The
forecasted project cost has increased, and staff is now seeking an additional $100,000, for a total
revised project cost not to exceed $300,000. The additional requested funds can be absorbed
within the FY20 budget, and no budget augmentation is required.

SELECTION PROCESS:

NCPA is currently soliciting bids from multiple vendors to perform the work required for this
project. NCPA will bid the specific scope of work consistent with NCPA procurement policies and
procedures NCPA will issue purchase orders based on cost and availability of the services
needed at the time the service is required.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the physical
environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation above was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8, 2020, and
was recommended for Commission approval on Consent Calendar.

SR: 110:20



NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project
January 16, 2020
Page 3

Respectfully submitted,

Yot S 11

RANDY S: HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments (1):
e Resolution

SR: 110:20



RESOLUTION 20-09

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING THE NCPA GEOTHERMAL PLANT 2 UNIT 4 NCG STEAM EJECTOR
REPLACEMENT PROJECT

(reference Staff Report #110:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) operates and maintains on behalf of the
project owners a Geothermal Facility near Middletown, CA, consisting of two power plants; and

WHEREAS, the NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project will include
upgrading the existing steam ejectors at NCPA’s Geothermal Plant 2; and

WHEREAS, this upgrade will increase steam production and lessen auxiliary steam usage. NCPA staff
estimates that these upgrades will result in a gain of approximately 0.25 MW in generation for the Geothermal
facility; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
approves the NCPA Geothermal Plant 2 Unit 4 NCG Steam Ejector Replacement Project, and delegates
authority to the General Manager or his designee to award bids, execute agreements, and to issue purchase
orders for the project in accordance with NCPA purchasing policies and procedures, without further approval
from the Commission, for a total not to exceed of $300,000.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020 by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY



A PUBLIC ABENCY

PA

AORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY

Commission Staff Report

Date: January 7, 2020

COMMISSION MEETING DATE:

January 16, 2020

SUBJECT: Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between Northern
California Power Agency and the City of San José

AGENDA CATEGORY: Discussion/Action

Division: Power Management

Department: Power Management

Assistant General Manager N/A

If other, please describe:

FROM:  Tony Zimmer //' % METHOD OF SELECTION:

IMPACTED MEMBERS:
All Members

Alameda Municipal Power

San Francisco Bay Area
Rapid Transit

City of Biggs
City of Gridley

City of Healdsburg

X

o o o o 0O

City of Lodi

City of Lompoc
City of Palo Alto
City of Redding

City of Roseville

O O o 0O O 0O

City of Santa Clara

If other, please specify

City of Shasta Lake
City of Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra REC

Port of Oakland
Truckee Donner PUD

Other

O o o o o O

SR: 111:20




Amendment No. 2 to Services Agreement with the City of San José
January 16, 2020
Page 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Commission of Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) approve
Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between NCPA and the City of San José,
pursuant to Resolution 20-10, and to authorize the General Manager of NCPA to execute
Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement, acting on behalf of NCPA, including any non-
substantive modifications to Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement approved by NCPA’s
General Counsel.

BACKGROUND:

NCPA entered into a Services Agreement with the City of San José on May 7, 2018 (Services
Agreement), through which NCPA supplies a variety of wholesale market services to the San
José Clean Energy Community Choice Aggregation Program (SJCE) that is administered by the
City of José.

Pursuant to the Services Agreement, the initial term of the Services Agreement is set to end on
August 31, 2020 (Initial Term). The City of San José has expressed interest in extending the
term of the Services Agreement beyond the Initial Term. Specifically, the City of San José has
requested that the term of the Services Agreement be extended through August 31, 2021 at the
end of the Initial Term.

The City of San José has also requested that the Services Agreement be revised to remove the
obligation for SICE to register its own Scheduling Coordinator account (SCID) with the
California Independent System Operator (CAISO), and to subsequently transfer its portfolio to
such SCID by a defined date.

DISCUSSION:

In response to the City of San José’s request to extend and modify the terms and conditions of
the Services Agreement, NCPA staff has developed Amendment No. 2 to the Services
Agreement to (i) extend the term of the agreement through August 31, 2021 at the end of the
Initial Term, and (ii) remove the obligation for SICE to register its own SCID and transfer its
portfolio to such SCID by a defined date.

By removing the obligation for SJCE to register its own SCID and transfer is portfolio to such
SCID by a defined date, SJCE’s portfolio will continue to be scheduled under NCPA’s
Scheduling Coordinator portfolio. Under this structure, SICE’s net load liability will continue to
be included in NCPA'’s Estimated Aggregate Liability. To mitigate the risk of scheduling SJCE’s
portfolio under NCPA’s Scheduling Coordinator account, SJCE is required to maintain a security
deposit with NCPA to be used as collateral. The amount of SICE’s security deposit is a
function of SJCE’s net load position, adjusted based on the status of SICE'’s portfolio.

FISCAL IMPACT:
By extending the Services Agreement for one (1) additional year beyond the Initial Term, NCPA

will receive $655,452 as compensation for the services rendered to the City of San José.
NCPA’s administrative costs for development of Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement

SR: 111:20



Amendment No. 2 to Services Agreement with the City of San José
January 16, 2020
Page 3

will be allocated in accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the
NCPA annual budget.

ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSIS:

This activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the
California Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary.

COMMITTEE REVIEW:

The recommendation provided herein was reviewed by the Facilities Committee on January 8,

2020, and was recommended for Commission approval.

Respectfully submitted,

NDY a HOWARD
General Manager

Attachments:

- Resolution 20-10
- Amendment No. 2 to Services Agreement between NCPA and the City of San José

SR: 111:20



RESOLUTION 20-10

RESOLUTION OF THE NORTHERN CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY
APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN NORTHERN
CALIFORNIA POWER AGENCY AND CITY OF SAN JOSE

(reference Staff Report #111:20)

WHEREAS, the Northern California Power Agency (NCPA) entered into a Services Agreement with the
City of San José on May 7, 2018 (Services Agreement), through which NCPA supplies a variety of wholesale
market services to the San José Clean Energy Community Choice Aggregation Program (SJCE) that is
administered by the City of José; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Services Agreement, the initial term of the Services Agreement is set to
end on August 31, 2020 (Initial Term), and the City of San José has expressed interest in extending the term of
the Services Agreement beyond the Initial Term; and

WHEREAS, specifically, the City of San José has requested that the term of the Services Agreement
be extended through August 31, 2021 at the end of the Initial Term; and

WHEREAS, the City of San José has also requested that the Services Agreement be revised to remove
the obligation for SJCE to register its own Scheduling Coordinator account (SCID) with the California
Independent System Operator (CAISO), and to subsequently transfer its portfolio to such SCID by a defined
date; and

WHEREAS, in response to the City of San José's request to extend and modify the terms and
conditions of the Services Agreement, NCPA staff has developed Amendment No. 2 to the Services
Agreement to (i) extend the term of the agreement through August 31, 2021 at the end of the Initial Term, and
(i) remove the obligation for SJCE to register its own SCID and transfer its portfolio to such SCID by a defined
date; and

WHEREAS, by removing the obligation for SJCE to register its own SCID and transfer is portfolio to
such SCID by a defined date, SJCE'’s portfolio will continue to be scheduled under NCPA’s Scheduling
Coordinator account, and under this structure, SICE’s net load liability will continue to be included in NCPA’s
Estimated Aggregate Liability; and

WHEREAS, to mitigate the risk of scheduling SJICE’s portfolio under NCPA’s Scheduling Coordinator
account, SJCE is required to maintain a security deposit with NCPA to be used as collateral, and the amount of
SJCE'’s security deposit is a function of SICE’s net load position, adjusted based on the status of SICE’s
portfolio; and

WHEREAS, by extending the Services Agreement for one (1) additional year beyond the Initial Term,
NCPA will receive $655,452 as compensation for the services rendered to the City of San José, and NCPA's
administrative costs for development of Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement will be allocated in
accordance with approved cost allocation methodologies as described in the NCPA annual budget; and

WHEREAS, this activity would not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect change in the
physical environment and is therefore not a “project” for purposes of Section 21065 the California
Environmental Quality Act. No environmental review is necessary; and



NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commission of the Northern California Power Agency
adopts and approves Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement between NCPA and the City of San José,
and authorizes the General Manager of NCPA to execute Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement, acting
on behalf of NCPA, including any non-substantive modifications to Amendment No. 2 to the Services
Agreement approved by NCPA’s General Counsel.

PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this day of , 2020, by the following vote
on roll call:

Vote Abstained Absent
Alameda
San Francisco BART
Biggs
Gridley
Healdsburg
Lodi
Lompoc
Palo Alto
Port of Oakland
Redding
Roseville
Santa Clara
Shasta Lake
Truckee Donner
Ukiah
Plumas-Sierra

ROGER FRITH ATTEST: CARY A. PADGETT
CHAIR ASSISTANT SECRETARY

NCPA Resolution 20-10 -2-



Services Agreement
Between
Northern California Power Agency
and
City of San José

AMENDMENT NO. 2

This Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment No. 2”) to the Services Agreement between the Northern
California Power Agency, a joint powers agency of the State of California (“NCPA”), and the City
of San José, a municipal corporation (“Customer”), each individually a “Party” and collectively
the “Parties”, dated as of May 7, 2018, as such may be amended from time to time, (the
“Services Agreement”) is made this ___ day of , 20__ with reference to the
following facts, among others:

A. Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Services Agreement, NCPA supplies certain
Services to Customer.

B. Pursuant to Section 5.1 of the Services Agreement, at the end of the Initial Term of the
Services Agreement, or any subsequent term of the Services Agreement, the term of the
Services Agreement may be extended by Customer for an additional two (2) year period,
or an alternative period of time as agreed to by the Parties, unless a Party provides
written Notice of Termination pursuant to Section 5.2 of the Services Agreement, of its
election not to extend the term of the Agreement.

C. The Parties desire to amend the Services Agreement to extend the term of the Services
Agreement for a subsequent term beyond the end of the Initial Term.

D. The Parties also desire to amend certain terms and conditions of the Services
Agreement to enable NCPA to continue acting as Customer’s Scheduling Coordinator.

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE as follows:

1. Pursuant to this Amendment No. 2, at the end of the Initial Term of the Services
Agreement, the Parties elect to extend the term of the Services Agreement for a
subsequent term that will begin on September 1, 2020 and will continue uninterrupted
through August 31, 2021 (the “Second Term”).

2. Section 4.2.9 is deleted in its entirety.
3. Section 1 of Appendix A (Scheduling Services), the first and second sentence is deleted

in its entirety.

Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement
Page 1



Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all other terms and conditions of the Services
Agreement remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment No. 2 to be duly executed by
and through their respective authorized representatives as of the date hereinabove written.

Northern California Power Agency City of San José
RANDY S. HOWARD, General Manager LORI MITCHELL, Director
Attest: Attest:

Assistant Secretary of the Commission

Approved as to Form: Approved as to Form:

General Counsel General Counsel

Amendment No. 2 to the Services Agreement
Page 2



	Draft_Minutes_12052019
	Item_10_November_30_2019_Financial_Report
	Item_11_Treasurer's_Report_Month_Ended_November_30_2019
	Item_12_Process_Innovations_Inc._Five_Year_MTCSA
	Item_13_Premium_Inspection_Company_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_14_Fossil_Consulting_Services_Inc_Five_Year_MTCSA
	Item_15_Kimberly_Fields_dba_K_Weatherman_Logging_First_Amendment_Five_Tear_MTGSA
	Item_16_Ronwright_Logging_Lumber_Construction_Inc_First_Amendment_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_17_Tanner_Logging_Inc_Second_Amendment_to_Five_Year_MTGSA
	Item_18_NCPA_Geothermal_Plant_1_HVAC_System_Project
	Item_19_NCPA_Geothermal_Plant_2_Unit_4_NCG_Steam_Ejector_Replacement_Project
	Item_20_Approval_of_Amendment_2_Services_Agreement_Between_NCPA_City_of_San_Jose

